
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Planning Committee 

 
MONDAY, 11TH MAY, 2009 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Peacock (Chair), Beacham, Demirci, Dodds (Deputy Chair), 

Hare, Mallett, Patel, Weber and Wilson 
 

 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet 
site.  At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to 
be filmed.  The Council may use the images and sound recording for internal training 
purposes. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However, by entering the meeting 
room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for web-casting and/or training 
purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal Support Officer 
(Committee Clerk) at the meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  

Late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear.  New 
items will be dealt with at item 14 below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the 

authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the 
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that 
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in 
that matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of 
the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice the member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest 
affects their financial position or the financial position of a person or body as 
described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the 
determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in 
relation to them or any person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of 
Conduct. 
 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS    
 
 To consider receiving deputations and/or petitions in accordance with Part 

Four, Section B, Paragraph 29 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 

5. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 16)  
 
 To confirm and sign the Minutes of the Planning Committee held on 6 April 

2009. 
 

6. APPEAL DECISIONS  (PAGES 17 - 24)  
 
 To advise the Committee on Appeal decisions determined by the Department 

for Communities and Local Government during March 2009. 
 

7. DELEGATED DECISIONS  (PAGES 25 - 50)  
 
 To inform the Committee of decision made under delegated powers by the 

Heads of Development Control (North & South) and the Chair of the above 
Committee between 16 March 2009 and 19 April 2009. 
 

8. PERFORMANCE STATISTICS  (PAGES 51 - 62)  
 
 To advise the Committee of Performance Statistics for Development Control 

and Planning Enforcement Action since the 6 April 2009 Committee meeting. 
 

9. PLANNING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE  (PAGES 63 - 70)  
 
 To inform Members of planning enforcement performance for the last quarter 

and service issues. 
 



 

3 

10. PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (PAGES 71 - 72)  
 
 In accordance with the Committee's protocol for hearing representations; when 

the recommendation is to grant planning permission, two objectors may be 
given up to 6 minutes (divided between them) to make representations.  Where 
the recommendation is to refuse planning permission, the applicant and 
supporters will be allowed to address the Committee.  For items considered 
previously by the Committee and deferred, where the recommendation is to 
grant permission, one objector may be given up to 3 minutes to make 
representations.   
 

11. FORMER HORNSEY CENTRAL HOSPITAL, PARK ROAD, N8  (PAGES 73 - 104)  
 
 Demolition of vacant nurses homes and erection of 2 x four storey residential 

blocks with basement car parking, comprising 20 x one bed, 23 x two bed, 10 x 
three bed and 3 x four bed units, plus landscaping (Revised Scheme) 
RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission subject to conditions and subject to 
section 106 Legal Agreement. 
 

12. THE NIGHTINGALE PH, 40 NIGHTINGALE LANE, N8  (PAGES 105 - 122)  
 
 Retention of pub use at ground and basement levels, with refurbishment of 

upper floors to form 1 x three bed, 1 x two bed and 1 x one bed flats. Demolition 
of existing side extensions and erection of new 3-storey rear extension 
comprising 3 x one bed and 1 x two  bed flats. 
RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission subject to conditions and subject to 
sec. 106 and sec. 278 Legal Agreement. 
 

13. PARK TAVERN PUBLIC HOUSE, 220 PARK LANE, N17  (PAGES 123 - 154)  
 
 Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 4 storey building comprising 366 

sqm of retail (A1) floorspace plus Kingdom Hall (D1) on the ground floor, with 
34 flats, (2 x one bed, 13 x two bed, 15 x three bed and 4 x four bed flats on the 
upper floors), plus 22 car spaces and 44 cycle spaces. 
RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission subject to conditions and S106 Legal 
Agreement and agreements under S256 and S278 of the Highways Act 1980 
relating to exchange of land and works to the highway. 
 

14. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items admitted at item 2 above. 

 
15. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 Monday, 8th June 2009, 7pm. 

 
 
 
 



 

4 

Yuniea Semambo 
Head of Local Democracy & Member 
Services, 5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Anne Thomas 
Principal Committee Coordinator  
(Non Cabinet Committees) 
Tel No: 020 8489 2941 
Fax No: 0208 489 2660  
Email: anne.thomas@haringey.gov.uk  
 
30 April 2009 

 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 

 
Councillors: *Peacock (Chair), *Beacham, *Demirci, *Dodds (Deputy Chair), *Hare, 

*Mallett, *Patel, Weber and *Wilson 
 
*Denotes Members present. 
 
Also  
Present: 

Councillors Bevan and Davies  
 

 

MINUTE 

NO. 

SUBJECT/DECISION ACTION 

BY 

 

PC424.   
 

APOLOGIES  

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Weber for whom 
Cllr Aitken was substituting and apologies for lateness from Cllrs 
Demirci and Patel. 
 

 
 

PC425.   
 

URGENT BUSINESS  

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
 

PC426.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

 
 

PC427.   
 

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS  

 None received. 
 

 
 

PC428.   
 

MINUTES  

 RESOLVED 

 
That the minutes of the meetings held below be agreed and 
signed: 
 

a). Planning Committee held on 9 March 2009 and 
b). Special Planning Committee held on 17 March 2009. 

 
 

 
 

PC429.   
 

APPEAL DECISIONS  

 The Committee was asked to note the outcome of appeal 
decisions determined by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government during February 2009. 
 
The Committee noted the outcome of 23 appeal decisions 
determined of which 4 (17%) were allowed, 1 in respect of an 
enforcement appeal and 19 (83%) were dismissed.   The figures 
showed an overall good month in relation to performance and had 
improved the statistics for the year.  The appeals ranged from 

 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 2 

conversions to extension.  
 
In respect of the appeal for 596-606 High Road N17, this was a 
major development and had been dismissed at appeal due to 
highway safety and the living conditions of future occupants. 
 
Cllr Patel entered the meeting at 7:12pm. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

PC430.   
 

DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 The Committee was asked to note the decisions set out in Ward 
order, made under delegated powers by the Heads of 
Development Control (North and South) and the Chair of the 
Planning Committee between 16 February 2009 and 15 March 
2009. 
 
RESOLVED 

 

That the report be noted. 
 

 
 

PC431.   
 

PERFORMANCE STATISTICS  

 The Committee was asked to note the performance statistics on 
Development Control and Planning Enforcement since the 9 
March 2009 Committee meeting. 
 
The Officer advised the Committee that decisions taken within set 
time targets by Development Management and Planning 
Enforcement Work since the 9 March 2009 Committee meeting.  
In relation to major applications (1 out of 3) 33% were determined 
within 13 weeks.  For minor applications (33 out of 39 cases) 85% 
were determined within 8 weeks and for other application (55 out 
of 68 cases) 81% were determined within 8 weeks.   
 
The Committee was especially asked to note that in respect of 
appeals against refusal of planning permission the annual total 
dismissed was 65% in line with Haringey targets. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
 

PC432.   
 

GOVERNMENT CHANGES TO PROCEDURE FOR PLANNING 

APPEALS: APRIL 2009 
 

  
The Officer presented the report to advise Members of the 

 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 3 

changes to Procedures for dealing with Planning Appeals, which 
introduced a ‘fast-track’ process for appeals against refusal of 
householder applications. 
 
The report detailed the changes in the way appeals against 
refusal of planning permission would be dealt with by the 
Planning Inspectorate as from 6 April 2009.   It had implications 
for the handling of applications and appeals by Local Authorities 
and for the involvement of local residents objecting to appeals.  
The changes were intended to provide a speedier process for the 
handling of householder appeals.   
 
The new arrangements would enable the Planning Inspectorate to 
determine the method of appeal (written representation, hearing 
or public inquiry); householder appeals would have to be 
submitted by the applicant within 12 weeks rather than 6 months.  
There would be no ‘second-stage’ opportunity for Council’s or 
local residents to make further representations on householder 
appeals as presently existed.  It was also proposed that the 
Planning Inspectors would undertake site visits unaccompanied.  
Further that any award of costs would be introduced in during the 
written representations process. 
 
The Committee was asked to note the significant changes in the 
appeals procedure mainly affecting householder applications. 
 
RESOLVED 

 

That the changes in the procedure be noted. 
 

PC433.   
 

14 -16 CREIGHTON AVE N10  

  
The Committee was informed that this application had been 
deferred from the previous Planning Committee meeting held on 
9 March 2009.  This application was a revised scheme following a 
previous dismissed scheme. 
 
The Committee was advised that the application site was located 
on Creighton Avenue and had a very large rear garden which 
backed on to the gardens of Pages Hill.  The application site was 
currently a pair of semi-detached houses. 
 
The design of the houses was considered acceptable as they 
reflected the height and bulk of existing houses adjacent to the 
site.  The density (157hrh) was actually lower than the 
recommended density range.  It was felt that the scheme 
complied with building overlooking distances and was not 
overbearing to adjacent properties.   Eight off street parking 
spaces, one disabled space were proposed along with a 20mph 
speed restriction which would assist traffic safety measures. 

 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 4 

 
The Committee was further advised of a proposal by the applicant 
to amend the position of a single unit on the left hand side of the 
site by moving it forward by 1.5 metres.  The applicant had 
discussed this with the occupants of the property at number 18 
who were happy with the proposal. 
 
In response to a Members enquiry the officer explained the main 
differences between the current and previous applications; 
 

• Proposal for 5 units rather than 6 in the previous 
application. 

• The roof level had been reduced in terms of its bulk. 

• The distance between the rear of the proposed new 
houses and the rear of houses in Pages Hill, backing on to 
the  buildings had been increased by 3 metres. 

• The provision of parking spaces had been reduced from 12 
to 8. 

 
A Planning Consultant representing the residents of Pages Hill 
addressed the Committee and objected to the application on the 
basis that it was felt to be worse that the previous scheme 
dismissed on appeal.  It was considered that the reduced height, 
bulk and scale discussed was not true and the units were actually 
wider and broader.  The Planning Inspector had felt that the 
previous scheme would have a dramatic impact on the resident 
on Pages Hill and that there was no difference in the proposed 
scheme.  In response to a question raised by the Committee the 
representative explained that the pitch of the roof was lower, 
however it made little difference to the occupants on Pages Hill. 
 
Cllr Matt Davies addressed to the Committee to requested that 
this application should be compared to the previous application 
dismissed by the Planning Inspectorate.  The Planning 
Inspectorate had been concerned about the impact on the 
residents of Pages Hill.  The Committee was requested to reject 
the application for the same reasons the Planning Inspectorate 
had dismissed the previous appeal because the applications were 
the same. 
 
The applicant responded to the concerns raised and advised that 
the current application addressed the issues raised by the 
Planning Inspectorate.  The proposed houses were much smaller 
and the buildings had been positioned  in line with Creighton 
Avenue.   The distance of the units at the rear had been 
increased to 44 metres.   
 
Four cypress trees had been removed between the submission of 
the two application, however none of the tress along the boundary 
would be removed and the mature trees beside the allotment 
would also be retained.   

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 5 

 
The number of car parking spaces had been reduced and 
therefore the potential for overlooking had also been reduced.  In 
response to comments raised in relation to dangerous traffic the 
applicant replied that vehicles would be able to enter and leave 
the site in forward gear which was not possible at present. 
 
The Committee discussed with the applicant the decking at the 
rear of a house on Pages Hill and considered whether this would 
be comprised as stated by the Planning Inspectorate.  The 
applicant advised the Committee that the decking had been built 
at the first floor level and considered to be unfair, however to 
address this issue the buildings had been moved back and the 
rooms in the loft removed. 
 
The Committee was reminded by the Head of Planning that the 4 
units respected the front and back building lines of Creighton 
Avenue and that the bulk and massing was commensurate with 
what was in the street.  The building supported all the policy 
principles and recommendations for approval. 
 
The Committee viewed the plans. 
 
Members moved a motion to move to the vote.  The Chair as 
seconded the motion and on a vote their being 5 in favour and 4 
against the motion was carried.  The Chair them moved a motion 
to grant the application and on a vote there being 5 in favour and 
4 against the motion was carried. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application be granted subject to conditions, the 
amended plan to move unit number 5 forward by 2 metres and 
subject to a Section 106 Legal Agreement concerning education 
contributions. 
 
INFORMATION RELATING TO APPLICATION REF: 

HGY/2009/0080 

FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE DATED 06/04/2009 

 

Location: 14 - 16 Creighton Avenue N10 

 

Proposal: Demolition of existing houses and erection of 5 x 3 storey 

houses (comprising 4 x three bed and 1 x four bed) with associated 

parking. 

 

Recommendation: Grant subject to conditions and Legal Agreement 

 

Decision: Grant subject to conditions and Legal Agreement 

 

Drawing No’s: 208053/001, 010, 030, 031, 032, 110, 120, 121 Rev A, 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 6 

122, 123, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134 & 135. 

 

Conditions: 

 

1.  The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than 

the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which 

the permission shall be of no effect.  

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the 

Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the 

accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions.  

 

2.  The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in 

complete accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; in particular with 

amended plan 121 Revision A submitted on 6 April 2009, showing 

revised siting of house No. 5.  

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance 

with the approved details and in the interests of amenity.  

 

3.  That the levels of all thresholds and details of boundary treatment 

be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area and to 

ensure adequate means of enclosure for the proposed development.  

 

4.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town 

& Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995, no 

enlargement, improvement or other alteration of any of the dwellings 

hereby approved in the form of development falling within Classes A to 

H shall be carried out without the submission of a particular planning 

application to the Local Planning Authority for its determination.  

Reason: To avoid overdevelopment of the site.  

 

5.  Before the commencement of any works, all those trees to be 

retained, as indicated on the approved drawings, shall be protected by 

secure, stout, exclusion fencing erected at a minimum distance 

equivalent to the branch spread of the trees and in accordance with BS 

5837:2005 and to a suitable height.  Any works connected with the 

approved scheme within the branch spread of the trees shall be by hand 

only.  No storage of materials, supplies or plant machinery shall be 

stored, parked, or allowed access beneath the branch spread of the trees 

within the exclusion fencing.  

Reason: In order to ensure the safety and well being of the trees on the 

site during constructional works that are to remain after the building 

works are completed.  

 

6.  The construction works of the development hereby granted shall 

not be carried out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or 

before 0800 or after 1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or 

Bank Holidays.  

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the 

enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties.  

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 7 

 

7.  That a detailed scheme for the provision of refuse and waste 

storage within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the works. 

Such a scheme as approved shall be implemented and permanently 

retained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.  

 

8.  Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, 

no development shall be commenced until precise details of the 

materials to be used in connection with the development hereby 

permitted have been submitted to, approved in writing by and 

implemented in accordance with the requirements of the Local Planning 

Authority.  

Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 

development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area.  

 

9.  Notwithstanding the details of landscaping referred to in the 

application, a scheme for the landscaping and treatment of the 

surroundings of the proposed development to include detailed drawings 

of:  

 

a.  Those new trees and shrubs to be planted together with a schedule 

of species shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 

Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development.  

Such an approved scheme of planting, seeding or turfing comprised in 

the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out and implemented 

in strict accordance with the approved details in the first planting and 

seeding season following the occupation of the building or the 

completion of development (whichever is sooner).  Any trees or plants, 

either existing or proposed, which, within a period of five years from the 

completion of the development die, are removed, become damaged or 

diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with a similar size 

and species.  The landscaping scheme, once implemented, is to be 

maintained and retained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local 

Planning Authority. Reason: In order for the Local Authority to assess 

the acceptability of any landscaping scheme in relation to the site itself, 

thereby ensuring a satisfactory setting for the proposed development in 

the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

 

 

 

INFORMATIVE: The proposed development requires a redundant 

crossover to be removed and a new crossover to be made over the 

footway. The necessary works will be carried out by the Council at the 

applicant's expense once all the necessary internal site works have been 

completed. The applicant should telephone 020-8489 1316 to obtain a 

cost estimate and to arrange for the works to be carried out.     

 

INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming / 

numbering. The applicant should contact the Transportation Group at 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 8 

least six weeks before the development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) 

to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address. 

 

REASONS FOR APPROVAL  

 

The proposal should be approved on the grounds that the site is suitable 

for low-density residential development.  The proposed houses are 

traditional semi-detached properties with one detached property that 

benefit from a road frontage.  The style, design and detailing of the 

properties means that they are similar to other properties within the area.  

The houses have been sited within the plot to have minimum affect on 

the privacy and amenities of any surrounding properties, the proposed 

dwellings have been sited closer to the street frontage than any previous 

application making the distance between the proposed properties and the 

existing houses in Pages Hill greater.  The line of trees on the boundaries 

will be retained to further eliminate any adverse affect. This overcomes 

the reasons for the dismissal of an earlier appeal. 

 

In addition the proposal provides five new units that have adequate floor 

space to meet the minimum standards as set out in SPD Housing.  Each 

unit will benefit from their own private amenity space; each room 

contained within the dwellings will benefit from natural lighting and 

ventilation and will have at least one off-street parking space per unit.  

 

As such the proposal is compliant with Policies UD3 'General 

Principles', UD4 'Quality Design', HSG1 'New Housing Development', 

OS17 'Tree Protection, Tree Masses and Spines' and SPD Housing of the 

Haringey Unitary Development Plan. 

 

Section 106: Yes. 

 
 

PC434.   
 

579C HIGH ROAD N17  

 The Committee was informed that a previous planning application 
had been refused in 2006 for a 4 storey building.  The current 
application submitted was for a 3 storey building with a total of 8 
flats. 
 
The application site was located to the rear of the High Road in 
the Bruce Castle Conservation Area.  The current site was a three 
storey partially vacant building that was on a short lease for light 
industrial and commercial uses.   The surrounding area was 
mixed, with a range of building types which ranged in height.  The 
site backed on to a railway line from Bruce Grove Station to 
Liverpool Street. 
 
The principle of mixed use development at the site wa considered 
acceptable.  The building would reflect the scale and materials of 
the adjacent locally listed building at Morrison’s Yard.  The unit 
and room sizes were consistent with the floow minima and the 

 
 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 9 

proposed amenity space was considered suitable for this type of 
development in the form of terraces or roof terraces.  The scheme 
provided an appropriate mix of dwelling types that would meet the 
housing need for private housing and affordable housing. 
 
The use and opening up of the cul-de-sac at Kenmare Drive 
seemed to provide the best means of access and was a natural 
continuation of Kenmare Drive.  Residents living in the adjacent 
residential block would not be adversely affected.  The applicant 
had provided 8 car parking spaces which would include 1 
disabled space and 18 cycle racks. 
 
The Committee was further advised that the drawings appended 
had recently been amended.  The gap betweeen the proposed B1 
unit and the old barn had been increased and changes to the 
front elevation in terms of the brick and arches. 
 
In response to a question raised the officer replied that the 
industrial units  had been light industry/offices and that there was 
no information in relation to the number of employees previously 
employed at the site.  The potential number of employees that 
could be employed within the proposed scheme could total 20. 
 
Cllr Bevan addressed the Committee and raised concerns 
regarding the statement that the housing service had been 
consulted in respect of the application. Upon making enquiries the 
housing service had confirmed they had not been consulted in 
relation to the application.  Further concerns was raised in relation 
to the loss of employment, access to the site, amenity space and 
fear of crime which were detailed in the crime prevention officer’s 
report attached and which were all reasons to reject the scheme. 
 
The applicant addressed the Committee and responded to the 
following issues raised: 
 

• The crime prevention officer had submitted comments on 
the basis of looking at the plans and not visiting the site, 
particularly in relation to the removal of the wall.  It was 
proposed that additional lighting was a deterent for crime. 

• The 2 storey element and the concerns of the under croft 
parking could lead to a place for vandalism and arson.  
The fire officer had no representation to make in relation to 
this issue. 

• Access to each of the units would be controlled by a video 
system.   

 
The applicant further explained that the general scheme proposed 
a good level of housing, a balanced scheme which would benefit 
the site and the adjoining area.  The Committee were reassured 
that the scheme met the required car parking standards and 
amenity space. 

Page 9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 10 

 
The Committee viewed the plans. 
 
The Committee requested an informative in relation to the colour 
of the brick  materials which was considered should be pinker 
than the yellow detailed.  A condition was also requested that the 
surfaces of the car park should be permeable.   
 
The Chair moved a motion to grant the application. 
 
RESOLVED 

 

That the application be granted subject to conditions, the 
additional condition for permeable surfaces to the car park, an 
informative in relation to the colour of the brick and a Section 106 
Legal Agreement. 
 
INFORMATION RELATING TO APPLICATION REF: 

HGY/2009/0181 

FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE DATED 06/04/2009 

 

Location: 579C High Road N17 

 

Proposal: Demolition of existing building and erection of part two / part 

three storey building comprising of 1 x 3 bed, 3 x 2, 4 x 1 bed flats, 4 x 

B1 units at ground floor with eight car parking spaces. 

 

Recommendation: Grant subject to conditions and Legal Agreement 

 

Decision: Grant subject to conditions and Legal Agreement 

 

Drawing No’s: 7447/01, 02, 03, 04, 11A, 12A, 13A, 14A, 15, 16, PS01, 

PS02 & PS03. 

 

Conditions: 

 

1.  The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than 

the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which 

the permission shall be of no effect.    

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the 

Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the 

accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions.       

 

2.  The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in 

complete accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance 

with the approved details and in the interests of amenity.      

 

3.  Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, 

no development shall be commenced until precise details of the 

Page 10



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 11 

materials to be used in connection with the development hereby 

permitted have been submitted to, approved in writing by and 

implemented in accordance with the requirements of the Local Planning 

Authority.     

Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 

development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area.    

 

4.  The applicants submits a scheme showing dedicated route to the 

cycle store and appropriate paving materials along the site access off 

High Road, typical of a shared surface, which would enable drivers to 

pay specific regard to pedestrians/cyclists, to the transportation authority 

for approval.   

Reason: To minimise conflict between pedestrians/cyclists and vehicles 

traversing accessing this site.       

 

5.  The applicants submit a scheme which would demonstrate that 

servicing vehicles can manoeuvre into and out of this site, from and onto 

Kenmare Drive, in forward gear.   

Reason: To ensure safe access and exiting of servicing vehicles into and 

out of this development.      

 

6.  Fully annotated and dimensioned drawings of elevational features, 

shopfronts at a scale of 1:10, including the type/style of window, shall 

be submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to commencement of 

development.   

Reason: To ensure that the development is of a high standard to preserve 

the character and appearance of Bruce Castle Conservation Area.      

 

7.  No development shall take place until site investigation detailing 

previous and existing land uses, potential land contamination, risk 

estimation and remediation work if required have been submitted to and 

approved  in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works 

shall be carried out as approved.    

Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to ensure the site is 

contamination free.    

 

8.  The proposed development shall have a central dish/aerial system 

for receiving all broadcasts for all the residential units created, details of 

such a scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Authority prior to the occupation of the property and the approved 

scheme shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter.   

Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the neighbourhood.    

 

9.  That a detailed scheme for the provision of refuse and waste 

storage within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the works. 

Such a scheme as approved shall be implemented and permanently 

retained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.    

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.     

 

10.  Details of roof terrace, including surfacing and guard rails/parapet 

Page 11



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 12 

walls, shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to 

commencement of development.    

Reason: To protect amenity and safety of the occupiers.      

 

11.  The development hereby authorised shall comply with BS 8220 

(1986) Part 1, 'Security Of Residential Buildings' and comply with the 

aims and objectives of the police requirement of 'Secured By Design' 

and 'Designing Out Crime' principles.   

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves the 

required crime prevention elements as detailed by Circular 5/94 

'Planning Out Crime'.     

 

12.  That details of all levels on the site in relation to the surrounding 

area be submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: In order to ensure that any works in conjunction with the 

permission hereby granted respects the height of adjacent properties 

through suitable levels on the site.    

 

13.  The construction works of the development hereby granted shall 

not be carried out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or 

before 0800 or after 1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or 

Bank Holidays.  

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the 

enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties.   

 

14.  A scheme for the treatment of the surroundings of the proposed 

development including the planting of trees and/or shrubs shall be 

submitted to, approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 

implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: In order to provide a suitable setting for the proposed 

development in the interests of visual amenity.  

 

15.  Details of the materials to be use in hard surfacing areas shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Council prior to the commencement of 

development, such details to incorporate permeable surfacing wherever 

possible. 

Reason; In order to ensure sustainable means of dealing with surface 

water on the site. 

 

INFORMATIVE: Demolition Any demolition or refurbishment works 

must not be carried out on the development site that may endanger the 

safe operation of the railway, or the stability of the adjoining Network 

Rail structures. In particular the demolition of buildings or other 

structures should be carried out in accordance with an agreed method 

statement. Care must be taken to ensure that no debris or other materials 

can fall onto Network Rail's land. Approval must be obtained form 

Network Rail's Outside Parties Engineer.   

 

INFORMATIVE: Plant, Scaffolding & Cranes Any scaffold which is to 

be constructed adjacent to the railway must be erected in such a manner 

that at no time will any poles or cranes over-sail or fall onto the railway. 

Page 12



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 13 

All plant and scaffolding must be positioned, that in the event of failure, 

it will not fall on to Network Rail land.    

 

INFORMATIVE: Excavations of footings Network Rail will need to be 

consulted on any alterations to ground levels. Its should be noted that 

Network Rail are concerned about excavations within 10m of the 

boundary with the operational railway and will need to be assured that 

the construction of foundations and footings will not impact on the 

stability of the railway. A full method statement must be supplied and 

agreed with Network Rail's Outside Party Engineer before consent can 

be granted.   

 

INFORMATIVE: Amenity Network Rail is not aware whether any 

PPG24 noise and vibration assessment has been carried out for this 

location. Amenity will need to be addressed.   

 

INFORMATIVE: Drainage Additional or increased flows of surface 

water must not be discharged onto Network Rail land nor into Network 

Rail's culverts or drains. In the interests of long term stability of the 

railway, soakaways should not be constructed within 10m of the 

boundary with the operational railway.   

 

INFORMATIVE: Fencing given the proposed use of the site a 1.8m 

high fence should be constructed to avoid trespass and vandalism and 

provide acoustic insulation for the residential units.   

 

INFORMATIVE: Site Layout In order to ensure the proposed 

development can be constructed and maintained without encroachment 

onto the operational railway line all buildings and structures should be 

set back at least 2m from the boundary with the operational railway or at 

least 5m for overhead power lines.   

 

INFORMATIVE: Landscaping Details of landscaping along the railway 

corridor to be submitted to Network Rail, who can provide advice on 

appropriate planting species as well as inappropriate planting.   

 

INFORMATIVE: Party Wall Act 1996 where works are proposed 

adjacent to the railway it may be necessary to serve the appropriate 

notices on Network Rail and their tenants under the Party Wall etc Act 

1996. Developers should consult with NRIL at an early stage of the 

preparation of details of their development on Party Wall matters.      

 

INFORMATIVE: Further to Condition 3 above, the choice of brick 

work should reflect the darker bricks in the vicinity of the site, and 

should avoid unduly light or pale buff bricks. 

 

INFORMATIVE: You are requested to consider the provision of  roll-

down mesh shutters to the front of the undercroft parking areas located 

immediately to the west of ground floor B1 Unit 2, on drawing No. 

7447/12A, in the event that  there are issues of security and safety 

arising from use of the parking areas. 

Page 13



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 14 

    

REASONS FOR APPROVAL   

 

The proposed scheme is considered acceptable for the following 

reasons: the 8 units will assist in meeting the boroughs housing targets. 

The site will provide an acceptable environment for residential use with 

sufficient amenity space. A level of employment will still be retained on 

the site to create employment opportunities in the area. The proposed 

three and two storey block is of an appropriate scale and design using 

appropriate materials that would enhance the conservation area. There 

would be no adverse impact on neighbouring properties and the site is 

within an accessible location. As such the proposal would be contrary to 

Policies UD3 'General Principles', UD4 'Quality Design', CSV1 

'Development in Conservation Areas', CSV3 'Locally Listed Buildings 

and Designated Sites of Industrial Heritage Interest', HSG1 'New 

Housing Developments', HSG2 'Change of Use to Residential', HSG10 

'Dwelling Mix', HSG9 'Density Standards', ENV3 'Water Conservation', 

ENV10 'Mitigating Climate Change: Renewable Energy' and EMP4 

'Non Employment Generating Uses' of the adopted Haringey Unitary 

Development Plan and SPG 1a 'Design Guidance and Design Statement', 

Housing SPD (October 2008). 

 

Section 106: Yes. 

 
 

PC435.   
 

579C HIGH ROAD N17 ~ CONSERVATION AREA CONSENT  

 The Committee was asked to consider Conservation Area 
Consent for the demolition of existing building and erection of part 
two/part three storey building comprising of 1 x 3 bed, 3 x 2 bed, 
4 x 1 bed flats, 4 x B1 units at ground floor with eight car parking 
spaces.  With the proviso that the demolition should not take 
effect until a contract had been let for the redevelopment of the 
site in accordance with  the approved planning permission. 
 
The Chair moved a motion to agree the recommendation in the 
report to grant consent subject to conditions. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Conservation Area Consent be agreed with the proviso listed 
above and as planning permission for the application outlined in 
PC434 above was agreed. 
 
INFORMATION RELATING TO APPLICATION REF: 

HGY/2009/0184 

FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE DATED 06/04/2009 

 

Location: 579C High Road N17 

 

Proposal: Conservation Area Consent for demolition of existing building 

 
 

Page 14



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 15 

and erection of part two / part three storey building comprising of 1 x 3 

bed, 3 x 2 bed, 4 x 1 bed flats, 4 x B1 units at ground floor with eight car 

parking spaces. 

 

Recommendation: Grant subject to conditions 

 

Decision: Grant subject to conditions 

 

Drawing No’s: 7447/01, 02, 03, 04, 11A, 12A, 13A, 14A, 15, 16, PS01, 

PS02 & PS03. 

 

Condition: 

 

1.  The demolition hereby permitted shall not be undertaken before a 

contract for the carrying out of the works for redevelopment of the site 

under planning permission reference HGY/2009/0181) has been made 

and planning permission granted for the redevelopment for which the 

contract provides. Reason: In order to protect the appearance of the 

conservation area. 

 

Section 106: No. 

 
 

PC436.   
 

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 There were no new items of urgent business. 
 

 
 

PC437.   
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 RESOLVED 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting as Item 
16 contained exempt information, as defined in Section 100a of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1985); namely information relating to 
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including 
the Authority holding that information). 
 

 
 

PC438.   
 

EXEMPT MINUTES  

 The Committee was asked to sign the exempt minutes of the 
Special Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday 17 March 
2009. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the exempt minutes be agreed and signed. 
 

 
 

PC439.   
 

NEW EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 There were no new exempt items of urgent business.  

Page 15



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009 
 

 16 

  

PC440.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 Monday 11 May 2009. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Sheila Peacock 

Chair 
 
 

Page 16



Agenda Item 6Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 APPEAL DECISIONS MARCH 2009 

 

PLANNING APPEALS 

 

 

 

 

 

24 Dorset Road N22 7SL 
 

Proposal:  
 
Single storey rear extension and window to gable of house, Permission for main house 
granted (HGY/2007/06040) 
 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Written Representation  
 

Issue: 

  
The effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the area  
 

Result: 
 

Appeal Allowed 23 March 2009 

 

 

 

 

 

Land Adjacent 34 Holmesdale Road N6 5TH 
 

Proposal:  
 
Erection of a two storey house in gap in terrace with associated 
alterations/foundations/underpinning 
 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Written Representation  

 

Issue:   

 
The effect of the proposed development of the character of the Highgate Conservation Area 
 
The effect of the proposed development on the living conditions at No 32 Holmesdale Road  
 
The effect of the proposed development on the existing on –street parking situation  

 

Result:  

 

 Appeal Dismissed 26 March 2009                                         

Ward: Bounds Green  

Reference Number: HGY/2008/0747 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Ward: Highgate  

Reference Number: HGY/2008/0967 

Decision Level: Delegated  

Page 19



                                              
 

 

 

 

 

 

32 Westbury Avenue N22 6RS 

 

Proposal:  

 
Change of use from retail (A1) to food takeaway (A5) 

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Written Representation 
 

Issue:  

 
The effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of nearby residents in terms 
of noise, smell and disturbance 
 

Result:  

 

Appeal Allowed 9 March 2009 

 

 

 

 

 

62 Lealand Road N15 6JT 

 

Proposal:  

 
Conversion of a house in multiple occupations to self contained 2 x 2 bed flats 

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Written Representation  
 

Issue:  

 
The effect on the living conditions of the occupiers of the flats in relation to the space within 
the accommodation, and the effect on the supply of family housing within the London 
Borough of Haringey 
 

Result:  
 

Appeal Allowed 23 March 2009 
 
 
 

Ward: Noel Park  

Reference Number: HGY/2007/1675 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Ward: Seven Sisters 

Reference Number: HGY/2008/1909 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

Land Adjacent to 12 Fryatt Road N17 7BH 

 

Proposal:  

 
Erection of a two storey one bedroom house  

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Informal Hearing   
 

Issue:  

 
The effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the surrounding area  
 
The effect of the proposal on the living conditions of the occupants of 12 Fryatt Road  
 

Result:  
 

Appeal Dismissed 24 March 2009 
                              

 

 

 

 

 

78 Downhills Way N17 6BD 

 

Proposal:  

 
Formation of a vehicular crossover/dropped kerb 

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Written Representation  
 

Issue:  
 
The effect on highway safety 
 

 Result: 

 

 Appeal Dismissed 4 March 2009       

 

 

 

 

                              

Ward: White Hart Lane  

Reference Number: HGY/2008/0962 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Ward: West Green  

Reference Number: HGY/2008/0789 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Page 21



 

 

 

 

 

The Freemasons, 646 Lordship Lane N22 5JH 

 

Proposal:  

 
Demolition of existing building and erection of new building comprising Class A1, A2 or A3 
use at ground floor and nine residential flats on the upper floors with cycle parking and 
services provided in the basement  

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Informal Hearing  
 

Issue:  
 
The effect of the development proposed on the character and appearance of the area 
 
The effect on the safety and free flow of vehicular and pedestrian traffic  

 

 Result:  

 

Appeal Allowed 3 March 2009 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Land R/O 734-744 Lordship Lane N22 5JP 

 

Proposal:  

 
Condition in dispute is No.5 which state that: The use hereby permitted shall not be 
operated before 0800 or after 2400 hours on any day. 
The reason given for the condition is: To facilitate the beneficial use of the premises whilst 
ensuring that the amenities of adjacent residential properties are not diminished 

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Whitten Representation  
 

Issue:  
 
Whether the condition in dispute is reasonable and necessary in the interests of the amenity 
of adjoining residential occupiers, with particular reference to noise impact late at night 

 

 Result:  

 

Appeal Dismissed 2 March 2009 

Ward: Woodside   

Reference Number: HGY/2008/1079 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Ward: Woodside   

Reference Number: HGY/2008/1407 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Page 22



ENFORCEMENT APPEAL MARCH 2009  
 

 
 
 

 

 

69 Wargrave Avenue N15 6TU 

 

Proposal:  

 
Retention of large front and rear dormers  

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Informal Hearing   
 

Issue:  

 
Whether or not he subject development constitutes an appropriate addition to the original 
building in terms of its mass and design and respects the pattern and from of development 
in the environs of the appeal site 
 

Result:  

 

Appeal Dismissed 6 March 2009 
 
 
 

 

 

2A Talbot Road N15 4DH 

 

Proposal:  

 
Change of use to storage of motor vehicles 

 

Type of Appeal: 

 
Public Inquiry    
 

Issue:  

 
That the use occurred on the date of issue of the notice 
 
That a material change of use has occurred 
 
The there is no evidence that the use had occurred more than 10 years ago 
 
 

Result:  

 

Appeal Dismissed 6 March 2009 

Ward: Seven Sisters 

Reference Number: N/A 

Decision Level: Enforcement  

Ward: Tottenham Green  

Reference Number: N/A 

Decision Level: Enforcement  

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$$%$&'()**%++,,

!""#$%!&$'()*+,%$+,+*-(+,.*+,#,/!&,+*"'0,.)*1,&0,,(

-#(.&/)0$1'!#!,/2

345'678'9:594;8'4<'678'"4=>?'&4@85AB8A6'C#==8;;'64'%A<45B>6D4AE'#=6'FGHIJ'678'K>=LM54:AN'9>985;'DA'58;98=6'4<'678'

<4??4ODAM'D68B;'=4B95D;8'678'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'=>;8'<D?8P

+78'9?>AADAM';6><<'>AN'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'=>;8'<D?8;'>58'?4=>68N'>6'QRG'SDM7'/4>NJ'"4AN4A'$FT'H-1P'#99?D=>6D4A;'=>A'K8'

DA;98=68N'>6'674;8'4<<D=8;'GPUU>B'V'IPUU9BJ'*4AN>W'V'35DN>WP'(>;8')<<D=85;'OD??'A46'K8'>@>D?>K?8'OD674:6'>994DA6B8A6P

%A'>NND6D4A'>99?D=>6D4A'=>;8'<D?8;'>58'>@>D?>K?8'64'@D8O'95DA6'>AN'N4OA?4>N'<588'4<'=7>5M8'@D>'678'S>5DAM8W'(4:A=D?'O8K;D68X'

OOOP7>5DAM8WPM4@P:L

354B'678'74B89>M8'<4??4O'678'?DAL;'64'Y9?>AADAMZ'>AN'Y@D8O'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A;Z'64'<DAN'678'>99?D=>6D4A';8>5=7'<>=D?D6WP'

,A685'678'>99?D=>6D4A'58<858A=8'A:BK85'45';D68'>NN58;;'64'5865D8@8'678'=>;8'N86>D?;P

+78'18@8?49B8A6'(4A654?'2:99456'+8>B'=>A'MD@8'<:56785'>N@D=8'>AN'=>A'K8'=4A6>=68N'4A'U[U'H\HG'IIUHJ'

GPUU>B'V'IPUU9BJ'*4AN>W'V'35DN>WP

2345647558*!(+*2845947558

:!.$(/,;*%'-(%$#

Page 27



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'['4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

!<=>?@AB?^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845239 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'N86>=78N'M>5>M8'64'58>5'>AN'=58>6D4A'4<'@87D=?8'=54;;4@85'64'(58;=8A6'/4>NJ'$[[P

''F''#?K856'/4>N''$[['T##''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845233 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,_68A;D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'M54:AN'<?445'<?>6'DA64'K>;8B8A6'OD67'?DM76O8??;'64'<54A6'>AN';DN8'>AN'ODAN4O;'64'58>5J'

64'954@DN8'F'_'67588'K8N544B'<?>6P

3?>6'[''FG''(4AD;64A'/4>N''$FU'[-"''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452C6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'358A=7'ODAN4O;'DA'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'=58>6D4A'4<'`:?D86'K>?=4AWP

''[\Q''#?8_>AN5>'!>5L'/4>N''$[['T-&''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AX [U]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845288 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'8_68A;D4A'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'['_'@8?:_'ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'

=4A@85;D4AP

''\''+78'#@8A:8''$FU'[b"''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845766 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'['_'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O;'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'R'_'@8?:_'ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'544<;?498'64'<>=D?D6>68'?4<6'

=4A@85;D4A'>AN'8A?>5M8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''G''1>MB>5'/4>N''$[['T/+''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584573D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/8654;98=6D@8'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'<45'>';DAM?8';6458W'M54:AN'<?445'58>5']';DN8'8_68A;D4AP

''\I''14A4@>A'#@8A:8''$FU'[`0''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX UR]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457D5 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5';DN8'DA<D??'8_68A;D4A'OD67'M?>c8N'544<P

''HF''/4;8K85W'/4>N''$FU'["1''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845653 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'DA685A>?']'8_685A>?'589>D5;'>AN'B4ND<D=>6D4A;'>6'544<'?8@8?P

''F\''">A;N4OA8'/4>N''$FU'[#0''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX UR]U\][UUG&+1

Page 28



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'R'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845626 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''FH''&54@8'#@8A:8''$FU'[#/''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456C3 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''Q''&5>;B858'/4>N''$FU'[1`''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FQ]U\][UUG&+1

1EF@AG*/B==@^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452HH )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''[H''!>?B85;64A'/4>N''$[['H/&''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845235 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

1D;9?>W'4<'['_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'>N@856D;8B8A6'9>A8?;P

''-:;';78?685'4:6;DN8'^>5OD=L'(4:56J''-4:AN;'&588A'/4>N''$FF''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452C9 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'M>K?8'8AN'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'64'<>=D?D6>68'

?4<6'=4A@85;D4AP

''[T''(7:5;64A'&>5N8A;''$FF'[$`''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845752 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/868A6D4A'4<'I'>D5'=4AND6D4ADAM':AD6;'64'544<'4<'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''F''26'*D=7>8?;'+855>=8''$[['T2`''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845738 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'N86>=78N';6:ND4'>AN';645>M8']'4<<D=8'64'F'_'67588'K8N'<?>6J'OD67'5>D;DAM'4<'544<'>AN'858=6D4A'

4<'?DALDAM';DAM?8';6458W'?8>A'64'8_68A;D4AP

3?>6'#J''F[I''*WNN?864A'/4>N''$[['H$&''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX UR]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457C2 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'9?>W'8d:D9B8A6J'6DBK85J'B886DAM';78?685'>AN'\B'7DM7'K>??';649'<8A=DAM'4A'8_D;6DAM'M588A'

;9>=8P

'')98A'">AN'-86O88A''IT'>AN'IG''%B985D>?'/4>N''$H'T-e''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AX UR]U\][UUG&+1

Page 29



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457DC )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A;65:=6D4A'4<'A8O'N445'64'<?>AL'O>??'<>=DAM'+855D=L'/4>NJ'$[[P

''T''26'*D=7>8?;'+855>=8''$[['T2`''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845677 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

1D;9?>W'4<'[PIB'_'\PUB'>N@856D;8B8A6'K4>5N'4A';DN8'O>??P

''\IR''SDM7'/4>N''$[['H`1''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845668 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W';DN8'>AN'58>5'8_68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'F'_'

544<?DM76'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4AP

''RQ''!>?B85;64A'/4>N''$[['H/&''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456D5 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/868A6D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM';749<54A6'>AN'54??85';7:6685P

''QVH''^7D66DAM64A'/4>N''$[['Hf1''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845685 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W';DN8'=4A;85@>645WP

''\Q''*WNN?864A'/4>N''$[['H$^''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG&+1

1BFI=*/BEJ=^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452DC )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856W'DA64'['_'4A8'K8N';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''IF''$8O?WA'/4>N''$FT'Q/e''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845286 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''QU''(78;685'/4>N''$FT'Q-g''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845283 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A;856D4A'4<'A8O';749'<54A6'N445'64'=58>68';89>5>68'>==8;;'64'58;DN8A6D>?'>==4BB4N>6D4AP

''\U''!7D?D9'">A8''$FI'\`-''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX [\]UR][UUG/,3

Page 30



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'I'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845773 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'8_68A;D4AP

''FG''^7D6?8W'/4>N''$FT'Q/`''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457H6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/8<:5KD;7B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'S*)'CS4:;8'DA'*:?6D9?8')==:9>6D4AEJ'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4A'

>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''\G''#5A4?N'/4>N''$FI'\`3''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457DD )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'9549856W'DA64'['_'67588'K8N';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''F\F''*4:A6'!?8>;>A6'/4>N''$FT'Q+b''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG/,3

%BEFIK*,@A^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755D42539 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'H'C=?DAL85'>AN'46785'K4:AN>5W'O>??;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'

58<858A=8'S&f][UUQ][[R\P

''(4?85DNM8'!5DB>5W'2=744?J''(54:=7',AN'SD??''$H'H#+''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX FH]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755D427H6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A;'R'C8_685A>?'B>685D>?;E'>AN'I'C7>5N'?>AN;=>9DAME'>66>=78N'64'

9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'S&f][UUQ][[R\P

''(4?85DNM8'!5DB>5W'2=744?J''(54:=7',AN'SD??''$H'H#+''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX FH]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457CD )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5';DN8'8_68A;D4AP

''Q#''&?>;;?WA'/4>N''$H'H/S''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845657 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'67588';>;7'ODAN4O;'OD67'N4:K?8'M?>c8N'8A85MW'8<<D=D8A6'M?>;;';>;7'ODAN4O;P

''RU''(54:=7'S>??'/4>N''$H'HS`''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845699 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5';DN8'8_68A;D4AP

''\''&?>;;?WA'/4>N''$H'H/S''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

Page 31



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'Q'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456HD )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458WJ'6DBK85'<5>B8NJ'M?>c8N'=4A;85@>645WJ'>6'M54:AN'<?445'<?>6P

''R''(8=D?8'!>5L''$H'G#e''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584595C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'=54OA'58N:=6D4A'>AN'58B4@DAM'89D=45BD='M54O67'4<'F'_'=78;6A:6'6588P'(54OA'

58N:=8'F'K5>A=7'4@857>AMDAM'N5D@8O>W'>AN'F'K5>A=7'M54ODAM'64O>5N;'74:;8'KW'[Ii'64'58N:=8'

8A=54>=7B8A6'4<'4A8'"4AN4A'!?>A8P

''[I''26>A7498'/4>N''$Q'I#^''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845932 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'!:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'R'C;>B9?8'B>685D>?;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'

58<858A=8'S&f][UUH]UGFUP

''R\''2789785N;'SD??''$Q'I#S''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

LEBMNG*/B==@^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845289 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'=54OA'58N:=6D4A'KW'[IiJ'=54OA'?D<6'>AN'58B4@>?'4<'4A8'?4O'K5>A=7'4<'F'_')>L'6588P

''[\''-88=7'15D@8''$['G$f''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584572D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'=4A@85;D4A'4<'544<'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'I'_'@8?:_'

ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4AP

''FR''&588A7>B'/4>N''$FU'F"$''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845795 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#B8ANB8A6'64'958@D4:;'>99?D=>6D4A'58<858A=8'S&f][UU\]FGUT'<45'=58>6D4A'4<'<54A6'?DM76O8??'>AN'

8_68A;D4A'4<'58>5'9>6D4P

''RG''345NDAM64A'/4>N''$Q'\+1''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845735 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'3?>6;'FJ'\'j'H'OD67DA'678'9549856W'>;'R';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''IF''b:88A;'#@8A:8''$FU'R!,''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584573H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''T[''+OW<45N'#@8A:8''$['G$"''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG!,/*'/,b

Page 32



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'T'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457D9 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'4<'9549856W'<54B')<<D=8'C-FE'64'BDAD'=>K'4<<D=8'CA4A'5>ND4'=4A654??8NEP

''R[U#''1:L8;'*8O;J'*:;O8??'SD??''$FU'[b!''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX U[]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845656 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'['_'@8?:_'ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'544<;?498'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'

=4A@85;D4AP

''RI''&588A7>B'/4>N''$FU'F"$''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX U[]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845659 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'945=7'8_68A;D4A'4<'\PQ;dB'=4A6>DADAM'^(P

''QI''(499866;'/4>N''$FU'F`S''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX U[]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845623 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'['_'@8?:_'ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'544<;?498'64'<>=D?D6>68'?4<6'

=4A@85;D4AP

''FU''!>M8;'">A8''$FU'F!2''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX UG]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456D2 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/8B4@>?'4<'8_D;6DAM'ODAN4OJ'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<';B>??85'>?:BDAD:B'N4:K?8'M?>c8N'ODAN4O'>AN'DA<D??'4<'8_D;6DAM'

498ADAM'OD67'=8N>5'=?>NNDAMP

''(78;685'S4:;8J''RU'!>M8;'">A8''$FU'F!/''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG&+1

:?BBN@O?P^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845723 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W';DN8']'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''F''#6685K:5W'/4>N''$\'F23''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX [\]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584579D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W';DN8'8_68A;D4AP

''"DK856W'(7:5=7J''354KD;785'/4>N''$H'Ube''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584569D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A6DA:>6D4A'4<':;8'4<'958BD;8;'=4B95D;DAM'>'N>A=8'954N:=6D4A'>AN'74?D;6D='W4M>';6:ND4'>6'M54:AN'<?445'

?8@8?J'>AN'>'6O4'K8N544B'<?>6'>6'<D5;6'<?445'?8@8?P

''GR#''3>?L?>AN'/4>N''$H'U$2''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FQ]U\][UUG&+1

Page 33



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'H'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584563C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'-F'CK:;DA8;;'4<<D=8;EP

''TVT#''^D??4:M7KW'/4>N''$H'US/''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845997 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'T';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'58;DN8A6D>?':AD6;P

''QR''^DM76B>A'/4>N''$\'F/`''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG&+1

:NOKO?M=^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755D4763H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'544<'649'>NND6D4A'64'.8B964A'S4:;8'64'K8':;8N'DA'=4AA8=6D4A'OD67'>A'8_D;6DAM'649'<?445'<?>6P

3?>6'[''.8B964A'S4:;8J''I['(74?B8?8W'!>5L''$Q'I,/''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AX UR]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452C7 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'R'_'4A8'K8N'<?>6;'4@85'<D5;6J';8=4AN'>AN'67D5N'<?445;P

''[I\''#5=7O>W'/4>N''$Q'I#e''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452D6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DN8'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'<54A6']'58>5'@8?:_'ODAN4O;

''QF''$4567'/4>N''$Q'\-`''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584575H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'<8??DAM'64'M54:AN'?8@8?'>AN'94D;4A'678'5446'4<'F'_'">O;4A'(W958;;'6588'>6'<54A6'4<'

9549856WP

''F\''24:67O44N'">OA'/4>N''$Q'I23''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845777 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,_68A;D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'B>A;>5N'544<J'8_68A;D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'['_'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O;'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'

;8=4AN'<?445'8_68A;D4AP

''QG''(74?B8?8W'(58;=8A6''$Q'I,e''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX [I]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845776 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

SD9'64'M>K?8'>AN'A8O'544<'8_68A;D4A'OD67'DA;86D4A'4<'544<?DM76'64'<54A6'544;?498P

''TF''(74?B8?8W'(58;=8A6''$Q'I,e''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX [I]UR][UUG&+1

Page 34



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'G'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584577H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'6DBK85'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'6DBK85'N445;P

3?>6'#J''II''+>?K46'/4>N''$Q'\be''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584577C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4A'>6'K>;8B8A6'?8@8?J'DA;856D4A'4<';LW?DM76;'>AN'=58>6D4A'4<'?DM76O8??;P

''+588'+49J''(4B964A'#@8A:8''$Q'\"S''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845765 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''F\''278?N4A'#@8A:8''$Q'\`+''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584576C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8';6458W'8_68A;D4AJ'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AJ'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'

N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'['_'@8?:_'ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4AP

''F[Q''#5=7O>W'/4>N''$Q'I-S''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845797 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'58B4@>?'4<'K5>A=7'<54B'S45;8'(78;6A:6'>AN'N8>N'O44NDAMJ'58B4@>?'4<'=54;;DAM'

K5>A=78;'>AN'=54OA'67DAADAM'KW'FIi'64'(49985'-88=7'>6'58>5'4<'9549856WP

''FG''$4567'/4>N''$Q'\-1''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584579H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/8B4@>?'>AN'58=4A;65:=6D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'544<J'>NND6D4A'4<'945=7'64'<54A6'8A65>A=8'>AN'K466?8'K>?:;65>N8;'64'

;DN8'8_68A;D4A;P

''[\''278?N4A'#@8A:8''$Q'\`+''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457HD )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'45>AM85W'>AN';DN8'=>A49W'>58>P

*>MA4?D>'S4:;8''''-?44B<D8?N'/4>N''$Q'\,+''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457D3 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'6DBK85'K:D?NDAM'DA'58>5'M>5N8A'C58654;98=6D@8EP

''RR''+>?K46'/4>N''$Q'\b2''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845785 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'6DBK85'K:D?NDAM'DA'58>5'M>5N8A'C58654;98=6D@8EP

''FH''(74?B8?8W'(58;=8A6''$Q'IS#''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG/,3

Page 35



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FU'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845787 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'=54OA'58N:=6D4A'64'958@D4:;'94DA6;'4<'F'_'$45O>W'*>9?8'6588'>6'58>5'4<'9549856WP

''\''.DAM;?8W'!?>=8''$Q'I,#''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845786 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'?D<6DAM'4<'=54OA'>AN'58B4@>?'4<'6O4'?4O8;6'K5>=78;'64'F'_'#:;65D>A'!DA8'>6'<54A6'4<'

9549856WP

''FI''18A8O44N'/4>N''$Q'\#b''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845652 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'58N:=6D4A'4<'=54OA'KW'A4'B458'67>A'RUi'4<'F'_'2W=>B458'6588'>6'58>5'4<'9549856WP'

#??'K5>A=7'58N:=6D4A;';74:?N'K8'B>N8'64'?D@8'M54O67'94DA6;'>6'?8>;6'F]R'678'ND>B8685'4<'678'9>58A6'K5>A=7P

''H>''^8BK:5W'/4>N''$Q'I!0''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845697 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458W'F'K8N544B'B8O;'74:;8'OD67'M>5>M8P

''H''^8BK:5W'*8O;''$Q'Ie`''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG/,3

:EB@G=P^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452DD )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'64'9>56'4<'678'!:B974:;8'<54B'0;8'(?>;;8;'1F']'#R'64'0;8'(?>;;8;'1F'CA4AV58;DN8A6D>?'

DA;6D6:6D4A;EJ'#F'C;749;EJ'#['C<DA>A=D>?']'954<8;;D4A>?';85@D=8;EJ'#R'C58;6>:5>A6;'j'=><8;E'>AN'-F'

CK:;DA8;;EP

''!:B9'S4:;8J''$8O'/D@85'#@8A:8''$H'Tb1''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845757 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'>?:BDAD:B'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'

ODAN4O;P

''#:N?8W'S4:;8J''(>B9;<D8?N'/4>N''$H'T!g''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845759 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8VM?>c8N'6DBK85'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''.4K?8Ac'S4:;8']'/78DA'S4:;8''$8O?>AN'/4>N']'(>B9;<D8?N'/4>N''$H'T-S''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845753 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''+D@8AN>?8J''-544L'/4>N''$H'T##''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

Page 36



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FF'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584575C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

'',?M>5J'3?8BDAM'>AN'SD??>5WJ''-4W64A'(?4;8''$H'T-1''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584575D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''278??8WJ''-4W64A'/4>N''$H'T-,''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845758 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''&44NODA'(4:56J''(>B9;K4:5A8'/4>N''$H'T#+''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845725 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''(7>=8O>685J''-4W64A'/4>N''$H'T#-''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845722 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''+8AAW;4A'S4:;8J''-4W64A'/4>N''$H'T#e''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845727 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8VM?>c8N'6DBK85'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;]N445;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:P

''(>B9;<D8?N'S4:;8'>AN'&D??866'S4:;8J''(>B9;<D8?N'/4>N''$H'T#/''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845726 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8VM?>c8N'6DBK85'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'8A65>A=8'N445'OD67'A8O'

N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:P

''S4A8WB8>NJ''(>B9;<D8?N'/4>N''$H'T#$''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845729 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8VM?>c8N'6DBK85'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'8A65>A=8'N445'OD67'A8O'

N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:P

''^>6'+W?85'S4:;8J''-4W64A'/4>N''$H'T#0''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584572H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8VM?>c8N'6DBK85'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'8A65>A=8'N445'OD67'A8O'

N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:P

''*WNN8?64A'S4:;8J''(>B9;<D8?N'/4>N''$H'T#!''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

Page 37



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'F['4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845763 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'8_D;6DAM'F;6'<?445'O45L;749'64'FVK8N'<?>6P

F''$DM76DAM>?8'*8O;J''$DM76DAM>?8'">A8''$H'T/#''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457D6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8'M?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'N4:K?8'M?>c8N'!a(0'ODAN4O;'>AN'F'_'

LD6=78A'N445P

3?>6'Q'',?M>5'S4:;8J''-4W64A'(?4;8''$H'T-1''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584578D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

1D;9?>W'4<'['_'8_685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'54??8N'<>;=D>'9>A8?;J'F'_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N''1]2'954k8=6DAM';DMA'

>AN'F'_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'1]2'DA685A>?';:;98AN8N';DMAP

''IT''+4668A7>B'">A8''$H'G-1''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845676 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8VM?>c8N'6DBK85'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''S>5@8W'S4:;8J''!8BK54L8'/4>N''$H'T!0''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845669 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8VM?>c8N'6DBK85'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'<54A6'8A65>A=8'N445;'OD67'A8O'

N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''*4458'S4:;8J''!8BK54L8'/4>N''$H'T!e''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845693 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'O44N8A'ODAN4O;']'N445;'OD67'O7D68'0!a('N4:K?8'M?>c8N'ODAN4O;']'N445;P

T''*WNN8?64A'S4:;8J''(>B9;<D8?N'/4>N''$H'T#!''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845635 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'DA<D??'8_68A;D4AJ'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'['@8?:_'

ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'544<;?498P

''QU''-88=7O44N'/4>N''$H'T$&''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845955 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856W'DA64'6O4';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;'DA=45945>6DAM';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''F[[''/>67=44?8'&>5N8A;''$H'G!&''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584599C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'F['C=8A65>?'ND;7']'>85D>?';W;68BE'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'

985BD;;D4A'58<858A=8'S&f][UUT]FIFHP

''!8A;64=L'S4:;8J''$8O?>AN'/4>N''$H'T#`''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

Page 38



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FR'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558459CH )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'Q'C?8@8?;'>AN'K4:AN>5W'658>6B8A6;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'

985BD;;D4A'58<858A=8'S&f][UUT]FIFHP

''">AN'58>5'4<'\[V\H''$8O?>AN'/4>N''$H''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX [T]UR][UUG&+1

QFGR=<<*:N<<^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755C47237 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'G'CK4:AN>5W'658>6B8A6;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'

58<858A=8'S&f][UUQ]F\GTP

FV\'(4AA>:M76'S4:;8''RH''(4AA>:M76'&>5N8A;''$FU'R"S''

":L8'*=245D?8W

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755D45697 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'H'C58<:;8'O>;68';645>M8'>AN'58=W=?DAME'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'

985BD;;D4A'58<858A=8'S&f][UUQ]F\GTP

''(4AA>:M76'S4:;8J''RH'(4AA>:M76'&>5N8A;''$FU'R"S''

":L8'*=245D?8W

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452CH )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'<54A6'O>??'>AN'8_=>@>6D4A'4<'<54A6'M>5N8A'64'<45B'A8O'N5D@8O>W'>AN'<54A6'>==8;;P

''I''&54;@8A45'&>5N8A;''$FU'R+-''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX FH]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845755 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(58>6D4A'4<'@87D=?8'=54;;4@85'64'>'=?>;;D<D8N'54>NP

''I\''*:;O8??'SD??'/4>N''$FU'R`/''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX [\]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584576D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'@8?:_'ODAN4O;'64'<54A6'>AN'58>5'544<;?498;'64'<>=D?D6>68'

?4<6'=4A@85;D4AP

''FR''3D5;'#@8A:8''$FU'R"f''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457H3 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

1D;9?>W'4<'F'_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'>AN'F'_'954k8=6DAM';DMAP

3?>6'[T''a85W>A'(4:56J''!>5L'/4>N''$H'H`/''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845732 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'F\'_';688?'M588AV=4>68N'94?8;'<45';:;98A;D4A'4<'AW?4A'A866DAM'64'78DM76'4<'QP\B'>54:AN'68AAD;'

=4:56;P

S>A?8W'">OA'+8AAD;'(?:KJ''(54:=7',AN'!?>WDAM'3D8?N;J''!>5L'/4>N''$H'H``''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX UR]U\][UUG&+1

Page 39



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'F\'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584573C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856W'DA64'['_';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;J'OD67'858=6D4A'4<';DN8'8_68A;D4A'64'>==4BB4N>68'

;6>D5=>;8J'589?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'M>5>M8'OD67';8=:58'KD=W=?8';6458J'>AN'=7>AM8;'64'58>5'<8A8;65>6D4AP

''GI''^44N'a>?8''$FU'R1"''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX U[]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457CC )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O'KDA';6458'64'58>5'4<'K:D?NDAMP

''/D;K454:M7'(?4;8J''*:;O8??'SD??''$FU'R!"''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457D7 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'N5>ODAM'DA'4<'=54OA'?>685>?;J'5>D;DAM'4<'=54OA'64'IB'>AN'58B4@>?'4<'>??'N8>NJ'

ND;8>;8N'>AN'NWDAM'O44N'<54B'=54OA'4<'F'_'#6?>A6D='(8N>5'>6'<54A6'4<'9549856WP

''FQ''(5>AB458'^>W''$FU'R+!''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845672 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';688?'<5>B8N';DAM?8VM?>c8N'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8VM?>c8N'!a(V:'ODAN4O;P

''^4?@8564AJ''^>5A85'/4>N''$H'TS#''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845673 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

a>5D>6D4A'4<'(4AND6D4A'F'C'74:5;'4<'4985>6D4AE'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'58<858A=8'S&f][UU\]U[FF'

64'>??4O'9:K?D='74:;8']'58;6>:5>A6'64'4985>68'<54B'UHUU'74:5;'64'[RRU'74:5;'2:AN>W;'64'+7:5;N>W;J'OD67'

@>=>6D4A'4<'958BD;8;'KW'UUUU'74:5;'CBDNADM76E'J'>AN'UHUU'74:5;'64'UUUU'74:5;'CBDNADM76E'35DN>W;'>AN'

2>6:5N>W;'>AN'->AL'S4?DN>W;'OD67'@>=>6D4A'4<'958BD;8;'KW'UURU'74:5;P

''HT''*:;O8??'SD??'-54>NO>W''$FU'RS#''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584567C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'\'C<8A8;65>6D4AE'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'58<858A=8'

S&f][UUH]FITQP

''H[''295DAM<D8?N'#@8A:8''$FU'R2f''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX F\]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845666 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

345B>6D4A'4<'@87D=?8'=54;;4@85'64'>'=?>;;D<D8N'54>NP

''FFF''!5D45W'/4>N''$H'H"f''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584566C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O';749<54A6P

[T''a85W>A'(4:56J''!>5L'/4>N''$H'H`/''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456H5 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<';?DNDAM'>:64B>68N'M>68;'64'<54A6'4<'9549856WJ'<>K5D=>68N'DA'BD?N';688?'>AN'9>DA68N'K?>=LP

''I\''*:;O8??'SD??'/4>N''$FU'R`/''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG/,3

Page 40



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FI'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456D6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''Q''+49;<D8?N'/4>N''$H'H2$''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX FQ]U\][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845965 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''[R[''!>5L'/4>N''$H'H`e''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

(E=<*"?BS^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845236 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856W'DA64'R'_';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;J'8A6>D?DAM'N8B4?D6D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'

8_68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''T''-5>B964A'!>5L'/4>N''$[['Q-&''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452C3 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856W'64'F'_'67588'K8N'>AN'['_'4A8'K8N'<?>6;P

''\F''#?8_>AN5>'/4>N''$H'U!$''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452C8 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'<D5;6'<?445'8_68A;D4A'>AN'=4A@85;D4A'4<':9985'<?445;'DA64'F'_';6:ND4'>AN'['_'4A8'K8N'<?>6;P

''\IF''"45N;7D9'">A8''$[['I1`''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845737 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';8=4AN'<?445'58>5'544<'8_68A;D4A'OD67'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''R''a85A4A'/4>N''$H'Ub1''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845736 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(58>6D4A'4<'>A'#['586>D?':;8'hh!54<8;;D4A>?'j'3DA>A=D>?'285@D=8;hP

*>??'.D4;L'[J''+78'*>??'27499DAM'(D6WJ''SDM7'/4>N''$[['Qf1''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845739 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856W'DA64'6O4';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''RI''*45?8W'#@8A:8''$[['Q"f''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG/,3

Page 41



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FQ'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845789 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'-F'C-:;DA8;;E'64'1F'C$4AV58;DN8A6D>?'DA;6D6:6D4AEP

''R'^8??DAM64A'+855>=8J''+:5A9DL8'">A8''$H'U!e''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584565C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'O44N8A'ODAN4O;']'N445;'OD67'0!a('N4:K?8'M?>c8N'K54OA']'O7D68'ODAN4O;']'

N445;P

''G[''+78'2>AN?DAM;''$[['Qe2''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845658 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

1D;9?>W'4<'F_'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMAP

*>5L;'>AN'298A=85J''\Q''SDM7'/4>N''$[['Q-e''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584562H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

1D;9?>W'4<'F'_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'>AN'F'_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'954k8=6DAM';DMAP

''HH''SDM7'/4>N''$[['QS,''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584563D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'K>=L'>NND6D4A'64';6:ND4'<?>6'OD67'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

'''TI''^8;6K:5W'#@8A:8''$[['Q2#''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456D9 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/8654;98=6D@8'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'<45'5868A6D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'=>A49WP

''TT''^8;6K:5W'#@8A:8''$[['Q2#''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG/,3

(EBMKFTU=B<?@A*"?BS^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584523D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'=5D66>?'ODAN4O;'OD67'!a('O7D68'N4:K?8'M?>c8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'N445;

''FVRG''-8AA866;'(?4;8''$FT'US1''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452DH )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'['_';LW?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4AP

''F''!>5L'#@8A:8'/4>N''$FT'USe''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX [U]UR][UUG/,3

Page 42



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FT'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845782 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'=5D66>??'ODAN4O;'OD67'!a('O7D68'N4:K?8'M?>c8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'N445;P

''[VR[''-8AA866;'(?4;8''$FT'US1''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845783 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A6DA:8N':;8'4<'?>AN'>;'>'=>5'9>5L'<45'\Q'=>5;'>AN'678'5868A6D4A'4<'>';DAM?8';6458W'K:D?NDAM'<45':;8'>;'>'

B8BK85h;'=?:K'4<<D=8'<45'>'<:56785'68B945>5W'985D4N'4<'67588'W8>5;P

''2D68'`:A=6D4A'^45=8;685'#@8A:8'>AN''!>_64A'/4>N''$FT'U-!''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845629 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'[';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''[F''/:;LDA'/4>N''$FT'H$1''

/:B>'$4O>c

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG!,/*'/,b

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845667 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'ODAN4O;'OD67'!a(:'O7D68'N4:K?8'M?>c8N':AD6;J'DA=?:NDAM'678'95D@>68'K>?=4AW'

N445;P

FV[\''^44N'*8>NJ''&5>AM8'/4>N''$FT'U,+''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AX FG]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845695 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'9549856WJ'=4A;D;6DAM'4<'H'K8N;D6;'4A'<D5;6'>AN';8=4AN'<?445;J'DA64'<4:5';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'

<?>6;P

''QHHVQGU''SDM7'/4>N''$FT'U#,''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FQ]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584569H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''RQ''!>5L'">A8''$FT'U`+''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG!,/*'/,b

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456CH )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'6DBK85']'!a(0'K54OA'=>;8B8A6'ODAN4O;'OD67'!a(0'N4:K?8'M?>c8N'K54OA'

ODAN4O;P

''F[T''$4567:BK85?>AN'!>5L''$FT'U+"''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX FQ]U\][UUG&+1

)M*!@@G^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584528H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

a>5D>6D4A'4<'(4AND6D4A'['C4985>6DAM'74:5;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'S&f]IFQ\R'64'>??4O'498ADAM'

74:5;'4<'UHPUU'74:5;'64'FHPUU'74:5;'*4AN>W'64'2>6:5N>W'>AN'FUPUU'64'FQPUU'4A'2:AN>W

''[''S>55DAM>W'/4>N''$FI'R`1''

)?D@85'(75D;6D>A

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG/,3

Page 43



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FH'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584577D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'O44N8A'<5>B8N'ODAN4O'OD67'0!a('O7D68'ODAN4O;P

''F\'(78NO4567'S4:;8J''[[T'^8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'I,S''

*8M>A'(4=75>A8

18=D;D4AX [\]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457C5 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'[';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''R\''/D6=78;'/4>N''$FI'R+-''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX [T]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845696 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'C#FE'586>D?P

''TR\VTRQ''28@8A'2D;685;'/4>N''$FI'I$S''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

)=J=@*)NGM=BG^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845222 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'<54A6'>AN'58>5'?4<6'8_68A;D4AP

''F''&54@8?>AN;'/4>N''$FI'Q-2''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452H2 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

18B4?D6D4A'>AN'58K:D?NDAM'4<'8_D;6DAM'78>N74:;8'DA'45N85'64':9M5>N8'8_D;6DAM'=44?DAM';W;68B'64'aD=645D>'

"DA8P

''"0"'*DNV+:AA8?'a8A6'27><6J''$8678564A'/4>N''$FI''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845232 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/8B4@>?'4<'8_D;6DAM'58>5';DN8'8?8@>6D4A'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'358A=7'N445;l'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'

589?>=8B8A6'ODAN4O;

''QQ''S8W;7>B'/4>N''$FI'QS"''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845237 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A;'I'C8_65>=6'<>A;EJ'Q'C58;6>:5>A6'?>W4:6E'>AN'T'C;645>M8']'

=4??8=6D4A'4<'58<:;8E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'S&f][UUH][[FHP

''\I''&54@8?>AN;'/4>N''$FI'Q-+''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457C6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'<54A6'>AN'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O;'>AN'>?685>6D4A'4<'544<'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8'64'<>=D?D6>68'?4<6'

=4A@85;D4AP

''R\''&?>N8;B458'/4>N''$FI'Q+-''

)?D@85'(75D;6D>A

18=D;D4AX [T]UR][UUG/,3

Page 44



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FG'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845627 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'8_68A;D4AP

''\I''SD??;DN8'/4>N''$FI'Q"0''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845638 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''T''(>N4_64A'#@8A:8''$FI'Q"-''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG/,3

)MBEFA*/B==@^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558455C3 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#?685>6D4A;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4A'64'>??4O'<45'678'<45B>6D4A'4<'6O4'

;6458W'R'K8N544B'74:;8P

''Q\''26>9?864A'S>??'/4>N''$\'\b#''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457C8 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/868A6D4A'4<'\';6:ND4'<?>6;P

''FR''aD=645D>'+855>=8''$\'\1#''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX [T]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584578C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'I'544<V?DM76;'64'=58>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4AP

3?>6'-J''RT''09?>AN;'/4>N''$H'G$$''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845625 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'8A?>5M8N'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'['_';LW?DM76;'64'<54A6'

544<';?498P

''RF1''/DNM8'/4>N''$H'G"`''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584562C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A685A>?'>?685>6D4A;'64'<45B'>';DAM?8'<>BD?W'NO8??DAMP

''FUU''09?>AN;'/4>N''$H'G$`''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX [T]UR][UUG$)+'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584567H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'(>58'S4B8'<45';D_'58;DN8A6;':;DAM';7>58N'<>=D?D6D8;P

''R[''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$\'\,1''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG!,/*'1,a

Page 45



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'[U'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456H9 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''RF#''"45A8'/4>N''$\'R/0''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845636 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'I'CB>A>M8B8A6'9?>AE'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'

58<858A=8'S&f][UUH]FRR\P

''T\''aD=645D>'/4>N''$\'R2"''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX FT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845927 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

345B>6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'['_'=4A;85@>6D4A'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498'64'

=58>68'?4<6'=4A@85;D4AP

''[I''*4:A6'!?8>;>A6'(58;=8A6''$\'\S!''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG&+1

&EMM=@K?T*/B==@^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755D4286H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/8654;98=6D@8'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'<45'5868A6D4A'4<'6DBK85'<5>B8N'K:D?NDAM'<45':;8'>;'>56D;6h;';6:ND4P

''Q[''-8>=4A;<D8?N'/4>N''$FI'\2`''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX [\]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558452D7 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A;'\'C7>5N'?>AN;=>9DAMEJ'T'C=8A65>?'ND;7']'>85D>?';W;68BEJ'G'C;D68'

DA@8;6DM>6D4AEJ'FF'CKDA';6458EJ'F['CFUi'58N:=6D4A'4<'=>5K4A'8BD;;D4A;EJ''FR'C<4:AN>6D4A;E'>AN'(4AND6D4A'F\'

C=W=?8'5>=L;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'58<858A=8'S&f][UUQ]UGRRP

''">AN'>6'^DAA;'*8O;'C)<<'&54@8'!>5L'/4>NE''''$FI''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX RF]UR][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845655 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'C#IE'6>L8V>O>W'>AN'C#RE'=><8P

''R[Q-''SDM7'/4>N''$FI'\-$''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG$)+'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584567D )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'>?:BDAD:B'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;']'N445;'OD67'O7D68'0!a('ODAN4O;']'N445;P

''FG''26>B<45N'(?4;8''$FI'\!e''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456HH )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

1D;9?>W'4<'R'_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'>AN'['_'DA685A>??W'D??:BDA>68N'A4AV<>;=D>';DMA;P

''FGRVFGT''-54>N'">A8''$FI'\b2''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG/,3

Page 46



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'[F'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456D7 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'B86>?'ODAN4O;']'N445;'OD67'7>5NO44N'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;']'N445;P

3?>6'FJ''RU''/:;;8??'/4>N''$FI'I"2''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX UH]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845993 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'\'C;D68'DA@8;6DM>6D4AE'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'S&f]'

[UUG]UFFQ

''0AD6'FJ'/>AM8B445'/4>N'%AN:;65D>?',;6>68J''-85A>5N'/4>N''$FI'\$,''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG&+1

&EMM=@K?T*:?<=^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845282 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''FUR''27855DAM7>B'#@8A:8''$FT'G/+''

,?Dc>K867',AADAV&W>;D

18=D;D4AX FT]UR][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584579C )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'954k8=6D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4A'64'=58>68'['_'

F'K8N';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''RT\''SDM7'/4>N''$FT'GSf''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584565H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM'O44N8A'<5>B8N'ODAN4O;']'N445;'OD67'O7D68'!a('ODAN4O;']'N445;P

''FUQ''/88N7>B'(?4;8''$FT'G!0''

`47A')M8AM>'!h">L49

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;475584566H )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'M54:AN'<?445'8_68A;D4AJ'>AN'589?>=8B8A6'4<'8_D;6DAM';DAM?8'M?>c8N'6DBK85'

ODAN4O;'OD67'N4:K?8'M?>c8N'ODAN4O;P

''\''">A;N4OA8'/4>N''$FT'Ge,''

`8<<58W'S4?6

18=D;D4AX UF]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845663 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'8_68A;D4A'64'8_D;6DAM';749':AD6J'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'8_685A>?'8B85M8A=W';6>D5'

>==8;;'<54B'M54:AN'64'<D5;6'<?445X''(4A@85;D4A'4<':9985'<?445;'64'F'_'6O4'K8N'>AN'['_'4A8'K8N';8?<'

=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''\UQ''SDM7'/4>N''$FT'G`-''

)?D@85'(75D;6D>A

18=D;D4AX F\]U\][UUG&+1

0=GM*/B==@^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845772 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'9>56'4<'8_D;6DAM'58>5'N45B85P

''RG''*>AA4=L'/4>N''$[['Q#-''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AX [I]UR][UUG&+1

Page 47



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'[['4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457DH )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'678'8_D;6DAM';78?685'DA'678'58>5'M>5N8A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O';78?685'64'=58>68'>';B4LDAM'>58>'

64'678'58>5'4<'678'8_D;6DAM'=><8P

''\I\''^8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'R!+''

+>5>'`>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG&+1

0KNM=*:?BM*#?@=^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845788 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

/868A6D4A'4<'8_D;6DAM'544<P

''F\H''/D;?8W'#@8A:8''$FT'T,/''

a>?85D8')L8DWD

18=D;D4AX UT]U\][UUG/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456C2 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''TF''/D;?8W'#@8A:8''$FT'TS`''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG!,/*'1,a

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558456C7 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';645W'58>5'8_68A;D4AP

''FII''/D;?8W'#@8A:8''$FT'TS!''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG!,/*'1,a

0EEAGNA=^#/1X

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;4755845762 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

0;8'4<'9549856W'>;'6O4';8?<V=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''FI''24?O>W'/4>N''$[['I-e''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX [Q]UR][UUG!,/*'/,b

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457H2 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'=>;7'94DA6'B>=7DA8P

''RIH''SDM7'/4>N''$[['H`^''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX FI]U\][UUG&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558457HC )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

#9954@>?')<'186>D?;'4A'(4AND6D4A'R'CB>685D>?;EJ'(4AND6D4A'H'C#5K45D=:?6:5>?'*8674N'26>68B8A6EJ'(4AND6D4A'

FU'C(4A;65:=6D4A'*8674N'26>68B8A6EJ'(4AND6D4A'FR'C18B4?D6D4A'*8674N'26>68B8A6E'>AN'(4AND6D4A'FI'

C38A=DAM'64'24:6785A'-4:AN>5WE'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'58<858A=8'S&f][UUH]UQII'<45'

58N8@8?49B8A6'4<'^44N;DN8'SDM7'2=744?P

''^44N;DN8'SDM7'2=744?J''^7D68'S>56'">A8''$[['Ib`''

/4KDA'(>B9K8??

18=D;D4AX [\]UR][UUG&+1

(EM*!VV<NI?U<=*W*'FMGNA=*1EBEFOK^#/1X

Page 48



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'S>5DAM8W

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'[R'4<'[R

FQ]UR][UUG'>AN'FG]U\][UUG

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558459HC )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

)K;85@>6D4A'64'"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'%;?DAM64A'<45'=7>AM8'4<':;8'4<':9985'<?445;'<54B'>';DAM?8'<4:5'K8N544B'

B>D;4A8668'64'67588';8?<'=4A6>DA8N':AD6;'C4A8'_';6:ND4'9?:;'6O4'_'4A8'K8N544B':AD6;EP

''FIR''2654:N'&588A'/4>N''$\'R!g''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX UG]U\][UUG/$)

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558459C7 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

+78'=4A;65:=6D4A'4<'>'67588';6458W'58;DN8A6D>?'K?4=L'DA'678';DN8'M>5N8A'4<'FI'-?W67O44N'/4>N'64'954@DN8'

<D@8'58;DN8A6D>?':AD6;'C4A8'_'R'K8N544BJ'6O4'_'['K8N544BJ'6O4'_'F'K8N544BEl'N8B4?D6D4A'4<'=4A;85@>645W'

4<'FI'-?W67O44N'/4>Nl'=4BB:A>?'>AN'95D@>68'M>5N8A;'>AN'?>AN;=>9DAM'C)K;85@>6D4A;'64'"P-P'%;?DAM64AEP

''FI''-?W67O44N'/4>N''$\'\,0''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX UG]U\][UUG/$)

#99?D=>6D4A'$4X' :/;47558459C6 )<<D=85X'

!5494;>?X'

18=D;D4A'1>68X'

"4=>6D4AX'

)K;85@>6D4A'64'"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<',A<D8?N'<45'=4A@85;D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'DAN:;65D>?':AD6'DA64';D_';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'

<?>6;'C=4B95D;DAM'4<'R'_'F'K8N'>AN'R'_';6:ND4E'64M86785'OD67'A8O'ODN4O;'64'<54A6'>AN'58>5'8?8@>6D4AP

0AD6'['27><6;K:5W'%AN:;65D>?',;6>68J''[[''-:??'">A8''$FH'F2e''

26:>56'(44L8

18=D;D4AX UG]U\][UUG/)-

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  1 

Planning Committee 11 May 2009 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 
 
 
NATIONAL INDICATOR NI 157 (FORMERLY BV 109) -  
DETERMINING PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
 
March 2009 Performance   
 
In March 2009 there were 140 planning applications determined, with performance 
in each category as follows - 
 
100% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (2 out of 2) 
 
87% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (27 out of 31 cases) 
 
89% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (95 out of 107 cases) 
 
For an explanation of the categories see Appendix I 
 
 
 
Year Performance – 2008/09 
 
In the financial year 2008/09 there were 1879 planning applications determined, 
with performance in each category as follows - 
 
78% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (21 out of 27 cases) 
 
81% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (406 out of 504 cases) 
 
89% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (1205 out of 1348 cases) 
 
 
 
The monthly performance for each of the categories is shown in the following 
graphs: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  2 

Major Applications 2008/09 
 

Percentage of major applications

 determined within 13 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

S
e
p
t

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

2008-09

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Performance

Haringey target

DCLG target

 
 
 
 
Minor Applications 2008/09 
 

Percentage of minor applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

S
e
p
t

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

2008-09

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Performance

Haringey target

DCLG target

 
 
 

Page 54



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  3 

Other applications 2008/09 
 

Percentage of other applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

S
e
p
t

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

2008-09

Performance

Haringey target

DCLG target

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Targets 
 
NI 157 (formerly BV 109) is one of the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) National Indicators for 2008/09. 
 
It sets the following targets for determining planning applications: 
 
a. 60% of major applications within 13 weeks 
b. 65% of minor applications within 8 weeks 
c. 80% of other applications within 8 weeks 
 
Haringey has set its own challenging targets for 2008/09 in relation to NI 157. These 
are set out in Planning Policy & Development (PPD) Business Plan 2008-11 and are 
to determine: 
 
a. 82% of major applications within 13 weeks 
b. 85% of minor applications within 8 weeks 
c. 90% of other applications within 8 weeks 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  4 

Appendix I 
 
 
Explanation of categories  
 
The NI 157 indicator covers planning applications included in the DCLG PS1/2 
statutory return. 
 
It excludes the following types of applications - TPO's, Telecommunications, 
Reserve Matters and Observations. 
 
The definition for each of the category of applications is as follows: 
 
Major applications -  
 
For dwellings, where the number of dwellings to be constructed is 10 or more 
For all other uses, where the floorspace to be built is 1,000 sq.m. or more, or where 
the site area is 1 hectare or more. 
 
Minor application - 
 
Where the development does not meet the requirement for a major application nor 
the definitions of Change of Use or Householder Development. 
 
Other applications - 
 
All other applications, excluding TPO's, Telecommunications, Reserve Matters and 
Observations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  5 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 
 
 
GRANTED / REFUSAL RATES FOR DECISIONS 
 
 
March 2009 Performance 
 
In March 2009, excluding Certificate of Lawfulness applications, there were 112 
applications determined of which: 
 
76% were granted (85 out of 112) 
 
24% were refused (27 out of 112) 
 
 
Year Performance – 2008/09 
 
In the financial year 2008/09, excluding Certificate of Lawfulness applications, there 
were 1546 applications determined of which: 
 
70% were granted (1085 out of 1546) 
 
30% were refused (461 out of 1546) 
 
 
The monthly refusal rate is shown on the following graph: 
 

Percentage of planning applications refused

 2008-2009

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

 
 

Page 57



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  6 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 
 
LOCAL INDICATOR (FORMERLY BV204) -  
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
 
March 2009 Performance   
 
In March 2009 there were 8 planning appeals determined against Haringey's 
decision to refuse planning permission, with performance being as follows - 
 
50% of appeals allowed on refusals (4 out of 8 cases) 
 
50% of appeals dismissed on refusals (18 out of 8 cases) 
 
 
Year Performance – 2008/09  
 
In the financial year 2008/09 there were 116 planning appeals determined against 
Haringey's decision to refuse planning permission, with performance being as 
follows - 
 
36.2% of appeals allowed on refusals (42 out of 116 cases) 
 
63.8% of appeals dismissed on refusals (74 out of 116 cases) 
 
The monthly performance is shown in the following graph: 
 

% of appeals allowed against the 

decision to refuse planning permission 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2008-2009

Performance

LBH target

DCLG target

 

Page 58



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  7 

Last 12 months performance – April 2008 to March 2009  
 
In the 12 month period April 2008 to March 2009 there were 116 planning appeals 
determined against Haringey's decision to refuse planning permission, with 
performance being as follows - 
 
36.2% of appeals allowed on refusals (42 out of 116 cases) 
 
63.8% of appeals dismissed on refusals (74 out of 116 cases) 
 
The monthly performance for this period is shown in the following graph: 
 
 

% of appeals allowed against the 

decision to refuse planning permission

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Apr 08 May 08 June 08 July 08 Aug 08 Sept 08 Oct 08 Nov 08 Dec 08 Jan 09 Feb 09 Mar 09

Performance

LBH Target

DCLG Target

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



DC Statistics – Planning Committee 11.05.09  8 

 
Background/Targets 
 
BV204 is not included in DCLG’s National Indicators for 2008/09. However it has 
been retained as a local indicator. 
 
It sets a target for the percentage of appeals allowed against the authority's decision 
to refuse planning permission.  
 
The target that was set by DCLG in 2007/08 was 30%^ 
 
Haringey has set its own target for 2008/09 in relation to this local indicator. This is 
set out in PPD Business Plan 2008-11.  
 
The target set by Haringey for 2008/09 is 35% 
 
 
 
(^ The lower the percentage of appeals allowed the better the performance) 

Page 60



ENFORCEMENT REPORT FOR MAY COMMITTEE MEETING 

 

ENFORCEMENT INSTRUCTIONS COMPLETED 
All Notices completed were served in March 09 
 

S.330 - REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION SERVED 
12 Buckingham Road, N22 – Structure at rear.  13/03/09 

30 Arcadian Gardens, N22 – Change of use to flats. 24/03/09 

70 Phillip Lane, N15 – Fence at side of property. 25/03/09 

1 Station Road, N22 – Neon sign.   30/03/09 
 

ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED 
845 High Road, N17 – Residential conversion.  11/03/09 

Shop, 210-212 Philip Lane, N15 – Change to social club. 13/03/09 

36 Wycombe Road, N17 – Change of garage to residential. 13/03/09 

r/o 96 Palmerston Road, N22 – change of use to business. 16/03/09 

75 Hermitage Road, N4 - Change of use to flats. 16/03/09 

57 Asplins Road, N17 - Change of use to four flats. 20/03/09 
 

 

TEMPORARY STOP NOTICES SERVED 
None 
 

 

PLANNING CONTRAVENTION NOTICES SERVED 
Unit 3, Imperial Works, Fountayne Road, N15 - Change of use to five flats. 10/03/09 

69 Hornsey Lane, N6 - Change of use to flats. 12/03/09 

171 Harringay Road, N15 - Change of use to eight flats/HMO. 18/03/09 

Unit 10, Fountayne Road, N15 - Change of use to live/work units. 18/03/09 

74 Ferndale Road, N15 - Change of use to flats. 31/03/09 
 

 

 

BREACH OF CONDITIONS NOTICES SERVED 
None 
 

 

PROSECUTIONS SENT TO LEGAL 
26 Mattison Road, N4 - Change of use to two flats. 06/03/09 

26 Grove Park Road, N15 - Change of use to four bedsits. 10/03/09 
 

 

APPEALS/ATTENDANCE 
95 Sydney Road, N8 - Change of use to flats. 17/03/09 
 

 

SUCCESSFUL PROSECUTIONS 
None 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee Report  

Planning Committee 11 May 2009     Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 
  
Reference No: HGY/2009/0219 

 
Ward: Muswell Hill 

 
Date received: 29/01/2009                   
Last amended date: 27/03/09 REV A ; 16/04/09 REV B 
 
Drawing number of plans: HW206-A020, A030, A031, A032, P040 REV A, P099 REV A, 
P100 REV B, P101 REV A, P102 REV A, P103 REV A, P104 REV A, A200 REV A, A201 
REV A, A300 REV A, A301 REV A, A302 REV A & A303 REV A. 
 
Address: Former Hornsey Central Hospital, Park Road N8 
 
Proposal: Demolition of vacant nurses homes and erection of 2 x four storey 
residential blocks with basement car parking, comprising 20 x one bed, 23 x two bed, 
10 x three bed and 3 x four bed units, plus landscaping (Revised Scheme) 
 
Existing Use: Nurses Quarters (Vacant)                                                  
 
Proposed Use: Residential  
 
Applicant: Acorn (Park Road) Limited 
 
Ownership: Private 
 

 
 
 
            

 
PLANNING DESIGNATIONS 
 
Road Network: Classified Road 
 
Officer contact:  
 
Michelle Bradshaw 
P: 020 8489 5280 
E: michelle.bradshaw@haringey.gov.uk 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions and subject to section 106 Legal 
Agreement 
 
SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
The site is part of the former Hornsey Central Hospital (now demolished), and lies 
on the south-west side of Park Road. The development site is approximately 0.39 
hectares (residential site area) and occupies approximately one third of the total 
hospital site. The majority of the site (north-western section) has been 

Agenda Item 11Page 73



Planning Committee Report  

redeveloped as a new Polyclinic/Health Centre with 97 onsite parking spaces. 
The works to this development are nearing completion.  
 
A footpath runs along the southern boundary and across the rear of the site, 
leading to the rear entrance of the Highgate Wood School. On the other side of 
this footpath to the south is Park Road Leisure Centre, a large 2-storey building 
accommodating swimming pools & gyms.  
 
To the rear are playing fields attached to the school and open land (formerly 
tennis courts) which are all designated Metropolitan Open Land.  
 
The Leisure Centre site is located to the south-eastern boundary. Between the 
leisure centre building and the boundary footpath, is a service road and a line of 
parallel parking spaces. The new Health Centre will have parking spaces along 
the northern boundary of the site.  
 
Opposite the site, on the northern side of Park Road, is a terrace of four 2-storey 
houses and Ramsey Court, a 4 storey block of 24 flats set well back from the 
road. Apart from Ramsey Court, the area is predominantly characterised by 2-
storey houses.  
 
The land slopes down from north to south so that the application site is slightly 
lower than the rest of the hospital site. 
 
The nurses quarters remain on the site to the rear, and is the equivalent of 3-
storeys high, having a raised ground floor.  
 
There are 2 mature trees on the site. The site is not within a Conservation Area.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
HGY/2000/1679 – April 2001 permission GRANTED for Demolition of existing 
buildings (except war memorial) and erection of part single/part two storey/part 
three storey building comprising 56 x 1 bed flats (high dependency sheltered 
accommodation) 16 x rehab/respite bed-sit units, healthy living centre, elderly day 
centre, physiotherapy and doctor call centre. Provision of associated parking and 
landscaping (Not Implemented) 
 
HGY/2004/2133 - October 2004 permission GRANTED for demolition of hospital 
buildings (except listed War Memorial), & erection of part 2/part 3 storey Primary 
Health Care Centre, with parking for 103 cars & landscaping (Implemented – 
Building Complete) 
 
HGY/2004/2134 - October 2004 Listed Building Consent GRANTED for Repair & 
restoration of listed War Memorial, & demolition of hospital buildings. 
 
HGY/2006/2317 - November 2006 approval of details in connection with 
permission of October 2004 (HGY/2004/2133). 
 

Page 74



Planning Committee Report  

HGY/2007/1823 - November 2007 permission REFUSED for demolition of former 
Nurses Home and erection of two 4-storey linked blocks providing 70 flats 
comprising 14 x one bed, 50 x two bed and 6 x three bed units and basement 
parking for 61 cars and 70 cycles. Decision UPHELD on Appeal. 
 
HGY/2008/0835 – October 2008 permission REFUSED for demolition of vacant 
nurses home and erection of 2 x four storey residential blocks with basement car 
parking, comprising 22 x one bed, 21 x two bed, 11 x three bed and 4 x four bed 
units, plus landscaping (Revised Scheme). 
 
HGY/2009/0012 – approval of details pursuant to condition 8 (Green Travel Plan) 
attached to October 2004 permission (HGY/2004/2133). 
 
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of vacant Nurses 
Home and erection of 2 x four storey residential blocks with basement car 
parking, comprising 20 x one bed, 23 x two bed, 10 x three bed and 3 x four bed 
units, plus landscaping (Revised Scheme) 
 
Block A would provide 20 “affordable” dwellings (35.71% of the total number of 
units and 40.24% of the total in terms of habitable rooms per hectare), with 4 x 1 
bed, 9 x 2 bed, 4 x 3 bed and 3 x 4 bed. The ground floor flats of Block A each 
have access to a private garden ranging in size from 57m² to 72m². 
 
Block B provides 36 private flats for sale, comprising 16 x 1 bed, 14 x 2 bed and 6 
x 3 bed. The ground and upper floor flats have access to a large communal 
garden area to the west and north-west ends of the site.  
 
The basement provides 44 car parking spaces including 2 disabled spaces, at a 
ratio of 0.77 spaces per unit and 58 cycle parking spaces. 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA) 
Metropolitan Police - Crime Prevention Officer 
 
Haringey Design Team 
Haringey Transportation Department 
Haringey Building Control 
Haringey Arboriculturalist 
Haringey Waste Management Department 
Haringey Strategic and Community Housing 
Haringey Housing Enabling Team 
 

Page 75



Planning Committee Report  

Ward Councillors 
 
Highgate Wood School 
Combined Residents Action Group 
CREOS 
Muswell Hill & Fortis Green Association 
Hornsey CAAC 
Adjoining occupiers – 740 local residents and occupiers 
 
RESPONSES 
 
London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA) 
 
The Brigade is not satisfied with the proposals. This application does not comply 
with Approved Document B. Pt 5, regarding Fire Brigade access and facilities. 
Travel distances from Fire Pump to furthest point in premises in excess of 45 
metres. Guidance note 29 sent of previous occasions. Available in future on 
request. 
 
Note: The scheme has been modified to overcome this objection by the 
provision of a dry riser (shown on site plan). 
 
Metropolitan Police – Crime Prevention Officer 

With reference to this proposed development and request for observations. I have 
previously made comments on this scheme in September 2007 and am 
disappointed that the design and access statement still makes little mention of 
crime or crime prevention. Paragraph 87 of the DCLG Circular 01/2006 states 
that, “Design and Access Statements for outline and detailed applications should 
therefore demonstrate how crime prevention measures have been considered in 
the design of the proposal and how the design reflects the attributes of safe, 
sustainable places set out in Safer Places – the Planning System and Crime 
Prevention (ODPM/Home Office, 2003)”.  

My main concerns are about:  

• The design of the communal entrances, particularly for the block set further 
back from Park Road, Block B. This entrance appears overly recessed with 
poor natural surveillance from properties around it.  

• The need for clear demarcation between semi-public and private space 
within the development and that this “defensible space” is promoted for the 
good of the future residents. There will need to be some form of buffer 
between the communal gardens and the homes of Block B. It is not 
acceptable for a communal garden to directly adjoin the private space of a 
home. Unless a buffer zone and defensible space is created, the 
homeowner will lose all control of the space directly outside their property. 
(Safer Places 2004, p.30) 

• The basement car parking and cycle storage for the development is far 
from ideal. This is obviously located well away from the control and 
surveillance of the building’s users.  

Page 76



Planning Committee Report  

• The perimeter treatment for the scheme should be robust, particularly on 
the south and east side. Similarly, the bin stores can become venues for 
crime without careful and sympathetic design. We can give further advice 
as necessary.  

• It is crucial that the communal door entry systems are of a high security 
standard.   

• The use of good quality lighting, especially on the access points 
throughout the scheme is a key crime prevention measure.  

• The homes would benefit from the enhanced security standards detailed in 
the “Secured by Design Scheme” (www.securedbydesign.com).  

The design and planning stage of the development is the ideal opportunity to 
reduce crime opportunities and provide a sustainable environment for the local 
community. The Crime Prevention Department can meet with the architect or 
developer to discuss the scheme as required. 

Note: There have been some modifications to the scheme to address the 
above points, detailed in section 10 below. 

 
Haringey Building Control 
 
The access for fire fighting vehicles is considered unacceptable as some 
dwellings will be more than 45 metres from the stopping point and there are no 
turning facilities provided to enable egress from the site. 
 
Haringey Transportation Team 
 
This proposed development is on the W7 bus route Park Road and within a short 
walking distance of W3 bus route Priory Road, which combined, offer some 50 
buses per hour (two-way), for frequent bus connection to and from Finsbury Park 
tube station, with Bus Route No.144 present on the latter route providing some 15 
buses per hour (two-way), for bus connections to Turnpike Lane tube station. We 
have subsequently considered that the majority of the prospective residents of 
this development would use sustainable travel modes for their journeys to and 
from the site.  In addition, our interrogation with TRAVL database suggests that 
based on comparable London sites (Grand Union Village - UB5, Kew Riverside -
TW9, Longfield Avenue - NW7 and Yeats Close - NW10), this development 
proposal, some 4000 sq.m GFA, would only generate 15 and 13 combined in and 
out vehicle movements during the morning and evening peak hours respectively. 
We have therefore accepted the applicant's consultant's (Saville Bird and Axon's) 
forecast, which is slightly higher than ours and conclude that these 
supplementary vehicle movements, to the existing vehicle trips associated with 
the approved hospital development abutting this development, would not have 
any significant adverse traffic impact on the adjacent roads. 
The applicant has proposed 44 car parking spaces in line with the UDP parking 
standard, 30 cycle racks which are to be enclosed under a secure shelter and a 
revised access leading to a turning area for servicing vehicles on the ground floor 
and car/cycle parking on the basement level, as indicated on Plan Nos.HW206-

Page 77



Planning Committee Report  

P099 and HW206-P100. However, there is the concern that the cycle parking 
provision for this development proposal is insufficient. Therefore, we will ask that 
the number of cycle racks is increased to 52. We are also concerned that cyclists 
are hindered by the parking pressure which reduces the width of Park Road and 
the general lack of highway safety features for these vulnerable road users on 
this road including around its junction with Park Avenue South. As part of the 
cycling study for this area this year, we have identified a series of measures 
geared towards enhancing the conditions for cyclists at this location, 
encompassing the construction of 'Link 82' cycle route and the associated 
parking/entry treatment schemes, with the appropriate costs already documented. 
The walking conditions of pedestrians, in the vicinity of this development will also 
require certain enhancement. In particular, the footways of Harefield Road and 
Barrington Road which connect with Abbeville Road and eventually to Priory Park 
and, the substandard section of footway between these two roads will require 
some upgrade. We will also ask for improved crossing facilities along Park Road 
and additional entry treatment encompassing dropped kerb around the new 
access and the entrancement to the Swimming Centre, for wheelchair users and 
parents with pushchairs/buggies. We will therefore be seeking some financial 
contribution towards executing these works and other traffic management 
measures deemed imperative, in the immediate vicinity of this development. It is 
estimated that the cost of these works would be in the region of £450,000 (four 
hundred and fifty thousand pounds). 
  
Consequently, the highway and transportation authority would not object to this 
application, subject to the conditions that the applicant: 
  
1. Contributes a sum of £450,000 (four hundred and fifty thousand pounds) by 
way of S.106 agreement, towards footway, cycle route, entry treatment and 
crossing upgrade schemes, in the vicinity of this development. Reason: To 
improve the conditions for pedestrians and cyclists at this location. 
  
2. Provides 52 (fifty-two) cycle racks, which shall be enclosed within a secure 
shelter. Reason: To improve the conditions for cyclists at this location. 
  
3. Submits details of the routeing/management of the construction traffic to the 
transportation planning team, for approval. Reason: To minimise the impact of the 
movement of the associated construction vehicles, on the adjoining roads. 
  
Informative 
 
1. The proposed development requires a new crossover to be made over the 
footway. The necessary works will be carried out by the Council at the applicant's 
expense once all the necessary internal site works have been completed. The 
applicant should telephone 020 8489 1316 to obtain a cost estimate and to 
arrange for the works to be carried out. 
2. The new development will require numbering. The applicant should contact the 
Transportation Group at least six weeks before the development is occupied (tel. 
020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address. 
 
Haringey Waste Management Team 

Page 78



Planning Committee Report  

 
Further to your request concerning the above planning application I have the 
following comments to make: 
 
ü 
 

Route from waste storage points to collection point must be as straight as 
possible with no kerbs or steps. Gradients should be no greater than 1:20 and 
surfaces should be smooth and sound, concrete rather than flexible. Dropped 
kerbs should be installed as necessary. 
 

ü 
 

If waste containers are housed, housings must be big enough to fit as many 
containers as are necessary to facilitate once per week collection and be high 
enough for lids to be open and closed where lidded containers are installed. 
Internal housing layouts must allow all containers to be accessed by users. 
Applicants can seek further advice about housings from Waste Management 
if required. 

 
ü 
 

Waste container housings may need to be lit so as to be safe for residents 
and collectors to use and service during darkness hours. 

 
ü 

 
All doors and pathways need to be 200mm wider than any bins that are 
required to pass through or over them. 

 
ü 
 

If access through security gates/doors is required for household waste 
collection, codes, keys, transponders or any other type of access equipment 
must be provided to the council. No charges will be accepted by the council 
for equipment required to gain access. 

 
ü 
 

Waste collection vehicles require height clearance of at least 4.75 metres. 
Roads required for access by waste collection vehicles must be constructed 
to withstand load bearing of up to 26 tonnes. 

 
ü 
 

 

Adequate waste storage arrangements must be made so that waste does not 
need to be placed on the public highway other than immediately before it is 
due to be collected. Further detailed advice can be given on this where 
required.  

 
ü 
 

Other comments as follows: 

 
This proposed development will require 12 x 1100 refuse bins and 4 x 1100 
recycling bins. There are three bin storage areas illustrated which indicate a 
capacity to hold 18 bins, but one area appears to be behind a set of security 
gates. If this is the case keys or fobs will need to be provided to the refuse and 
recycling collectors. 

Page 79



Planning Committee Report  

Haringey Design and Conservation Team 
 
The application site (approximately 0.38ha.) lies on the south-west side of Park 
Road and is part of the site of the since demolished Hornsey Central Hospital. A 
public footpath runs between the site and Park Leisure Centre (a large 2-storey 
building located to the south). Designated Metropolitan Open Land comprising 
playing fields attached to the school and open land are located to the rear of the 
site. On the other side of Park Road, opposite the site, is a terrace of four 2-
storey houses and Ramsey Court, a 4-storey block of 24 flats, which is set well 
back from the road. The land slopes down from the north to south so that the 
application site is slightly lower than the rest of the hospital site.  
 
The proposed development would comprise 2 linked three-and-four-storey blocks, 
with basement car parking extending across the footprint of the building. This 
would provide 21 x one bed, 19 x two bed, 12 x three bed and 5 x four bed units. 
 
The scale of buildings in this part of the area (with the exception of Ramsey 
Court) is predominantly characterised by 2-storey houses. The existing building 
on the application site is set far back into the site and does not intrude into the 
street scene. The polyclinic and leisure centre are imposing structures; (as is 
usual for large institutional buildings within smaller scale residential areas); 
however these institutional buildings do not necessarily set the parameters for 
new development.  
 
The overall three-storey (with four-storey element) bulk of Block A (approximately 
8.6m high) and four-storey bulk of Block B (approximately 11.6m high) will appear 
excessive in height, bulk and mass and out of scale with the established scale of 
development in the surrounding area and will be intrusive and dominant in the 
street scene, particularly when viewed from the south along Park Road and from 
the adjacent Metropolitan Open Land. The effect will be detrimental to the spatial 
and visual character of the site and its surrounding area, contrary to UDP policies 
UD3 and UD4. 
 
The large footprint of this development (approximately 16.6m deep double 
banked accommodation to Block A, approximately 18.6m to Block B and 
approximately 78m long) runs close to the site boundary on each side leaving 
little amenity space.  
 
The width of the buildings within the narrow frontage of the site, in close proximity 
to both the northern and southern boundaries combined with their height would 
result in a cramped development within the site. The site has a narrow frontage 
and the proposed building would fill much of the width of the site, with the 
remaining frontage being dominated by hard surfaced access and turning space.  
 
The height, bulk and massing of the proposed scheme would be detrimental to 
the character and appearance of the area and therefore would not accord with 
UDP policies UD3 and UD4, which require development proposals to compliment 
the character of the local area and be of high design quality when considered 
against a number of interconnected elements including urban grain, building lines, 
form, rhythm and massing, height and scale.   

Page 80



Planning Committee Report  

 
Note: there have been some amendments to the design, including reducing 
the bulk of the building, to try to overcome these objections. 
 
Hornsey Conservation Areas Advisory Committee (CAAC) 
 
No objection other than the excessive use of timber, which may weather badly 
and present maintenance problems leading to future unsightly appearance. 
 
Muswell Hill & Fortis Green Association  
 

• Outlook - adverse effect on outlook and views from houses opposite 

• The scheme is very similar to the one previously refused. 

• The issues raised by the Planning Inspector in considering the appeal 
application HGY/2007/1823 have not been adequately addressed in that 
the forward siting, height and bulk of these two long linked blocks would be 
visually dominant and intrusive in the street scene. 

• The reduction in parking spaces will put yet more pressure on street 
parking which is already overloaded and causing delays and congestion 
affecting public and private transport.  

• Unsatisfactory Standard of Accommodation - flats are accessed by long 
internal corridors with no natural light, approximately 50% of the flats face 
north or north-west and some of the 3 and 4 bedroom flats in the social 
housing have only 1 bathroom. 

• The scheme represents overdevelopment of the site, is damaging to the 
local environment and puts pressure on traffic, transport and local parking.  

 
Highgate Wood School 
 
Highgate Wood School has some serious reservations regarding the current 
plans to redevelop this site. They fall broadly into four areas: 
 

1. The conflict of vehicle and pedestrian access with the existing entrances to 
the school, Park Road Pool and the new hospital 

2. The management of works directly adjacent to an entrance used by 
approximately 600 students twice a day (am and pm) and 200 during 
lunchtime 

3. The proximity to and overlooking of school play areas and student access 
routes 

4. The conflict of land use and purpose with all surrounding sites being used 
for public services (leisure centre, school and health care centre) and parts 
of the adjoining land being Metropolitan Open Land designated for leisure 
and health use only 

 
 
Residents: 
 
A total of 20 individual objection letters have been received. The issues include: 
 

Page 81



Planning Committee Report  

- Growing imbalance between the available infrastructure and number of 
users 

- Traffic congestion - the development will add to traffic trying to use Park 
Road, which is already very congested, with congestion due to increase 
significantly when the new polyclinic opens. There is just 1 bus service 
supplying this area.  

- Lack of adequate parking provision - in spite of on-site parking provision 
the development will increase kerb side parking demand in streets already 
under parking pressure 

- The traffic survey was done in early February 2008, so does not take into 
account the new Hospital/Polyclinic opening this year or the Lido at the 
Leisure Centre which adds considerable traffic from May to September. 

- The proposed scheme is very similar to the previously refused scheme 
HGY/2008/0835 only replacing one 1 bed unit and two 2 bed units with one 
3 bed unit and one 4 bed unit – an increase of two bedrooms.  

- Bulk and Scale – the 4 storey block will be considerably bigger than the 
other residential buildings on this side of Park Road and replaces a 2 
storey building set well back from the road. Park Road is narrow and the 
proposed buildings would appear looming and bulky from pedestrian 
pavements and from the 2 storey houses opposite. The proposed buildings 
are too high, are out of keeping with the general scale of the road, and will 
exacerbate the domination of the street by the new polyclinic. Block A too 
near the road.  

- The artists impressions do not take into account the difference in levels 
across the adjacent sites and therefore give a misleading impression of the 
bulk and scale of the proposed buildings. 

- Proximity of buildings to site boundaries detrimental to outlook & amenity  
- Unsatisfactory standard of accommodation – very long artificially lit access 

corridors. Approximately 50% of the flats face north or north-west. Some of 
the 3 and 4 bedroom flats in the social housing have only 1 bathroom. The 
proximity of block A to the hospital car park on the northwest side will lead 
to unsatisfactory conditions for the future occupants of those flats.  

- Overdevelopment – too many flats for the site. The density is higher than 
that prevailing in the local area. Site coverage is excessive.  

- No architectural merit to the design – the scheme is out of sympathy with 
the existing 2-storey Edwardian village character of Crouch End. The 
design continues to erode the existing character. The exaggerated 
horizontal roof and window lines create an intrusive development.  

Page 82



Planning Committee Report  

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Planning Guidance 
 
PPS1  Delivering Sustainable Development (2005) 
PPS3  Housing (November 2006 and April 2007) 
PPG13 Transport (March 2001) 
PPS22 Renewable Energy (August 2004) 
 
The London Plan  
 
Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) 
 
UD1  Planning Statements 
UD2   Sustainable Design and Construction 
UD3   General Principles 
UD4   Quality Design 
UD7   Waste Storage 
UD10   Planning Obligations 
HSG1   New housing developments 
HSG4   Affordable housing 
HSG9   Density standards 
HSG10  Dwelling mix 
ENV3   Water Conservation 
ENV9   Mitigating Climate Change: Energy Efficiency 
ENV10  Mitigating Climate Change: Renewable Energy 
M3  New Development Location and Accessibility 
M4   Pedestrians and Cyclists 
M10   Parking and Development 
OS5   Development Adjacent to Open Spaces 
OS17  Tree Protection, Tree Masses and Spines 
 
Haringey Supplementary Planning Guidance (October 2006) 
 
SPG1a  Design Guidance 
SPG3b Privacy, Overlooking, Aspect, Outlook & Daylight, Sunlight 
SPG5  Safety by Design 
SPG7a Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement 
SPG8b Materials 
SPG8c Environmental Performance 
SPG8d Biodiversity, Landscaping & Trees 
SPG10  The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning 
Obligations 
SPG10c  Educational Needs Generated by New Housing Development 
SPG10e Improvements to public transport infrastructure and services 
SPD   Housing 
 
 
 

Page 83



Planning Committee Report  

Government guidance on planning issues is set out in a series of Planning Policy 
Guidance Notes (PPGs).  PPGs are currently in the process of being replaced 
with Planning Policy Statements (PPSs).  PPS1, PPS3, PPG13, PPG15, PPG16, 
PPS22 and PPG24 are considered relevant in this case. 
 
National Planning Policies 
 
PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Communities 
 
PPS1 provides an overview and general statement of the Government’s 
objectives for the planning system. PPS1 is fully committed to achieving the aims 
of sustainable development. It indicates that Planning should facilitate and 
promote sustainable patterns of urban development by making suitable land 
available for development in line with economic, social and environmental 
objectives. 
 
PPS3 – Housing  
 
PPS3 sets out the Government’s most up-to-date guidance with regard to the 
provision of housing. The Guidance sets out a commitment to promoting more 
sustainable patterns of development and emphasises the importance of making 
more efficient use of urban land within high quality development and encouraging 
greater intensity of development at places with good public transport accessibility 
and along public transport corridors. 
 
PPG13 - Transport  
 
PPG13 seeks to integrate planning and transport at the national, regional, 
strategic and local level and to help reduce the need to travel and the length of 
car journeys. Its objective is to make it safer and easier for people to access jobs, 
shopping, leisure facilities and services by public transport, walking and cycling. 
 
PPS 22 – Renewable Energy 
 
PPS22 is intended to highlight the principles of the government following targets 
set in the Energy White Paper: “Our energy future: creating a low carbon 
economy”.    The PPS states that this can be achieved through the provision of 
renewable energy, improvements in energy efficiency and the development of 
combined heat and power.    
 
Regional Planning Policies 
 
The London Plan (2008) 
 
The Development Plan for the area comprises the London Plan Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004 (February 2008).  The London Plan is a material 
consideration for local authorities when determining planning applications and 
reviewing their Unitary Development Plans.  
In order to respond to the existing and future housing demand, the London Plan 
has increased the housing provisions targets; seeking the provision of 30,500 

Page 84



Planning Committee Report  

additional homes per year across London.  For Haringey, it estimates a capacity 
of a minimum of 6,800 new dwellings between 2007/8 and 2016/7 which equates 
to 680 per year. 
 
Local Planning Policies 
 
Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) 
Haringey Council adopted its Unitary Development Plan in 2006.  The policies 
within this document have been “saved” by the Government Office for London 
(GoL), under the 2004 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, for up to 3 
years (from 27th September 2007).  Also adopted with the UDP in 2006, were 
Supplementary Planning Guidance documents (SPG’s) and in 2008 SPD 
Housing. 
 
ANALYSIS/ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 
Policy UD1 states that new development will need to be accompanied by the 
appropriate statements. It states that: all new development must be accompanied 
by a Design and Access Statement and Sustainability statement. 
 
The application is accompanied by Planning, Design & Access and Transport 
Statements in which the applicants seek to demonstrate that the intensity of 
development of the revised (reduced) scheme and height and bulk of the 
buildings is justified by the nature and type of buildings in the surrounding area, 
and that the traffic generation of the new development is less than that of the old 
hospital and can be accommodated by the existing road network. 
 
The main issues in this case derive from the amount of development on the site 
and concern density, dwelling mix, height, bulk and massing, residential amenity, 
and traffic generation.  Secondary issues include parking and trees and 
landscaping. 
 
The following issues will be discussed in the assessment report below: 
 

1. The Principle of Residential Development 
2. Density 
3. Dwelling Mix 
4. Residential Amenity 
5. Design – Height, Bulk and Massing 
6. Trees, Landscaping and Adjacent Open Space 
7. Traffic and Parking 
8. Sustainability 
9. Waste Management 
10. Security and Crime Prevention 
11. Section 106 Agreement 

Page 85



Planning Committee Report  

1. The Principle of Residential Development 
 
The application seeks to use the site for residential purposes. This part of the 
former Hornsey Hospital site is the location of the nurses’ quarters and as such 
have historically provided a residential use, albeit attached to the former hospital 
itself. The hospital has been demolished and replaced with a modern polyclinic 
building to the northern part of the site. The applicant appointed Hampson 
Williams Architects to consider the conversion of the existing nurses’ quarters into 
residential. The investigation concluded that this was not feasible and a new build 
residential scheme the appropriate design solution for the site.  
 
The demolition of the existing buildings constitutes permitted development under 
Part 31 of the General Permitted Development Order 1995 and therefore planning 
permission is not required to demolish the existing buildings.  As the site is not 
within a Conservation Area, Conservation Area Consent is not required for the 
demolition. 
 
Both the Council and the Planning Inspectorate have accepted the principle of the 
site’s redevelopment for residential use. As such, the proposal to use the site for 
a residential purpose is deemed to be appropriate and in line with current 
national, regional and local planning policies related to housing need in the United 
Kingdom., including PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development, PPS3 – 
Housing, The London Plan – policies 3A.1, 3A.2, and 3A.4, and Haringey Unitary 
Development Plan – HSG1 – New Housing Developments. 
 
2. Density 
 
The site has an area of 0.39 hectares. With 164 habitable rooms, the density of 
the development is 420.51 habitable rooms per hectare (hrh) (reduced from 531 
hr in the 2007 scheme and 428 in the 2008 scheme). This density falls within the 
overall range specified in the Council’s Unitary Development Plan (UDP) of 200-
700 hrh.  
 
The London Plan sets out a number of different density ranges to be achieved 
depending on the local context and public transport accessibility. The council 
considers the public transport accessibility level (PTAL) for this site to be 2 while 
the applicant argues that the rating of level 3 is applicable. Either way, the latest 
alterations to the London Plan place the accessible indices 2 and 3 within the 
same group of density ranges. Further contention lay in whether the site should 
be classified as ‘urban’ (dense development with a mix of different uses and 
buildings of 3 to 4 storeys, such as town centres, along main arterial routes and 
substantial parts of inner London) or ‘suburban’ (lower density development, 
predominately residential, of 2 to 3 storeys, as in some parts of inner and much of 
outer London). The inspector noted in appeal report relating the 2007 application 
that ‘at the hearing the Council conceded that, for the purpose of the London Plan 
matrix, the site could be considered ‘urban’. Therefore, the London Plan specifies 
a density range of 200-450hrh.  
 
On this basis, a density of 420hrh for this site falls within both the London Plan 
density matrix and Haringey density range, set out in HSG9 – Density Standards, 

Page 86



Planning Committee Report  

however is at the upper end of the acceptable standard. Also, as noted by the 
inspector, density itself is not the issue, but rather the manifestation of that 
density in terms of the quality of the development. The issues of height, bulk and 
mass, residential amenity and impact on the character of the area will be 
discussed below.  
 
3. Dwelling Mix 
 
Policy HSG10 states that all new residential development should, where possible, 
provide a mix of dwelling types and size in order to meet the housing needs of the 
local community.  
 
The scheme, as amended by Revision A dated 27/03/2009, is divided into 2 
blocks. Block A provides 20 ‘affordable’ flats (9 for social renting and 11 for 
intermediate shared ownership) consisting of 4 x 1 bed, 9 x 2 bed, 4 x 3 bed and 
3 x 4 bed. Block B provides 36 private flats for sale, comprising 16 x 1 bed, 14 x 2 
bed and 6 x 3 bed.   
 
The Council’s guidance for dwelling mix, SPD Housing section 7.2 states that the 
Housing Needs Survey (2007) identifies a short full of all sizes of accommodation. 
However, the requirement is most acute for affordable three and four bedroom 
properties.  Figure 7.3 sets out the percentage dwelling mix for affordable housing 
as follows: 1 bed 19%, 2 bed 26%, 3 bed 27% and 4+ bed 28%. In this case the 
development would provide 20% 1 bed, 45% 2 bed, 20% 3 bed and 15% 4 bed 
units. On this basis, the affordable housing mix would provide an over provision of 
2 bedroom units and an under provision of 3 and 4 bedroom units.  
 
The table below compares the proposed mix of units against the Councils 
adopted Housing SPG (2008). 
 
Dwelling Mix - Affordable Housing  

No. of Bedrooms Housing SPD 
requirement (%) 

Proposed (%) Difference (%) 

1 19 20 +1 

2 26 45 +19 

3 27 20 -7 

4 28 15 -13 

 
The recommended dwelling mix for private market housing is 37% 1 bedroom, 
30% 2 bedroom, 22% 3 bedroom and 11% 4+ bedrooms. In this case the 
development would provide 44% 1 bed, 39% 2 bed, 17% 3 bed and 0% 4 bed 
units. On this basis, the private housing mix would provide an over provision of 1 
and 2 bedroom units and an under provision of 3 and 4 bedroom units. 
 
 
 
Dwelling Mix - Private Housing  

No. of Bedrooms Housing SPD 
requirement (%) 

Proposed (%) Difference (%) 

1 37 44 +7 

Page 87

Planning Committee Report  

2 30 39 +9 

3 22 17 -5 

4 11 0 -11 

 
There is therefore an under provision of larger family dwellings (3 & 4 bed) in both 
the affordable and private blocks. 
 
Policy HSG4 and SPD Housing also set out targets for affordable housing. The 
council will seek to negotiate an element of affordable housing on all housing 
sites capable of providing 10 or more units. The aim will be to achieve a borough 
wide target of 50% of habitable rooms as affordable housing depending on 
location, scheme details or site characteristics. The proposed development has 
allocated 35.71% based on the number of flats or 40.24% based on the number 
of habitable rooms as affordable housing. In this location this provision of 
affordable housing is deemed to be appropriate.  
 
Furthermore the Housing SPD states that a mix of social rented and intermediate 
shared ownership is required to meet housing needs in the borough. As a starting 
point for negotiation, the Council will apply a borough wide target of 70% social 
rented and 30% intermediate shared ownership. However factors such as the 
existing proportion of social rented housing in the ward, suitability of the site and 
location for family housing, individual site costs etc should be taken into account. 
This scheme would provide 45% social rented and 55% intermediate shared 
ownership. This allocation is deemed to be acceptable given the findings of the 
“Three Dragon’s” report on financial viability, and the fact that this scheme is far 
closer to the policy recommendation than the previous schemes. In addition, a 
letter from Circle Anglia housing association has been provided stating that they 
fully support the proposed scheme. 
 
4. Residential Amenity 
 
Policy U3, SPG3a and SPD Housing state that the Council will require 
development proposals to demonstrate that there are no significant adverse 
impacts on residential amenity or other surrounding uses in terms of loss of 
daylight, sunlight, privacy, overlooking, aspect along with the avoidance of air, 
water, light and noise, pollution, smell or nuisance. The development has been 
designed so as not to result in any significant overshadowing, loss of light or 
privacy to other units within the development or to adjacent uses. The site is 
surrounded on two sides by car parking, associated with the polyclinic to the 
north-west and the leisure centre to the south-east. This, in addition to being set 
away from these side boundaries will mean the development has little impact on 
the adjacent sites. To the rear is Metropolitan Open Land (MOL). The 
development has been set back between 10m and 11.5m from this rear 
boundary. The design of the rear of Block B has been amended, with the upper 
level set back from the edge and a glazed balcony provided. In addition, the 
fenestration has been altered. This will in effect reduce the bulk of the building 
and minimise any impact on the amenity of users of the MOL. Two units of block 
A will have windows facing Park Road, however the building will be located at a 
distance so as not to result in any significant overlooking or loss of privacy to 
residential properties opposite.  

Page 88



Planning Committee Report  

 
The Housing SPD also provides guidelines on private and communal amenity 
space. It states that all new residential development should provide external 
amenity space and this should be appropriate to the needs of the likely 
occupants. 
 
The development proposes both communal and private amenity space. In both 
scheme 1 (2007 application) and scheme 2 (2008 application) the amenity space 
for the ground floor units, particularly to the northern side and ground floor private 
units (southern side) were considered inadequate, partly due to the depth of the 
gardens at approximately 3 metres. In response to this the proposed 
development has been set further away from the boundaries to allow garden 
depths of up to 5 metres for the affordable units and 5.5 metres for the private 
units.  
 
All flats in Block B (for sale) have balconies and/or terraces and access to 
communal gardens. A large communal space is provide to the north western 
corner of the site which is approximately 320 sq. m in area adjacent to the 
polyclinic boundary and an addition 220 sq m. or so, adjacent to the rear 
boundary of the site. This allocation for the rear block is more than double the 
minimum standards set out in SPD Housing which states that useable communal 
space should be provided at 50 sq m. plus 5 sq. m per additional unit over five 
units. In addition the ground floor flats of Block B have private garden spaces 
ranging in size from 17m² to 37m² for the north-west facing flats and between 
40m² to 66m² for the south-east facing flats. 
 
Block A (affordable) have private gardens at ground floor level, servicing the 3 
and 4 bedroom family units. These garden spaces range in size from 57m² to 
72m². This is in excess of the minimum 50sq m. for family dwelling, specified in 
SPD Housing.   
 
All flats above ground floor level have balconies and/or roof terraces. the 
amendments to the scheme under Revision A, dated 27/3/09 have included an 
increase in the size of the balconies on the south-east elevation, facing the 
leisure centre. 
 
Overall, the provision of amenity space is deemed to be acceptable an in line with 
councils policies. 
 
5. Design - Height, Bulk and Massing 
 
Policies UD3, UD4 and SPG1a require new development to be of a high standard 
of design using good quality materials.   In particular, they should respect the 
rhythm, form and massing, the height and scale and the historic heritage context 
of the site.  The spatial and visual character of the development site and the 
surrounding area/street scene should be taken into consideration in the design of 
developments. 
 
The simple, modern form the proposed building is a response to its context 
between the new polyclinic building and the existing leisure centre. The 

Page 89



Planning Committee Report  

characteristics of the adjacent buildings and the variety in building design in the 
vicinity mean that a contemporary approach to the design is not inappropriate.  
 
The building is divided into two blocks, linked at the centre of the site. The new 
buildings are sited to create a large communal garden area to the rear which a 
high proportion of the proposed units will overlook.  This arrangement will result in 
an attractive aspect for the residents facing in a generally westerly and north-
westerly direction so benefiting from sunlight and views over the Metropolitan 
Open Land.   
 
One of the main issues which resulted in the dismissal of the appeal was the 
impact on the character of the area. The Inspector considered the proposed block 
would be overbearing and detrimental to the character and appearance of the 
area.  
 
This refused scheme had located the development on the same line as the 
forward most projection of the polyclinic, and well in front of the swimming pool 
building. It would have been only slightly lower in height than the polyclinic 
building but only by virtue of the difference in land levels. Since the dismissal of 
the appeal, the scheme has been redesigned, taking into consideration the issues 
considered unacceptable by the Inspector. The redesign has included:  
 

• reducing the number of units from 70 to initially 57 units, and now 56 since 
the most recent amendments, and thus the density has now 420 hrh down 
from 531hrh 

• reducing the height of the front building, Block A, from 4 storeys down to 
the 3 storeys for the majority of its length, 

• reducing the site coverage by setting in the Block A from the northern 
boundary by 5 metres rather than 3 metres, and the main core of Block B 
from the southern boundary by 5.5 metres rather than 4 metres, 

• increasing the setback from Park Road by an additional 3.50 metres 
(Revision A, dated 27/3/09) which creates a total set back of 10.6 metres 
and 13 metres from the front boundary of the site. 

• removing the larger of the two residential units at roof level on Block A 

• enlarging the balconies on the south-east side of Block B 
 
It is considered that the above amendment to the design go some way in 
overcoming the issues raised by the Inspector. The reduction in height will reduce 
the impact of the building, particularly when viewed in the approach from the 
south along Park Road, an issue raised in the appeal report. Increasing the 
setbacks from the front and side boundaries will also help reduce the cramped 
appearance, which due to the narrow frontage seemed to fill most of the width of 
the site, under the design of the previous schemes. Overall, on balance, the 
scheme is deemed to be acceptable in design terms, in line with the intent of 
policy UD3, UD4 and SPG1a.  
 
The materials to be used in the design are brick, timber panelling and grey 
metal/timber composite windows. The use of timber cladding has been 
reconsidered following comments from the planning department raising issue of 
long term appearance and maintenance. It is now proposed to use a composite 

Page 90



Planning Committee Report  

veneered timber cladding panel. The roof is to be flat using a single ply polymeric 
membrane. The solar panels are to be set back from the edges of the building so 
they are not visible.  A condition of consent will require full details and material 
samples be submitted and approved by the planning authority prior to the 
commencement of works. On this basis, the proposal is considered to accord with 
policy UD3 and SPG8b.  
 
6. Trees, Landscaping and Adjacent Open Space 
 
Policy OS17 and SPG8d seek to protect and improve the contribution of trees, 
trees masses and spines to local landscape character.  
 
The main existing trees on the site are a prominent Silver Maple close to the road 
frontage and an Ash on the side boundary with the Health Centre towards the 
rear of the site. Both of these are to be retained. There is a line of conifers on the 
side boundary between the application site and the polyclinic car park, which are 
to be retained and will provide some screening. 
 
The Inspector, in the appeal against the refusal of application HGY/2007/1823, 
made specific reference to trees. “There are two important trees on the site, a 
silver maple and an ash which would be retained. The silver maple towards the 
front of the site is, to my mind, an important feature in the street scene”. The 
Inspector had reservations about the likely effect of the proposal on the future 
health of this tree, given that the amount of hard surfacing around the tree would 
be increased. Since the appeal decision, the proposed development has 
undergone a number of design modifications. The retaining wall which was 
proposed in close proximity to the tree trunk in the 2007 application has now been 
removed from the plan. The access drive is also further away from the base of the 
tree in this proposal than in the previous schemes. It is considered that suitable 
planning conditions requiring protection of the tree during the construction period 
and supervision by a qualified Arboriculturalist would help ensure the ongoing 
longevity of this tree and in turn, its positive contribution to the street scene.   
 
The plans indicate both soft and hard landscaping along the side boundaries 
adjacent to the polyclinic and leisure centre and the rear boundary adjacent to the 
Metropolitan Open Land. The front boundary will have trees and planting around 
the pedestrian and vehicle entrances and screening to the refuse stores. 
Conditions of consent will require full details of landscaping and boundary 
treatment prior to the commencement of works. The proposal is deemed to satisfy 
policy OS17 and SPG8d.  
 
The site is bounded to the rear by Metropolitan Open Land (MOL). Policy OS5 
states that development close to the edge of Green Belt, Metropolitan Open 
Land, Significant Local Open Land or any other valuable open land will only be 
permitted if it protects or enhances the value and visual character of the open 
land. The proposed building would be approximately 10 metres from the 
boundary with the Metropolitan Open Land. The scheme as amended under 
Revision A, dated 27/03/09, has made several modifications to the rear elevation 
in order to minimise the visual impact on this open space. The upper level has 
been set beck from the edge of the building.  The balustrade of the upper level 

Page 91



Planning Committee Report  

flats will be glazed and fenestration has been altered, to reduce the perceived 
mass of the building. The materials have been used to achieve a design that 
breaks this rear elevation into three or four elements, thereby reducing the scale 
and impact of the building when viewed from the MOL. Landscape planting along 
the rear boundary will also minimise the visibility of the building from the rear. 
Overall, the development is deemed to be acceptable in terms of policy OS5. 
 
7. Traffic and Parking 
 
PPG13 ‘Transport’ notes paragraph 49 states that “The availability of car parking 
has a major influence on the means of transport people choose for their 
journeys”.  
 
Policy M10 states that the Council will apply its parking standards to restrain car 
use, to reduce congestion, to improve road safety, to give priority to essential 
users and peoples with disabilities, to improve the environment, to improve local 
accessibility and to encourage sustainable regeneration. Development proposals 
will be assessed against the parking standards set out in the UDP which are in 
turn assessed against the London Plan matrix.  
 
Policy M3 states that the Council will require that developments with high trip 
generating characteristics locate where public transport accessibility is high; 
located where the need to travel by car will be reduces and use of public transport 
increased. Both policy M3 and M4 along with SPG7a require new proposals to 
have a building design and layout and location which encourages walking and 
cycling.  
 
The applicant has proposed 44 car parking spaces at basement level and 57 
cycle parking spaces. The Haringey Transportation Group has assessed the 
application and concluded that the anticipated vehicle movements associated 
with the proposed development in addition to the existing vehicle trips associated 
with the approved polyclinic development abutting the site, would not have any 
significant adverse traffic impact on the adjacent roads. The Transportation Group 
have indicated that works to the adjacent road and pedestrian links are required 
improvement the existing facilities. They have sought a financial contribution, in 
the form of section 106, toward the cost of these works.  
 
There have been a number of resident objections to the proposal many of which 
site traffic congestion and parking issues as the main concern. It should be noted 
that on the planning appeal relating to the 2007 application (HGY/2007/1823) the 
Inspector did not find that the proposal would be unacceptable in terms of traffic 
generation, parking and pedestrian safety. Furthermore, the Council withdrew the 
5th reason for refusal which related to the absence of any assessment as to the 
likely traffic generation from the proposed development in comparison with the 
previous use and its impact on the highway network. The Council accepted that 
the appellants’ evidence (which took account of the likely levels of traffic from the 
former nurses’ home and the development of the adjoining site) showed that the 
predicted levels would not exceed the recommended threshold of 5% of existing 
flow. The Inspector stated that she had no reason to disagree and determined the 
appeal on this basis. The number of units has been reduced from 70 flats with 61 

Page 92



Planning Committee Report  

car parking spaces to 56 units with 44 car parking spaces, thus the traffic 
associated with this development would be even less than that considered 
acceptable by the Inspector. Also, traffic and parking issues were not a reason for 
refusal of the 2008 (HGY/2008/0835). Overall the development is deemed to be 
acceptable and in line with the relevant policies. 
 
The Transportation Officer’s request for £450,000 towards Highway 
Improvements and repair works is considered excessive; to the extent that 
payment is for repair of footpaths on road on the other side of Park Road, they do 
not reasonably relate to the development which is the subject of this application. 
However, works in the immediate vicinity of the site, including improved crossing 
facilities for pedestrians, are considered to relate to this development and a sum 
of £250,000 would appear appropriate. 
 
8. Sustainability  
 
Policy UD2 requires sustainable design and construction to form an integral part 
of any scheme, requiring energy efficiency and renewable energy sourcing 
measures to be considered. In addition, the Council will seek that development 
schemes take into account, where feasible, the environmentally friendly materials, 
water conservation, recycling and sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS).  
 
Policy ENV3 states that all new development should incorporate water 
conservation methods. Policy ENV9 states that the council will encourage energy 
efficiency and a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions, while ENV10 requires all 
major developments to provide an energy assessment with their planning 
application, showing an on-site provision of 10%, where feasible, of their 
projected energy requirement from renewable sources.  
 
The application states that the proposed development is to target a Code for 
Sustainable homes (CFSH) level 3, subject to viability assessments and 
Government requirements. This rating requires a 25% improvement over Target 
Emission Rate as determined by the 2006 Building Regulation Standards.  
 
The development is to have energy efficient condensing boilers and solar thermal 
panels on the roof to provide hot water to the residential boilers. A renewable 
energy assessment and a drainage and water assessment are still to be 
commissioned. Conditions of consent will require these assessments be 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to the 
commencement of works, to ensure the development is in line with local, regional 
and national targets on sustainability.  
 
9. Waste Management 
 
Policy UD7 requires all new development to include adequate provision for the 
storage and collection of waste and recyclable material and for large 
developments to produce a waste management plan. In addition the Council will 
encourage, the allocation of space for composting in developments with gardens. 
The scheme includes 3 separate bin storage areas providing a capacity for 18 
bins, which combined, will provide adequate bin storage for a development of this 

Page 93



Planning Committee Report  

size. Refuse vehicles will access the site from Park Road. A turning head is 
provided near the entrance to the site so that refuse vehicles may exit is a 
forward direction. Haringey Waste Management has provided a number of 
comments. These will be included as conditions of consent.  
 
10. Safety, Security and Crime Prevention 
 
Policy UD3 and SPG5 requires all new development to take into account the 
provisions of Circular 5/94 Planning Out Crime and the ‘Secured by Design’ 
initiative. This seeks to reduce the potential for crime by good design.  The Crime 
Prevention Officer has been consulted and has raised several issues with the 
current design. However, if the scheme were to meet all the points raised by the 
Crime Prevention Officer, such as having no basement parking and not having 
communal gardens adjoining private amenity space, it would be difficult to 
development the site at anything other than a much lower density. The applicant 
has responded to the points raised by the Crime Prevention Officer as follows: 

• This entrance to Block B appears overly recessed with poor natural 
surveillance from properties around it. 

We have reviewed the design of the entrance area and checked sight lines 
- the entrance is visible from the lift and stair area of Block B, all of the flats 
on the south side of Block A, and the three flats at the east end of Block B 
- the recess is only to provide a weatherproof overhang at the entrance 
door.  There will be an entry phone camera at the entrance doors. 

• Clear demarcation between semi-public and private space within the 
development should be provided and that this “defensible space” is 
promoted for the good of the future residents. Currently, communal 
gardens directly adjoin the private space of a home.  

The plans have been adjusted to show Private Spaces to both sides of 
Block B. To the South (Leisure Centre) side these extend to the boundary 
as requested but to the North they have been limited in order to maintain 
the communal areas. Refer to revised plan HW206 P100 Rev B dated 
16/04/2009. 

• Basement car parking and cycle storage is located well away from the 
control and surveillance of the building’s users. Without proper safeguards 
and secure access control into the basement, this will easily become a 
crime generator. Concerns regarding the entrance to the basement on the 
south of the scheme, within the communal garden. 

The basement car parking entrance has a security gate. The basement 
entrance at the south end of the scheme is a means of escape, definitely 
not an entrance; it will be gated and linked to the fire alarm system to 
prevent access. 

• Perimeter treatment for the scheme should be robust, particularly on the 
south and east side. Similarly, the bin stores can become venues for crime 
without careful and sympathetic design.  

This issue can be resolved as part of a landscaping and boundary planning 
condition. 

Page 94



Planning Committee Report  

• Communal door entry systems should be of a high security standard.  Poor 
quality door systems lead to crime and high maintenance costs for the 
owner and are not in any way part of a sustainable development.  

The entry control door systems will be of a high security standard. 

• The use of good quality lighting, especially on the access points 
throughout the scheme is a key crime prevention measure. Bollard lighting 
is generally a poor choice in such an environment.  

The lighting detail will be agreed as part of a planning condition. 

• The homes would benefit from the enhanced security standards detailed in 
the “Secured by Design Scheme” (www.securedbydesign.com).  

In making the above amendments and clarifications the scheme complies 
with the principles of the “Secured by Design Scheme” within the site 
constraints. 

 
It is considered that the majority of these issues could be dealt with via condition. 
The revised ground floor plan addresses the issue of private units abutting 
communal areas. Overall, the development is deemed to satisfy policy UD3 and 
SPG5. 
 
The London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA) and Haringey Building 
Control both raised concern about compliance for fire brigade access and 
facilities on the basis that travel distances from fire pump to the furthest point in 
the premises is in excess of 45 metres. Since these initial comments the applicant 
has contacted the relevant officers and clarified these issues. The LFEPA has 
provided an email that states ‘in principle this Authority would have no objection 
to fire fighting access subject to the points below and detailed submission of the 
location and calculation for the dry risers that are to be provided at building 
control stage of the project’ 
 

- A turning point is provided for both refuse trucks and fire appliances 
- A number of the units are in excess of 45m from the position of the 

appliance is able to reach. For this reason it is noted on the drawings that 
a dry riser is to be provided within the scheme with easy access from the 
appliance location. The exact position and system design will be finalised 
in consultation with building control and London Fire Brigade. 

 
As such, a condition of consent will be included to address the above issue. 
 
11. S. 106 Legal Agreement 
 
Policy UD8 requires development, where appropriate, to be subject to a Section 
106 agreement in order to secure appropriate benefits in line with guidance set 
out in SPG10a and SPG10c. 
 
The Council is seeking the following s106 contributions: 
 

Page 95



Planning Committee Report  

1. Affordable housing based on 20 units (35.71% based on number of units 
or 40.24% based on the number of habitable rooms). Allocated as follows: 
9 units Social Rented and 11 units intermediate shared ownership. 

 
2. An Education contribution of £291,200.00 based on the formula set out in 

SPG10c. 
3. Provision of highway works to the value of £250,000 including footway, 

cycle route, entry treatment and crossing upgrade schemes, in the vicinity 
of this development. 

 
4. Administration charge of £27,000 as required by SPG10a. 

 
The total amount of s106 contribution would be £568,200 

 
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 
 
The Council accepts the principle of residential use for this site. The proposed 
scheme has an improved dwelling mix that, although still not complying fully with 
Council guidance, is sufficiently close to be acceptable. The scheme has been 
reduced both in terms of the number of units and height, bulk and massing and 
setbacks from the boundaries compared to the scheme dismissed on appeal. The 
design is deemed adequate and the amenity spaces provided for future residents 
are exceed Councils requirements. The scheme is not found to be unacceptable 
in terms of traffic generation, parking or pedestrian safety. Having said that this is 
still a large scale development at the upper end of the acceptable density range. 
However, on balance, it is considered that the development is in line with the 
intent of National, Regional and Local Planning Policies including policy UD1 
‘Planning Statements’, UD2 ‘Sustainable Design and Construction’, UD3 ‘General 
Principles’, UD4 ‘Quality Design’, UD7 ‘Waste Storage’ UD10 ‘Planning 
Obligations’, HSG1 ‘New housing developments’, HSG4 ‘Affordable Housing’, 
HSG9 ‘Density standards’, HSG10 ‘Dwelling mix’, ENV3 ‘Water Conservation’ 
ENV9 ‘Mitigating Climate Change: Energy Efficiency’, ENV10 ‘Mitigating Climate 
Change: Renewable Energy’ M3 ‘New Development Location and Accessibility’, 
M4 ‘Pedestrians and Cyclists’ M10 ‘Parking and Development’, OS5 
‘Development Adjacent to Open Spaces’ OS17 ‘Tree Protection, Tree Masses 
and Spines’ of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) and SPG1a 
‘Design Guidance’, SPG3b ‘Privacy, Overlooking, Aspect, Outlook & Daylight, 
Sunlight’, SPG5 ‘Safety by Design’, SPG7a ‘Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement’, 
SPG8b ‘Materials’, SPG8c ‘Environmental Performance’, SPG8d ‘Biodiversity, 
Landscaping & Trees’, SPG10 ‘The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of 
Planning Obligations’, SPG10c ‘Educational Needs Generated by New Housing 
Development’, SPG10e ‘Improvements to public transport infrastructure and 
services’ and SPD ‘Housing’ of the Haringey Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(October 2006). On this basis, it is recommended that planning permission be 
GRANTED subject to conditions and s106 legal agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 1  
 
That planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application 
reference number HGY/2009/0219 and associated conditions and subject to a pre 

Page 96



Planning Committee Report  

condition that Acorn Limited shall first have entered into an agreement with 
Haringey Council under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(As Amended) and Section 16 of the Greater London Council (General Powers) 
Act 1974 in order to secure: 
 

1. Affordable housing based on 20 units (35.71% based on number of units 
or 40.24% based on the number of habitable rooms). Allocated as follows: 
9 units Social Rented and 11 units intermediate shared ownership. 

 
2. An Education contribution of £291,201.62 based on the formula set out in 

SPG10c. 
 

3. Provision of highway works to the value of £250,000 including footway, 
cycle route, entry treatment and crossing upgrade schemes, in the vicinity 
of this development. 

 
4. Administration charge of £27,000 as required by SPG10a. 

 
The total amount of s106 contribution would be £568,200 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 2 
 
GRANT PERMISSION subject to the following conditions: 
 
Registered No: HGY/2009/0219 
 
Applicant’s drawing No’s: HW206-A020, A030, A031, A032, P040 REV A, P099 
REV A, P100 REV B, P101 REV A, P102 REV A, P103 REV A, P104 REV A, 
A200 REV A, A201 REV A, A300 REV A, A301 REV A, A302 REV A & A303 REV 
A. 
 

Page 97



Planning Committee Report  

Subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the 
expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the permission 
shall be of no effect.   
Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of 
unimplemented planning permissions.  
 
2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and in the interests of amenity.  
 
3. A renewable energy assessment and water and drainage assessment shall be 
prepared and submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to 
the commencement of works. 
Reason: To ensure the development complies with local, regional and national 
guidance on sustainability.  
 
4. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no 
development shall be commenced until precise details of the materials to be used 
in connection with the development hereby permitted have been submitted to, 
approved in writing by and implemented in accordance with the requirements of 
the Local Planning Authority.   
Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 
development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area.  
 
5. Notwithstanding the details of landscaping referred to in the application, a 
scheme for the landscaping and treatment of the surroundings of the proposed 
development to include detailed drawings of:  
 
a. Those existing trees to be retained.   
b. Those existing trees to be removed.   
c. those existing trees which will require thinning, pruning, pollarding or 
lopping as a result of this consent.  All such work to be agreed with the Council's 
Arboriculturalist.   
d. Those new trees and shrubs to be planted together with a schedule of 
species shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the development.  Such an approved 
scheme of planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out and implemented in strict accordance with the 
approved details in the first planting and seeding season following the occupation 
of the building or the completion of development (whichever is sooner).  Any trees 
or plants, either existing or proposed, which, within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed, become damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with a similar size and species.  The 
landscaping scheme, once implemented, is to be maintained and retained 
thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

Page 98



Planning Committee Report  

 
Reason: In order for the Local Authority to assess the acceptability of any 
landscaping scheme in relation to the site itself, thereby ensuring a satisfactory 
setting for the proposed development in the interests of the visual amenity of the 
area.  
 
6. Details of a scheme depicting those areas to be treated by means of hard 
landscaping shall be submitted to, approved in writing by, and implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. Such a scheme to include a detailed 
drawing of those areas of the development to be so treated, a schedule of 
proposed materials and samples to be submitted for written approval on request 
from the Local Planning Authority.   
Reason: In order to ensure the development has satisfactory landscaped areas in 
the interests of the visual amenity of the area.  
 
7. The existing trees on the site shall not be lopped, felled or otherwise affected in 
any way (including raising and lowering soil levels under the crown spread of the 
trees) and no excavation shall be cut under the crown spread of the trees without 
the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. Particular attention 
should be paid to the protection and retention of the silver maple and a qualified 
Arboriculturalist should be present to ensure appropriate measures are 
implemented during the construction period. 
Reason: In order to safeguard the trees in the interest of visual amenity of the 
area.  
 
8. Before  any works herein permitted are commenced,  all those trees to be 
retained, as indicated on the approved drawings, shall be protected by secure, 
stout, exclusion fencing erected at a minimum  distance equivalent to the branch 
spread of the trees and in accordance with BS 5837:2005 and to a suitable 
height. Any works connected with the approved scheme within the branch spread 
of the trees shall be by hand only. No storage of materials, supplies or plant 
machinery shall be stored, parked, or allowed access beneath the branch spread 
of the trees or within the exclusion fencing.  
Reason: In order to ensure the safety and well being of the trees on the site 
during constructional works that are to remain after building works are completed.  
 
9. Notwithstanding the details contained within the plans hereby approved, full 
details of boundary treatments, including fencing and gates, to the entire site be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development.   
Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area and to ensure 
adequate means of enclosure for the proposed development.  
 

Page 99



Planning Committee Report  

10. Notwithstanding the details contained within the development hereby 
approved, full details of the artificial lighting scheme to the entrance, vehicular 
routes and parking areas, pedestrian routes and designated communal amenity 
space shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority prior to the commencement of the development.   
Reason: to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development.  
 
11. The proposed development shall have a central dish/aerial system for 
receiving all broadcasts for all the residential units created, details of such a 
scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior 
to the occupation of the property and the approved scheme shall be implemented 
and permanently retained thereafter.   
Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the neighbourhood.  
 
12. That a detailed scheme for the provision of refuse and waste storage within 
the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the works. Such a scheme as approved 
shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter to the satisfaction of 
the Local Planning Authority. The detailed scheme shall include: 
 
(a) A minimum of 12 x 1100 refuse bins and 4 x 1100 recycling bins. If any of 
the bin enclosures are set behind security gates, keys or fobs will need to be 
provided to the refuse and recycling collectors. 
 
(b) Route from waste storage points to collection point must be as straight as 
possible with no kerbs or steps. Gradients should be no greater than 1:20 and 
surfaces should be smooth and sound, concrete rather than flexible. Dropped 
kerbs should be installed as necessary. 
 
(c) If waste containers are housed, housings must be big enough to fit as 
many containers as are necessary to facilitate once per week collection and be 
high enough for lids to be open and closed where lidded containers are installed. 
Internal housing layouts must allow all containers to be accessed by users. 
Applicants can seek further advice about housings from Waste Management if 
required.  
 
(d) Waste container housings may need to be lit so as to be safe for residents 
and collectors to use and service during darkness hours. 
 
(e) All doors and pathways need to be 200mm wider than any bins that are 
required to pass through or over them. 
 
(f) If access through security gates/doors is required for household waste 
collection, codes, keys, transponders or any other type of access equipment must 
be provided to the council. No charges will be accepted by the council for 
equipment required to gain access. 
 
(g) Waste collection vehicles require height clearance of at least 4.75 metres. 
Roads required for access by waste collection vehicles must be constructed to 
withstand load bearing of up to 26 tonnes.  

Page 100



Planning Committee Report  

 
(h) Adequate waste storage arrangements must be made so that waste does 
not need to be placed on the public highway other than immediately before it is 
due to be collected. Further detailed advice can be given on this where required. 
 
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.  
 
13. Details of the routeing/management of the construction traffic shall be 
submitted to Haringey Transportation planning team, for approval, prior to the 
commencement of works.  
Reason: To minimise the impact of the movement of the associated construction 
vehicles, on the adjoining roads. 
 
14. The exact position and system design of the dry riser system shall be finalised 
and approved in consultation with Building Control and London Fire Brigade. 
Reason: To ensure the development complies with Approved Document B. Pt 5 
Regarding Fire Brigade access and facilities.  
 
15. The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be 
carried out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 or 
after 1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.  
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties.  
 
 
 
INFORMATIVE: The proposed development requires a new crossover to be 
made over the footway. The necessary works will be carried out by the Council at 
the applicant's expense once all the necessary internal site works have been 
completed. The applicant should telephone 02084891316 to obtain a cost 
estimate & to arrange for the works to be carried out. 
 
 
INFORMATIVE: The new development will require numbering. The applicant 
should contact the Transportation Group at least six weeks before the 
development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a 
suitable address. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3 
 
In the event that an agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (As Amended) is not signed by 11 June 2009 or within such 
extended time as the Council’s Assistant Director (Planning and Regeneration) 
shall in his direction allow, the application shall be refused for the following 
reason: 
 
The proposal fails to provide an Education and Highway works contribution in 
accordance with the requirements set out in Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPG10c and SPG10e of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006). 

Page 101



Planning Committee Report  

 
RECOMMENDATION 4 
 
In the event that the planning application is refused for the reason set out in 
recommendation 3 above, the Assistant Direction (Planning Policy and 
Development), in consultation with the Chair of the Planning Applications Sub-
Committee, is hereby authorised to approve any further application for planning 
permission which duplicates this planning application, provided that: -  
 

(i) there has not been any material change in circumstances relevant to 
planning considerations, and 

(ii) the further application for planning permission is submitted to and 
approved by the Assistant Director (Planning and Regeneration) within 
a period of no more than 12 months from the date of the refusal, and 

(iii) the relevant parties shall have entered into an agreement under section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act (As Amended) as outlined 
above to secure the obligations specified therein.  

 
 
 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
The proposal has been assessed against and found to comply with the intent of 
Policies UD1 'Planning Statements', UD2 'Sustainable Design and Construction', 
UD3 'General Principles', UD4 'Quality Design', UD7 'Waste Storage', UD10 
'Planning Obligations', HSG1 'New Housing Developments', HSG4 'Affordable 
Housing', HSG9 'Density Standards', HSG10 'Dwelling Mix', ENV3 'Water 
Conservation' ENV9 'Mitigating Climate Change: Energy Efficiency', ENV10 
'Mitigating Climate Change: Renewable Energy' M3 'New Development Location 
and Accessibility', M4 'Pedestrians and Cyclists' M10 'Parking and Development', 
OS5 'Development Adjacent to Open Spaces', OS17 'Tree Protection, Tree 
Masses and Spines' of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) and 
SPG1a 'Design Guidance', SPG3b 'Privacy, Overlooking, Aspect, Outlook & 
Daylight, Sunlight', SPG5 'Safety by Design', SPG7a 'Vehicle and Pedestrian 
Movement', SPG8b 'Materials', SPG8c 'Environmental Performance', SPG8d 
'Biodiversity, Landscaping & Trees', SPG10 'The Negotiation, Management and 
Monitoring of Planning Obligations', SPG10c 'Educational Needs Generated by 
New Housing Development', SPG10e 'Improvements to public transport 
infrastructure and services' and SPD 'Housing' of the Haringey Supplementary 
Planning Guidance (October 2006). 
 
 

Page 102



Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee Report  

Planning Committee 11 May 2009    Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
Reference No: HGY/2008/2319 

 
Ward: Hornsey 

 
Date received: 03/12/2008                           Last amended date: 24/4/2009  
 
Drawing number of plans: 389/IN/001, 002, 003, 100, 200; 389/P/-101, 100, 100/5, 101B, 
102B, 103, 104, 200C, 201C, 202, 203 & 204A. 
 
Address: The Nightingale PH, 40 Nightingale Lane N8 
 
Proposal: Retention of pub use at ground and basement levels, with refurbishment 
of upper floors to form 1 x three bed, 1 x two bed and 1 x one bed flats. Demolition of 
existing side extensions and erection of new 3-storey rear extension comprising  
3 x one bed and 1 x two  bed flats. 
 
Existing Use:  Pub / Residential                                                   
 
Proposed Use: Residential                                                   
 
Applicant: Mr Peter Gullis The Wellington Pub Company 
 
Ownership: Private 
 

 
 
 
            

 
 
 

 
THIS APPLICATION WAS TAKEN OFF THE PREVIOUS COMMITTEE 

AGENDA FOR THE APPLICANT TO AMEND THE ELEVATION DESIGN TO 
COMPLEMENT THE EXISTING PUB BUILDING. 

  
 
 
 
PLANNING DESIGNATIONS 
 
Road Network: Borough Road 
 
Officer contact: Elizabeth Ennin-Gyasi 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions and subject to sec. 106 and sec. 278 
Legal Agreement  
SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

Agenda Item 12Page 105



Planning Committee Report  

 
The site comprises of a 3 storey Victorian Public House,   with basement floor 
located at the corner of Nightingale Lane and Brook Road.  It has a single storey 
extension and garage fronting Brook Road with buildings to the rear in use for 
toilet facilities. The upper floors are in use for residential purposes and the 
immediate surrounding area is residential in character. It lies outside the 
designated Campsbourne Cottage Estate Conservation Area. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
Relevant planning history includes:-  
 
Alterations and additions – approved 24/10/1956 
Internal alterations and provision of beer store and garage – approved 26/7/1961 
Alteration to front elevation – 24/9/1973  
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
The original scheme has been revised involving the following: 

• The reduction of two units with the objective of lowering the density on the 
site.    

• Change to the external appearance by  lining up horizontal features in the 
pub’s façade  with horizontal elements in the proposed new building.  

• The use of brick to match the  existing pub’s brickwork  with base level of 
render to correspond to the detailing of the pub’s elevation.   

• The design of the front entrance of the new building  to match  the central 
door of the existing pub. 

 
The current scheme seeks to retain the  pub use at ground floor with the  
refurbishment of the upper floors to form 1 x three bed,  1 x two bed and 1 x one 
bed flats. The  existing single storey side extension  would be demolished and a 
new 3-storey extension with basement floor erected to create self-contained units 
comprising of 3 x one bed and 1 x two bed flats.  
 
The proposal also includes the  shared use of the basement floor as storage 
space for the pub and carparking, bicycle storage, recycling facility and waste & 
refuse storage  for the residential use. Amenity provision includes communal 
garden to the rear at ground floor and recessed balconies for the units fronting 
Brook Road.  Access to the flats would be from Brook Road.    
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Ward Councillors 
24 -38 Nightingale Lane 
44-50 Nightingale Lane 
57- 89 Nightingale Lane 
55-69 Rectory Gardens 
1-47 Stokley Court, Brook Road 
1-24  Tivendale   Brook Road 
25-48 Tivendale   Brook Road 

Page 106



Planning Committee Report  

73-77 Beechwood Road 
Transportation 
Cleansing 
Building Control 
 
RESPONSES 
Cllr. Errol Reid - objects 
No. 38  Nightingale Lane- objects 
No. 67  Nightingale Lane - objects 
No. 69  Nightingale Lane - objects 
No. 71  Nightingale Lane- objects 
No. 75  Nightingale Lane- objects 
No. 26 Hawthorn Road – objects 
No 76  Beechwood Road - objects 
 
Transportation-‘This proposed development is situated within a walking distance 
of W3, 144 and W7 bus routes on Priory Road which combined offer 39 buses 
per hour (two-way) for frequent connections to Crouch Hill over ground train 
station and Finsbury Park and Turnpike lane  tube station.  We have 
subsequently considered that some of the prospective residents of this 
development would use sustainable travel modes for their journeys to and from 
this site. In addition, our interrogation with TRAVL trip prediction database has 
revealed that, based on similar London sites (Chad Cres. Kariba Cl. Congo Dr-
N9, Osier Crescent-N10 and Tysoe Avenue- EN3), a development of this 
magnitude would only generate a combined in and out movement of 2 vehicles 
during the critical morning peak hour (0800-0900hrs). Moreover, notwithstanding 
that this site is not in an area which suffers from heavy on-street parking 
pressure, the applicant has proposed 4 basement level car parking spaces, which 
would be accessed via Brook Road, 1 motorbike space and 4 enclosed/secure 
cycle racks, as detailed on Plan No.389/P/-101.  It is therefore deemed that the 
level of vehicular trips ensuing from this development would not have any 
significant adverse impact on the existing traffic or indeed car parking demand on 
the adjoining roads.  
  
However, there is the concern that the adjoining footway on Brook Road is 
substandard on both sides. We will therefore require the applicant to enter into 
S.278 agreement under the Highways Act 1980, to upgrade the footway on both 
sides of this road from the junction of Nightingale Lane up to eastern boundary of 
this property. The cost of these works is estimated to be in the region of £20,000 
(twenty thousand pounds). 
  
Consequently, the highway and transportation authority would not object to this 
application on the conditions that the applicant: 
  
 enters into S.278 Highways Act 1980 or S.106 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990 agreement, for the reconstruction of the footway section abutting this 
development on Brook Road and an upgrade of the footway on the other side of 
this road, from the junction of Nightingale Lane up to the eastern boundary of this 
premises, the cost of which is estimated as £20,000 (twenty thousand pounds). 
Reason: To improve the conditions for pedestrians at this location. 

Page 107



Planning Committee Report  

  
Informative 
The new development will require numbering. The applicant should contact the 
Transportation Group at least six weeks before the development is occupied (tel. 
020 8489 1380) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address.’ 
 
Crime Prevention Officer: 
‘With reference to the above scheme and request for observations. It is important 
to note that there is a higher than average number of offences of anti-social 
behaviour near to this location. In fact, the sheltered housing immediately next 
door, Stokely Court has persistent problems with youths congregating in the car 
park at the rear and side. This would therefore be an ideal opportunity to consider 
the design of this proposed development and make changes to the built 
environment that will have a positive impact for local people. I would also expect 
that the security of the new scheme is of a sufficiently high standard. My further 
comments are: 
 
The boundary wall on the eastern side of the development is directly next to the 
car park for Stokely Court as mentioned above. It would be an ideal opportunity if 
this wall was replaced with a dwarf wall and railings, perhaps to the existing 
height to serve as a boundary but to increase natural surveillance both in the 
back of the new scheme and also for the rear of Stokely Court. We can give 
further advice as necessary and would be happy to meet any interested party to 
discuss this further.  
       
Regardless of the Secured by Design scheme, it is crucial that the communal 
door entry systems are a high quality door and / or “airlock” system; based on an 
electro-magnetic lock with no exposed moving parts, with the automatic door 
closer contained within the hinges or floor. Poor quality door systems lead to 
crime and high maintenance costs for the owner and are not in any way part of a 
sustainable development.  
 
The dwellings would benefit from the enhanced security standards detailed in the 
“Secured by Design Scheme” (www.securedbydesign.com).  
The design and planning stage of the development is the ideal opportunity to 
reduce crime opportunities and provide a sustainable environment for the local 
community. The Crime Prevention ‘ 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 
 
PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development 
 
PPS1 2005 sets out the fundamental planning policies on the delivery of 
sustainable development through the planning system.  PPS1 identifies the 
importance of good design in the planning system and that development should 
seek to improve rather than maintain the quality and character of towns and 
cities. 
 
PPS3 Housing 
 

Page 108



Planning Committee Report  

PPS3 2006 sets out central Government guidance on a range of issues relating to 
the provision of housing.  It states that the Government is committed to 
maximising the re-use of previously developed land -brownfield land in order to 
promote regeneration.  PPS3 also sets out the Governments commitment to 
concentrating additional housing developments in urban areas, new emphasis on 
providing family housing with consideration given to the needs of children to 
include gardens & play areas. Also, the importances of ensuring housing 
schemes are well-designed and create sustainable communities.  The need for 
development to include affordable housing is also set out in PPS3.  
 
The London Plan 
 
The London Plan issued by the Greater London Authority, forms the Spatial 
Development Strategy for Greater London.  It contains key policies covering 
housing, transport, design and sustainability in the capital. The current plan dated 
February 2008, sets housing targets for individual Boroughs for the period up to 
2016/17.  The target for Haringey is 6,800 additional ‘homes’ (680 per year).  
 
In terms of density, the London Plan states that appropriate density ranges are 
dependent on location, setting and public transport accessibility (PTAL) rating.  
For instance, the suggested density range for a site with a PTAL rating of 1 within 
urban setting is 150 – 250 habitable rooms per hectare. Whilst a site, with PTAL 
rating of 3, the density range suggested is 200 – 450 habitable rooms per 
hectare.  

 
G3      Housing Supply 
 
UD1  Planning Statements  
UD2 Sustainable Design and construction 
UD3 General Principles   
UD4   Quality Design 
UD7 Waste Storage 
UD8  Planning Obligations 
 
M10 Parking for Development 
 
HSG1   New Housing Developments 
HSG 4  Affordable Housing 
HSG 9   Density Standards 
HSG10   Dwelling Mix 
 

Page 109



Planning Committee Report  

SPG1a   Design Guidance   
SPG8a   Waste and Recycling 
SPG10a The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations 
SPG10c Education needs generated by new housing  
Housing Supplementary Planning Documents (adopted October 2008)  
 
 
ANALYSIS/ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 
The original scheme has been revised involving the following: 
 

• The reduction of two units with the objective of lowering the density on the 
site.    

• Change to the external appearance by  lining up horizontal features in the 
pub’s façade  with horizontal elements in the proposed new building.  

• The use of brick to match the  existing pub’s brickwork  with base level of 
render to correspond to the detailing of the pub’s elevation.   

• The design of the front entrance of the new building  to match  the central 
door of the existing pub. 

 
The current proposal involves the retention of  the pub use at ground floor with 
the  refurbishment of the upper floors to form 3 x two bed and 1 x one bed flats.  
Also the  existing single storey side extension  would be demolish and a new 3-
storey extension with basement floor erected to create self-contained units 
comprising of 3 x one bed, 1 x two bed and 1 x three bed flats.  
 
The main issues relating to the proposal are: 
 
i)          the principle of residential use on site  
ii) density 
iii) dwelling mix and room sizes 
iv) size, bulk & design 
v) privacy and overlooking 
vi) parking 
vii) amenity provision   
viii) waste disposal 
ix) sustainability 
 
 
These issues are discussed below: 
 
i)  The principle of residential use on site  
 
Planning Policy Statement 1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” advises that 
sustainable development is the core principle underpinning planning. The 
guidance advises, in paragraph 27 (viii), that planning should “promote the more 
efficient use of land through higher density, mixed-use development and the use 
of suitably located previously developed land and buildings”. 
 

Page 110



Planning Committee Report  

National Policy Guidance PPS 3 “Housing” and the London Plan encourage the 
residential development of brownfield sites. The pressure for new housing in the 
Borough means that brownfield sites, i.e. previously developed sites, are 
increasingly considered for housing development. In the Borough's tight urban 
fabric the opportunities for an acceptable form of development are increasingly 
limited as the availability of sites decrease. 

 
In considering the principle of residential use on the site, regard must be paid to 
the relevant national policy advice, based on PPS3 Housing and the London 
Plan. Guidance from central government and the London Plan set housing targets 
for Local Authorities.  

 
The London Plan sets housing targets for individual Boroughs for the period up to 
2017.  The current plan dated February 2008, sets housing targets for individual 
Boroughs for the period up to 2016/17.  The target for Haringey is 6,800 
additional ‘homes’ (680 per year).  These targets are generally reflected in Unitary 
Development Plan Policy G3.  
 
The upper floors of the main pub building is currently in residential use, as such  it 
is considered that the part use of the site for residential purposes is acceptable. 
Also the site is within a residential setting and the proposal would contribute 
towards the Council’s housing target.  
 
The proposed scheme would create 7 residential units, which is below the 
threshold for Affordable Housing provision in accordance with the London Plan 
and Unitary Development Plan policy HSG4 ‘Affordable Housing’.   
 
ii) Density 
 
Policy HSG9 ‘Density Standards’ sets a density range of 200 –700 habitable 
rooms per hectare. However, the policy requires that a ‘design–led’ approach is 
taken in the assessment of density of development proposals. Therefore matters 
such as the character of the local area, quality of the design, amenity standards, 
range and mix of housing types should also form part of the assessment to 
ensure proposed development relates satisfactorily with the site.  
 
The scheme proposes a total of 7 residential units. The development would 
provide a mix of 4 x 1 bedroom units, 2 x 2 bedroom units and 1 x 3 bedroom 
units. In total, the scheme has 18 habitable rooms. Therefore, applying the 
method set out in ‘Housing Supplementary Planning Documents ‘(adopted 
October 2008), the density of the proposed development is approximately 375 
habitable rooms per hectare. 
 
The proposed density is well within the range of 200 – 700 set out in the Unitary 
Development Plan. In the context of the surrounding area, the proposed density is 
considered appropriate for the site. Therefore the scheme is considered to have 
an acceptable density, in compliance with Policy HSG9 ‘Density Standards’ and 
HSPD (adopted October 2008). 
 
iii) Dwelling mix  and room sizes 

Page 111



Planning Committee Report  

 
In terms of the mix and standard of accommodation provided, Policy HSG 10 
‘Dwelling Mix’ and Housing Supplementary Planning Documents (adopted 
October 2008)  set out the Councils standards. The policy encourages the 
provision of a mix of dwelling types and sizes and outlines minimum flat and room 
size requirements for new residential developments, which ensures that the 
amenity of future occupiers is protected. 
 
This scheme would provide 4 X1bed units, 2 X 2bed units and 1 X 3bed units. 
The recommended percentage dwelling mix for new residential development as 
stated in HSPD for private market housing, allows 37% for 1bed, 30% for 2bed 
and 22% for 3bed units. This scheme would provide 37%  for 1bed,  28% for 
2bed and 14% for 3bed units  Although not entirely as recommended in 
guidelines set out in HSPD, it is considered that the proposed dwelling mix is 
suited to the particular nature of the scheme, which is relatively small-scale and 
not particularly suited for family accommodation . Therefore it is considered that 
the proposed dwelling mix would be appropriate to the scheme and site. 
 
The one-bedroom units’ internal floor area range from 37.6m² to 52.1m² which 
exceeds the Councils standard as set out HSPD.  The two-bedroom units’ internal 
floor area would be 70m² and exceeds the Councils standard as set out HSPD. 
The three-bedroom unit would allow over 100m², which also exceeds the 
Councils standard as set out HSPD.   Therefore the units’ sizes are considered to 
provide a satisfactory standard of accommodation. 
 
All the units/rooms are considered to have adequate light and ventilation. In 
addition, the scheme has the provision of a lift facility with two-way opening for 
wheelchair users to access all levels of the building. Therefore the proposed units 
are considered to comply with policy HSG10 and HSPD (adopted October 2008). 
 
iv) Size, bulk & design 
 
Policy UD3 ‘General Principles’ & UD4 ‘Quality Design’ require that new buildings 
are of an acceptable standard of design and be in keeping with the character of 
the surrounding area. The overriding aim of these criteria based policies is to 
encourage good design of new buildings in order to enhance the overall quality of 
the built environment and the amenity of residents.  These policies reflect the 
advice in PPS1 and PPS3. 

 
The scheme consist of a 3-storey extension block with basement level space 
which would front Brook Road, the ground floor would be raised and it would 
comprise of 3 x one bed and 1 x three bed self-contained flats. Also the 
refurbishment of the upper floors of the existing pub building to form 3 x two bed 
and 1 x one bed flats.   
 

Page 112



Planning Committee Report  

The scale and massing of the new extension has been designed to create 
subordination to the main pub building and to relate in height & scale to nearby 
buildings. It is contemporary in style; however it has been design to respect the 
Victorian Pub by incorporating features such as brickwork and the verticality of 
the fenestration.  The scheme introduces a series of recessed planters with 
lighting to help with pedestrian visibility at night.  
 
The external appearance of the pub building will essentially be intact with the only 
alterations being the addition of a rear dormer window, the replacements of two 
windows to the rear with small windows to match existing and the side entrance 
to the residential building, which would be constructed to match the original 
building.  
Therefore the proposed scheme is considered to be sensitively designed to fit in 
well within the existing street & townscape and as such minimise any adverse 
effect on the surrounding area. 
 
v) Privacy and overlooking  
 
Policy UD3 ‘General Principles’ and Housing Supplementary Planning 
Documents (adopted October 2008) seek to protect existing residential amenity 
and avoid loss of light and overlooking issues. 
 
The proposed scheme has a north - east orientation. The 3 storey extension block 
is considered not to compromise the privacy of the immediate properties as it 
would front Brook Road. To avoid loss of privacy to nearby properties on the 
southern boundary, obscured glazing is proposed to prevent overlooking. The 
positioned of the new building to the north, would also minimises shadowing on 
the rear gardens of adjacent properties.  The distance between the new extension 
block and the rear gardens of properties at Rectory Gardens would exceed 30m, 
which is within the standard set out in HSPD (adopted October 2008).  Therefore 
it is considered that any adverse impact in relation to loss of privacy and 
overlooking would be minimised.  
 
vi) Parking 
 
National planning policy seeks very clearly to reduce the dependence on the 
private car in urban areas such as Haringey. The advice in both PPS3 ‘Housing’ 
and PPS13 ‘Transport’ make clear recommendations to this effect. This advice is 
also reflected in the London Plan and the local policies M9:’Car –Free Residential 
Developments’ & M10: ‘Parking for Development’ sets out the Councils 
requirements for parking for this type of use.  
The scheme provides 4 car parking spaces, 4 bicycles spaces and a motorcycle 
space secured at basement level. Transportation has no objections to the 
scheme, subject to the conditions that the applicant enters into a S.106 or S.278 
agreement to achieve the following: 
  

• A contribution by way of the same legal agreement, a sum of £20,000 
(twenty thousand pounds) towards improvement to the footway on Brook 
Road. 

vii)      Amenity provision   

Page 113



Planning Committee Report  

 
Amenity space has been designed into scheme in the form of communal rear 
garden space and recessed balconies on the extension block. Also the scheme 
would provide a secured roof garden space.  It considered that the combined 
amenity provision is sufficient and acceptable, given the availability of public open 
space in the local area. Therefore on balance the propose amenity space 
provision is considered to meet guidelines set out in HSPD (adopted October 
2008). 
 
viii) Waste Management  
 
The scheme has been design with a refuse management system that allows for 
the external waste collection and the internal storage of recyclable waste 
products. However, to ensure that the Council’s standard of waste management 
is adhered to, a condition has been attached to this report requiring detail 
submission of a waste management scheme for approval. 
 
ix) Sustainability 

 
The re-use of under utilised land is regarded as an important sustainable feature 
of the development which complies with the thrust of both national and London 
wide guidance.  In addition, the scheme provides 4 secure bicycles and a 
motorcycle parking space. 
 
Further, the proposed development has been designed with sustainable 
materials and systems including: 
 

• Combination condensing boilers for providing the central heating & hot 
water supply. 

• Landscaped garden with potential to grow small trees. 

• Green roof to encourage biodiversity 

• Natural ventilation systems 

• Double glazed windows to reduced energy consumption 

• New walls, ceilings & floors to be insulated to accord with Building 
Regulations  

• Grey water recycling for toilet use 

• Low Energy light fittings  
 
Comments received from consultation and the Council's Response 
 
There have been 8 letters of objections from local residents. The grounds of 
objection include the following:  
 

• Conflict with Conservation Area,  

• Infringement of European Convention rights, 

• Increase density/overcrowding ,  

• Anti-social behaviour resulting from the scheme on nearby sheltered 
accommodation,  

• Increase traffic & parking problems,  

Page 114



Planning Committee Report  

• Not enough time given for consultation, because of time  of year,  

• Appearance of the new building,   

• Lack of benefit for local people, 
 
Response: Conflict with Conservation Area  

TThhee  ssiittee  lliieess  oouuttssiiddee  tthhee  ddeessiiggnnaatteedd  CCaammppssbboouurrnnee  CCoottttaaggee  EEssttaattee  CCoonnsseerrvvaattiioonn  

AArreeaa..  HHoowweevveerr,,  tthhee  sscchheemmee  iiss  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  ttoo  bbee  wweellll  ddeessiiggnneedd  aanndd  nnoott  iinn  ccoonnfflliicctt  

wwiitthh  tthhee  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  ooff  bbeeiinngg  aaddjjaacceenntt  ttoo  aa  CCoonnsseerrvvaattiioonn  AArreeaa..   
 
Response: Infringement of European Convention rights 

IItt  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  tthhaatt  tthhee  pprroovviissiioonn  ooff  hhoouussiinngg  oonn  tthhee  ssiittee  iiss  nnoott  aann  iinnffrriinnggeemmeenntt  ooff  

EEuurrooppeeaann  CCoonnvveennttiioonn rriigghhttss..  
 
Response: Increase density/overcrowding 

TThhiiss  iiss  aa  rreellaattiivveellyy  aa  ssmmaallll  ––ssccaallee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt,,  wwhhiicchh  iiss  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  ssuuiittaabbllee  ffoorr  

tthhee  ssiittee  aanndd  tthhee  iimmmmeeddiiaattee  ssuurrrroouunnddiinngg  aarreeaa..  IItt  iiss  nnoott  ccoonnssiiddeerr  tthhaatt  tthhee  pprrooppoossaall  

wwoouulldd  rreessuulltt  iinn  oovveerrccrroowwddiinngg  ttoo  uunnddeerrmmiinnee  tthhee  aammeenniittyy  ooff  tthhee  eexxiissttiinngg  ooccccuuppiieerrss  

iinn  tthhee  llooccaalliittyy..  FFuurrtthheerr  thhee  pprrooppoossaall  wwiillll  ccoonnttrriibbuuttee  ttoowwaarrddss  tthhee  BBoorroouugghh''ss  ssttrraatteeggiicc  

hhoouussiinngg  ttaarrggeett  aanndd  pprroovviiddee  mmuucchh  nneeeeddeedd  aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn  iinn  tthhee  BBoorroouugghh..  AAss  

ddeettaaiilleedd  iinn  tthhee  ddeennssiittyy  sseeccttiioonn  ooff  tthhiiss  rreeppoorrtt,,  tthhee  pprrooppoosseedd  ddeennssiittyy  ccoonnffoorrmmss  ttoo  tthhee  

CCoouunncciill’’ss  rreeqquuiirreemmeenntt.. 
 
Response: Anti-social behaviour resulting from the scheme on nearby sheltered 
accommodation  

IItt  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  tthhaatt  tthhee  pprrooppoosseedd  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  wwoouulldd  nnoott  rreessuulltt  iinn  aannttii--ssoocciiaall  

bbeehhaavviioouurr  oonn  nneeaarrbbyy  sshheelltteerreedd  aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn..  HHoowweevveerr,,  tthhee  sscchheemmee  wwoouulldd  bbee  

rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  mmeeeett  ‘‘sseeccuurreedd  bbyy  ddeessiiggnn’’  rreeqquuiirreemmeenntt  ttoo  mmiittiiggaattee  aannyy  ppootteennttiiaall  hhaarrmmffuull  

eeffffeeccttss  ssuucchh  aass  aannttii--ssoocciiaall  bbeehhaavviioouurr..      
 
Response: Increase traffic& parking problems  

TThhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  TTrraannssppoorrttaattiioonn  GGrroouupp  hhaass  nnoo  oobbjjeeccttiioonnss  ttoo  tthhee  sscchheemmee  aanndd  ddooeess  

nnoott  ccoonnssiiddeerr  tthhaatt  tthhee  pprrooppoosseedd  sscchheemmee  wwiillll  rreessuulltt  iinn  iinnccrreeaassee  ttrraaffffiicc  oorr  ppaarrkkiinngg  

pprroobblleemmss..  
 
Response: Not enough time given for consultation, because of time of year  

TThhee  ccoonnssuullttaattiioonn  ppeerriioodd  ooff  2211  ddaayyss  iiss  sseett  bbyy  tthhee  ggoovveerrnnmmeenntt  aanndd  ccoommmmeenncceess  

wwhheenn  tthhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  iiss  ssuubbmmiitttteedd  aanndd  vvaalliiddaatteedd..  AAlltthhoouugghh  tthhiiss  ssttaattuuttoorryy  ppeerriioodd  iiss  

sseett  bbyy  tthhee  ggoovveerrnnmmeenntt,,  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  iiss  nnoorrmmaallllyy  fflleexxiibbllee  aanndd  wwoouulldd  ccoonnssiiddeerr  

ccoommmmeennttss  aafftteerr  tthhee  2211  ddaayyss..          
 
Response: Appearance of the new building   

IItt  iiss  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  tthhaatt  aalltthhoouugghh  tthhee  pprrooppoosseedd  sscchheemmee  iiss  ccoonntteemmppoorraarryy  iinn  ddeessiiggnn,,  iittss  

iinnddeeppeennddeennccee  aanndd  oovveerraallll  ssccaallee  ddooeess  nnoott  uunnddeerrmmiinnee  tthhee  aarrcchhiitteeccttuurraall  eeffffeecctt  ooff  tthhee  

mmaaiinn  ppuubb  bbuuiillddiinngg..  FFuurrtthheerr,,  iitt  hhaass  bbeeeenn  ddeessiiggnn  ttoo  rreessppeecctt  tthhee  VViiccttoorriiaann  PPuubb  bbyy  

iinnccoorrppoorraattiinngg  ffeeaattuurreess  ssuucchh  aass  bbrriicckkwwoorrkk  aanndd  tthhee  vveerrttiiccaalliittyy  ooff  tthhee  ffeenneessttrraattiioonn..  
 

Page 115



Planning Committee Report  

Response: Lack of benefit for local people 

IItt  iiss  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  tthhaatt  tthhee  pprroovviissiioonn  ooff  hhoouussiinngg  wwiitthhiinn  BBoorroouugghh  iiss  bbeenneeffiicciiaall  ttoo  aallll  

HHaarriinnggeeyy  rreessiiddeennttss..    AAllssoo  tthhee  pprrooppoosseedd  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  wwoouulldd  bbee  ssuubbjjeecctt  ttoo  ffoooottwwaayy  

iimmpprroovveemmeenntt  wwhhiicchh  sshhoouulldd  bbeenneeffiitt  llooccaall  rreessiiddeennttss..   
 
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 
 
The scale and position of the proposed buildings is such that, any loss of amenity 
to the neighbouring occupiers would be minimised. The height of the proposed 
extension block would be subordinate to the main pub building and the overall 
design would not undermine the pub’s architectural form. The proposed density 
conforms to guidelines set out in the adopted Unitary Development Plan and the 
proposed housing provision would contribute the Council’s housing target.  
 
Therefore it is considered that the proposal is acceptable and consistent with the 
following Unitary Development Plan policies: UD3  ‘General Principles’, 
UD4’Quality Design’, UD7 ‘Waste Storage’, M10 ‘Parking for Development’, 
HSG1 ‘New Housing Developments’, HSG 9 ‘Density Standards’, HSG10 
‘Dwelling Mix’, SPG1a ‘Design Guidance’, SPG10c ‘Education needs generated 
by new housing’ and ‘Housing Supplementary Planning Document ‘ (adopted 
October 2008).  
 
The scheme is subject to a legal agreement, the main elements are: 
 

•     an education contribution of £ 20, 371  

•   a contribution of £20, 000 towards footway improvement in  the vicinity of the 
site under Sec 278 Agreement  

• an administration cost of £2, 018 
 
RECOMMENDATION 1 
 
That planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application 
reference number HGY2008/2319 (“the Planning Application”), subject to a pre-
condition that [the applicant and] [the owner(s)] of the application site shall first 
have entered into an agreement or agreements with the Council [under Section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and Section 16 of 
the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1974] [and] [under Section 
[278] of the Highways Act 1980] in order to secure:  
 

• Education contribution of £20, 371   

• Footway improvement contribution of £20,000 under Sec 278  Agreement 

• Plus 5% recovery/administration costs of £2, 018  
 
 

Page 116



Planning Committee Report  

RECOMMENDATION 2 
 

That, in the absence of the agreement(s) referred to in resolution (1) above being 
completed by 9 April 2009, planning application reference number 
HGY/2008/2319 be refused for the following reasons: 
 
In the absence of a formal undertaking to secure a Section 106 Agreement for 
appropriate contribution towards education provision the proposal is contrary to 
Policy UD8 ‘Planning Obligations’ of the adopted  Haringey Unitary Development 
Plan (2006) and SPG10c ‘Education needs generated by new housing’  
 
RECOMMENDATION 3 
 
In the event that the Planning Application is refused for the reasons set out in 
resolution (2) above, the Assistant Director (PEPP) (in consultation with the Chair 
of PASC) is hereby authorised to approve any further application for planning 
permission which duplicates the Planning Application provided that: 
 

(i) there has not been any material change in circumstances in the 
relevant    planning considerations, and 

(ii) the further application for planning permission is submitted to and 
approved by the Assistant Director (PEPP) within a period of not 
more than 12 months from the date of the said refusal, and 

(iii) the relevant parties shall have previously entered into the 
agreement(s) contemplated in resolution (1) above to secure the 
obligations specified therein. 

 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 
 
That following completion of Agreement referred in (1) above, planning 
permission be GRANTED in accordance with planning application no 
HGY/2008/2319 and applicant’s drawing No.(s) 389/IN/001, 002, 003, 100, 200; 
389/P/-101, 100, 100/5, 101B, 102B, 103, 104, 200C, 201C, 202, 203 & 204A. 
 
Subject to the following condition(s) 
 
1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the 
expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the permission 
shall be of no effect.  
Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of 
unimplemented planning permissions.  
 

Page 117



Planning Committee Report  

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and in the interests of amenity.  
 
3. Samples of all materials to be used for the external surfaces of the 
development shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority before any development is commenced.  Samples should include 
sample panels or brick types and a roofing material sample combined with a 
schedule of the exact product references.  
Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the exact 
materials to be used for the proposed development and to assess the suitability of 
the samples submitted in the interests of visual amenity.  
 
4. The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be carried 
out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 or after 
1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.  
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties.  
 
5. The development hereby authorised shall comply with BS 8220 (1986) Part 1, 
'Security Of Residential Buildings' and comply with the aims and objectives of the 
police requirement of 'Secured By Design' and 'Designing Out Crime' principles.  
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves the required 
crime prevention elements as detailed by Circular 5/94 'Planning out Crime'.  
 
6. Details of a scheme depicting those areas to be treated by means of hard 
landscaping shall be submitted to, approved in writing by, and implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. Such a scheme to include a detailed 
drawing of those areas of the development to be so treated, a schedule of 
proposed materials and samples to be submitted for written approval on request 
from the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: In order to ensure the development has satisfactory landscaped areas in 
the interests of the visual amenity of the area.  
 
7. The proposed development shall have a central dish/aerial system for receiving 
all broadcasts for all the residential units created, details of such a scheme shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
occupation of the property and the approved scheme shall be implemented and 
permanently retained thereafter.  
Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the neighbourhood.  
 

Page 118



Planning Committee Report  

8. That a detailed scheme for the provision of refuse and waste storage within the 
site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of the works. Such a scheme as approved shall be 
implemented and permanently retained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority.  
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.   
 
9. Before the commencement of any works on site, a fence or wall, materials to 
be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be erected and permanently 
retained for all site boundaries.  
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory means of enclosure for the proposed 
development.  
 
10. That the accommodation hereby approved shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved plans in order to provide 1 X 3bedroom, 2 X 
2bedrooms, 4 X 1bedrooms self-contained flats.  
Reason: In order to avoid overdevelopment of the site. 
 
 
 
INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming / numbering. The 
applicant should contact the Transportation Group at least six weeks before the 
development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a 
suitable address.  
 
 
 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL  
 
The scale and position of the proposed buildings is such that, any loss of amenity 
to the neighbouring occupiers would be minimised. The height of the proposed 
extension block would be subordinate to the main pub building and the overall 
design would not undermine the pub's architectural form. The proposed density 
conforms to guidelines set out in the adopted Unitary Development Plan and the 
proposed housing provision would contribute the Council's housing target.   
Therefore it is considered that the proposal is acceptable and consistent with the 
following Unitary Development Plan Policies: UD3 'General Principles', UD4 
'Quality Design', UD7 'Waste Storage', M10 'Parking for Development', HSG1 
'New Housing Developments', HSG 9 'Density Standards', HSG10 'Dwelling Mix', 
SPG1a 'Design Guidance', SPG10c 'Education Needs Generated by New 
Housing' and 'Housing Supplementary Planning Document ' (adopted October 
2008). 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee Report  

Planning Committee 11 May 2009     Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING COMMITTEE  
  
Reference No:   HGY/2008/2220 

 
Ward: Tottenham Hale 

 
Date received: 19/11/2008                           Last amended date: 24 April 2009 
 
Drawing number of plans: 08424/100 , 101, 102, 103, 110 Rev P2, 111, 112, 200, 300, 
301, 400, 1000 - 1022 incl., 2000 (all Rev P1) 
 
Address: Park Tavern Public House, 220 Park Lane, N17 
 
Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 4 storey building comprising 
366 sqm of retail (A1) floorspace plus Kingdom Hall (D1) on the ground floor, with 34 
flats, (2 x one bed, 13 x two bed, 15 x three bed and 4 x four bed flats on the upper 
floors), plus 22 car spaces and 44 cycle spaces. 
 
Existing Use: vacant (formerly PH)    
 
Proposed Use: Mixed use, retail, place of worship, residential   
 
Applicant: Park Lane House Limited 
 
Ownership: Private 
 

 
 
 
      

 
PLANNING DESIGNATIONS 
 
Road Network: Classified  Road 
 
Officer contact: Stuart Cooke 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions and S106 Legal Agreement and 
agreements under S256 and S278 of the Highways Act 1980 relating to exchange 
of land and works to the highway: 
 
 
SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
The application site comprises the former Park Tavern public house (PH) and car 
park site.  The site is located next to the Northumberland Park railway station at 
the junction of Park Lane, Shelbourne Road and Willoughby Lane.  Park Lane 
then leads up to the level crossing at the railway linking through to Marsh Lane 
and Meridian Way. 
 

Agenda Item 13Page 123



Planning Committee Report  

The surrounding area is generally residential.  Opposite the application site is a 
short, two storey, mixed use terrace of local shops and cafes on the ground floor 
with residential accommodation above.  Directly to the south of the site is Lois 
Court, a 3-storey block of flats built in the 1950’s.  Otherwise Shelbourne Road 
generally comprises two storey terraced Victorian housing.  On the opposite side 
of the junction is the 3-storey block of flats, Nos. 2-12 Shelbourne Road, built in 
the 1970’s.  To the north and west between Park Lane and Northumberland Park 
is the Northumberland Park estate a large municipal housing estate built largely in 
the 1970’s, comprising large blocks of flats between 4 and 17-storeys in height.  
Diagonally opposite the application site is a petrol filling station and bus 
turnaround for four bus routes.   
 
In policy terms, the site falls within the Tottenham International Development 
Framework area, (SSP20), which set out a broad framework for the regeneration 
of a large part of Tottenham based on a comprehensive mixed use approach to 
development.   The site area is approximately 0.26 hectares in size and is 
rectangular in shape with two road frontages to Shelbourne Road and Park Lane.  
It is now cleared.   
 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The site has been occupied by the Park Tavern public house for many years.  
This recently closed and the site left vacant.  There is no significant planning 
history relating to this site. 
 
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
The application is submitted by Savills on behalf of Park Lane House Ltd, a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Tottenham Hotspur Football Club (THFC) Plc. 
 
The application proposes the erection of 4 storey building comprising 366 sqm of 
A1 (retail) floorspace plus a place of worship on the ground floor, with 34 flats 
comprisisng 2 x one bed, 13 x two bed, 15 x three bed and 4 x four bed flats on 
the upper floors, plus 22 car spaces and 44 cycle spaces. 
 
The retail unit will occupy the northern part of the ground floor, facing onto Park 
Lane, opposite the existing commercial terrace and provide 366 square metres of 
A1 floorspace.  The shopfront will return round the corner into Shelbourne Road.  
The Kingdom Hall is 570 square metres and is located largely to the east side of 
the site, behind the retail and residential frontages with access from Shelbourne 
Road.  The Hall is intended to replace the existing Hall in Paxton Road, opposite 
the THFC ground, which will be demolished as part of the Spurs redevelopment 
proposals.   
 
The residential accomodation will be provided on the upper three floors, which is 
100% affordable.  The residential element will be owned and managed by Newlon 
Housing Association.   The residential acomodation is arranged in a curtilage 
building on all four sides of the site.  Access is from a main entrance in 

Page 124



Planning Committee Report  

Shelbourne Road via walkways at each level.  A podium deck is provided at first 
floor level to provide amenity space to the residential units.   
 
22 car spaces, including 3 disabled spaces, are provided at ground floor level 
below the podium accessed from Shelbourne Road, shared between the 
residential and Kingdom Hall uses, (9 and 8 respectively).   
 
The scheme has been the subject of considerable negotiation and redesign with 
the applicant.  The design of the building is modern, but utilising a pallette of 
traditional colours selected to complement the colours and finishes of the exsiting 
buildings surrounding the site.  The scheme has been assessed using the 
Buildings for Life criteria, developed by CABE in partnership with English 
Partnerships and Design for Homes.   
 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Ward Councillors 
 
Transportation  
Waste Management 
Building Control 
Arboriculturist 
 
Network Rail 
Metropolitan Police 
Environment Agency  
LFCDA 
 
263-271, 263a, 196-214 Park Lane 
1-12 (cons) Anglia Close 
2-32, 7-11, 11a, 11b, 15a, 15b, 17, 19 Shelbourne Road 
1-6 Lois Court, Shelbourne Road  
Wackett Timber Ltd, 5 Shelbourne Road  
1-18, 2a Park Avenue Road 
1-3, 2-32, 2a Willoughby Lane 
GL Autocare, Willoughby Lane 
 
 
RESPONSES 
 
Cllr Amin -  objects on grounds of more significant regeneration benefits required, 
density, open space, room sizes and access to natural light, need for retail space, 
inadequate car parking, juxtaposition of Kingdom Hall and residential use. 
 
Cllr Bevan – objects on grounds of overdevelopment, inadequate room sizes, 
poor design, need for retail floorspace, lack of parking, lack of amenity space, 
noise. 
 
Building Control – emergency vehicle access satisfactory. 

Page 125



Planning Committee Report  

 
LFCDA – satisfactory 
 
Environment Agency – to be reported verbally at the meeting 
 
Local residents – lack of parking, building too big, too dense, increase in traffic, 
noise. 
 
The scheme was subject to a Development Control Forum in December 2008.  
The minutes of the meeting are attached to this report as appendix 1. 
 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policies 
 
Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 
Planning Policy Guidance 4: Industrial, Commercial Development and Small 
Firms 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 24: Planning and Noise 
 
 
London Plan 2008 
 
2A.5 Opportunity Areas 
3A.3:Maximising the potential of sites 
3A.10 Negotiating Affordable Housing in Private Residential and Mixed Use 
Schemes 
3A.18: Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure and Community 
Facilities 
3C.23: Parking Strategy 
4B.1: Design Principles For a Compact City 
5B.2:Opportunity Areas in North London 
6A.4: Priorities in Planning Obligations 
 
 
Unitary Development Plan 
 
AC2 Tottenham International 
CW2 New Community/Health facilities 
HSG1    New Housing Developments 
HSG 4   Affordable Housing 
HSG 9   Density Standards 
HSG10 Dwelling Mix 
TCR1: Development in Town and Local Shopping centres 
EMP5: Promoting Employment Uses 
M10 Parking for Development 
UD2 Sustainable Design and construction 
UD3 General Principles   

Page 126



Planning Committee Report  

UD4   Quality Design 
UD7 Waste Storage 
UD8  Planning Obligations 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
Housing SPD October 2008 
SPG1a   Design Guidance   
SPG8a   Waste and Recycling 
SPG10a The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations 
SPG10b Affordable Housing  
 
Building for Life (BfL) assessment – this is the new national standard for 
assessment of new residential development.  It is led by CABE and the Home 
Builders Federation and backed by the Housing Corporation, English 
Partnerships, Design For Homes and the Civic trust.  The assessment consists of 
20 criteria designed to reflect the partners vision of what residential development 
should be attractive, sustainable, and functional.  Building for Life assessments 
are now required to be included in the Councils Annual Monitoring Reports (AMR) 
each year.  The assessment is included in this report as appendix 2. 
 
 
ANALYSIS/ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 
The main issues relating to the proposal are: 
 
1. Regeneration 
2.         The principle of mixed use  
 2.1 Retail 
 2.2 Employment 

2.3 Place of Worship 
3. Density 
4. Dwelling mix  
5. Affordable housing  
6. Size, bulk & design 
7. Amenity 
8. Noise 
9. Private amenity space 
10. Parking 
11. Waste management  
12. Sustainability 
13. S106 – Planning Obligation 
 
 
These issues are discussed below: 
 
1. Regeneration 
 
This scheme is directly linked to the broader proposal by THFC (plc) for the 
redevelopment of the football stadium site in Tottenham High Road.   The 

Page 127



Planning Committee Report  

development site for the new stadium is approximately 20 acres including the 
industrial areas to the north of the current site.  This site includes the existing 
Kingdom Hall in Paxton Road directly to the north of the existing stadium.  In 
order for the stadium development to go ahead, it is necessary to relocate the 
Kingdom Hall.  After considering a number of sites, the Park Tavern site has been 
identified as suitable and is acceptable to the users of the existing Kingdom Hall.  
As a result, THFC has acquired the site to enable the Kingdom Hall to be 
relocated and allow the stadium scheme to go ahead.  
 
The stadium scheme is one of the major regenerative proposals in the borough at 
the current time, providing a major new economic boost for the area, a high 
number of new jobs and business opportunities, an improved local environment 
and represents a significant investment in the north Tottenham area specifically 
and the borough as a whole.   As well as the new stadium with a capacity of 
58,000 set in a new public space fronting Tottenham High Road, the scheme will 
include new offices, hotel, supermarket, club museum and 450 new homes.   
 
In terms of the Park Tavern site, the Kingdom Hall element of the scheme forms 
part of a broader mixed use scheme including new retail floorspace and 
residential accommodation.  This approach is designed to maximise the potential 
of the site in line with advice in PPS 1 and PPS3 and provide regenerative benefit 
in itself through bringing new jobs and people into the local area. 
.    
   
2.  The principle of mixed use on site  
 
Planning Policy Statement 1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” advises that 
sustainable development is the core principle underpinning planning. The 
guidance advises, in paragraph 27 (viii), that planning should “promote the more 
efficient use of land through higher density, mixed-use development and the use 
of suitably located previously developed land and buildings”. 
 
National Policy Guidance PPS 3 “Housing” and the London Plan encourage the 
residential development of previously developed sites. In the Borough's densely 
developed urban fabric the opportunities for an acceptable form of development 
are increasingly limited as the availability of sites decrease.  In considering the 
principle of mixed use development on this site, regard must be paid to the 
relevant national policy advice, based on PPS3 Housing and the London Plan.  
 

Page 128



Planning Committee Report  

In this case, the site comprises previously developed land site in an area 
identified in the UDP as an are in need of regeneration.  The site is located in a 
generally built up urban area and therefore the principle of a mixed use approach 
to the redevelopment of the site is appropriate.  Policy AC2 of the UDP: 
Tottenham International identifies this site as being suitable for regeneration as 
part of the wider objective of regenerating this part of the borough, centred 
around Tottenham Hale.  This scheme will maximise the development potential of 
the site and and bring additional homes and jobs into the area.   
 
2.1  Retail 
The scheme also includes a small amount of retail floorspace, (366 square 
metres), which is to be non-food retail, which will reflect and reinforce the small 
commercial parade opposite.  It is understood the unit will be a Spurs shop.  
Policy TCR2: Out of Centre Development  requires that new retail floorspace 
outside identified shopping centres should not harm the vitality and viability of 
nearby shops and demonstrate need and apply the sequential approach where 
necessary.  Given the small size of the proposed retail floorspace, the sequential 
test is not considered necessary in this case.  The location of retail floorspace in 
this location close to the railway station and opposite an existing commercial 
terrace is considered acceptable and appropriate in terms of scale, character and 
function, and will support the vitality and viability of the existing shops.  As such, 
the proposal complies with policy TCR2. 
 
2.2. Employment 
 
In terms of employment, policy G4: Employment seeks to provide employment 
opportunities for local residents.  This proposal will create a number of local jobs, 
both full time and part time via the retail unit for the benefit of local people.  Whilst 
it is not clear how many jobs were associated with the public house use, it is likely 
that the proposed use will result in a net increase in job opportunities.  As such 
the proposal is considered to meet the requirements of policy G4. 
 
2.3. Place of worship 
 
In terms of the uses proposed, the scheme includes a Kingdom Hall to replace 
the existing Hall in Paxton Road.  The hall in Paxton Road has been there for 
many years with a well established local congregation.  Policy CW1 would 
support the relocation of this type of local community facility within the local area.   
 
2.4. Residential  
 
In terms of the residential use proposed, Council policy encourages the re-use of 
previously developed land in residential areas, in line with advice in PPG1 and 
PPG3.  New residential accommodation is also recognised to have significant 
regenerative benefits to the surrounding area.  Guidance from central government 
and the London Plan sets housing targets for individual Boroughs for the period 
up to 2016.  The target for the Council is to achieve 6,800 units between 2007 
and 2017 based on the housing capacity study of 2004. These targets are set out 
in Table 3A.1 of the London Plan and reflected in Unitary Development Plan 
Policy G3.  

Page 129



Planning Committee Report  

 
This scheme proposes 34 new flatted units of between 1 and 4-bedrooms.  All the 
units meet the Councils space standards and are designed to Code for 
Sustainable Homes Level 3.  All the units are affordable.  As such the scheme will 
provide a significant number of new homes of good quality and specification. 
 
3. Density 
 
Table 3A.2 of The London Plan 2008 sets a density of 200 – 450 habitable rooms 
per hectare for developments in urban areas within 10 minutes walking distance 
of a town centre with an accessibility index of 2 - 3.  The application site falls 
within this band.  The London Plan makes clear that, in addition to the PTAL 
rating, where the site has good existing or planned connectivity and capacity, the 
density of a scheme can be at the higher end of the appropriate density range. 
 
In terms of local policy, policy HSG9 ‘Density Standards’ sets a density range of  
200 –700 habitable rooms per hectare. The policy requires that a ‘design–led’ 
approach is taken in the assessment of density of development proposals. 
Therefore matters such as the character of the local area, quality of the design, 
amenity standards, range and mix of housing types should also form part of the 
assessment to ensure proposed development relates satisfactorily with the site.  
 
The scheme proposes a total of 34 residential units. The development would 
provide a mix of 2 x 1-bed, 13 x 2 bed and 15 x 3 bed and 4 x 4-bed units.  In 
total, the scheme has 123 habitable rooms. Therefore, applying the method set 
out in the Housing SPD October 2008 the density of the proposed development is 
approximately 473 habitable rooms per hectare.  However, taking into account 
the mixed use nature of the proposal and adjusting the site area accordingly, the 
density is increased to 553 habitable rooms per hectare.  This density is well 
within the range of 200 – 700 habitable rooms per hectare set out in the Unitary 
Development Plan.  Although it falls outside the density range recommended for 
sites of this type in the London Plan. However, considered in the context of the 
surrounding area, particularly in the context of the location of the site adjacent to 
a railway station and a bus turnaround, and the advice in the London Plan that 
specific local transport provision should be taken into account when considering 
individual development schemes, the proposed density is considered acceptable 
for the site and therefore complies with the London Plan and Policy HSG9 
‘Density Standards’ of the UDP and the Housing SPD October 2008. 
 
4. Dwelling mix of new building 
 
In terms of the mix and standard of accommodation provided, Policy HSG 10 
‘Dwelling Mix’ and the Housing SPD 2008 set out the Councils standards for new 
residential accommodation.  The policy encourages the provision of a mix of 
dwelling types and sizes and outlines minimum flat and room size requirements 
for new residential developments, which ensures that the amenity of future 
occupiers is protected. 
 
The Housing Needs Survey (2007) identifies a shortfall for all sizes of 
accommodation within the borough.  The requirement is most acute for affordable 

Page 130



Planning Committee Report  

3- and 4-bed properties.  This scheme provides 2 x 1-bed, 13 x 2-bed and 15 x 3-
bed and 4 x 4-bed units, therefore providing a high level of the larger, most 
required units.  The floor areas of the proposed units comply with the Councils 
standards are considered to provide a satisfactory standard of accommodation.   
All the units/rooms have adequate light and ventilation.  In addition, the units have 
been designed to conform to ‘Lifetime Homes Standards’ and meet level 3 of the 
Code For Sustainable Homes.  The proposed units are therefore considered to 
comply with policy HSG10 and the Housing SPD 2008. 
 
5. Affordable housing  
 
The London Plan and local policy HSG4: ‘Affordable Housing’  require that 
developments that propose 10 units and above are subject to the provision of 
affordable housing of up to 50% of the total units for affordable housing. In this 
case all of the 34 units proposed will be affordable.  In order to ensure that at 
least the 50% included in the S106 meet the Councils requirements, the applicant 
has agreed to provide 2 x 2-bed, 5 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed for rent, and 2 x 1-bed 
and 3 x 2-bed for intermediate tenure.   
 
6. Size, bulk & design 
 
Policy UD3 ‘General Principles’ and UD4 ‘Quality Design’ require that new 
buildings are of an good standard of design in keeping with the character of the 
surrounding area. The overriding aim of these criteria based policies is to 
encourage good design of new buildings in order to enhance the overall quality of 
the built environment in the local area.   The scheme is considered to represent 
an acceptable approach to the development of this site, in terms of the uses 
proposed, the scale of the development and the design, appearance and 
materials of the building.   
 
The approach to the design is modern, using modern materials selected to reflect 
the colours and textures of the existing buildings, helping the proposed building to 
blend in with its surroundings.  The character of the surrounding area is very 
mixed, ranging from the two storey brick Victorian terraces in Shelbourne Road, 
more modern small infill developments close by to the large rectangular, flat 
roofed blocks of the Northumberland Park estate including a 17- storey tower 
block, Kenneth Robbins House.  Given the mix of housing type, size, age and 
appearance, a modern approach to the design of this site is considered 
appropriate.  The use of materials to blend in with the surrounding area is 
important to allow the building to blend in to the surrounding area. 
 

Page 131



Planning Committee Report  

The scheme is designed as a perimeter block within the site creating a courtyard 
amenity area in the centre of the site onto which all of the residential units face.  
The reason for this approach is twofold, first to create strong street frontages to 
Park Lane and Shelbourne Road, and second to create a noise barrier along the 
east edge of the site to protect the proposed courtyard from noise and 
disturbance from the railway.  The courtyard is at podium level above the 
commercial uses and the parking area on the ground floor.  Access to the 
residential units is via a single entrance from Shelbourne Road with lifts to the 
upper floors and walkways around the inside overlooking the courtyard area.   
 
The proposed development is between 3 and 4-storeys in height with commercial 
and community uses on the ground floor and residential accommodation on the 
upper floors.  The proposed building line of the development fronting Shelbourne 
Road is set back from the site boundary to line through with the existing 
properties in Shelbourne Road, creating an enhanced public space in front of the 
building and improving its setting in the street scene.  The building frontage then 
returns round the corner with Park Lane creating a new retail façade facing the 
existing commercial terrace opposite. 
 
The scheme has also been assessed under the Building For Life standard 
developed by CABE in association with English Partnerships, (see below).  The 
scheme is assessed as achieving a score of 13.0 which is regarded as 
satisfactory.   The full assessment is include as appendix 2 below.  As such the 
proposal complies with the aims of policies UD3 ‘General Principles’ & UD4 
‘Quality Design’ 
 
7. Amenity 
 
Policy UD3 ‘General Principles’ seeks to protect existing residential amenity and 
avoid loss of light and overlooking issues.  In terms of sunlight and daylight, the 
applicant has prepared a Daylight/Sunlight study to assess the effect of the 
development on the surrounding properties based on the BRE guidelines: Site 
Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A Guide to Good Practice.  This Study 
concludes that all residential windows of properties surrounding the application 
site will continue to receive daylight and sunlight levels in excess of the BRE 
guidelines with the exception of the block of flats opposite, Nos. 2-12 Shelbourne 
Road, which will received 2% below the suggested amounts. 
 
8. Noise 
 
The applicant has also submitted a Noise Survey prepared by Buro Happold Ltd.  
This survey identifies the site as Noise Exposure Category C in accordance with 
PPG24.  It identifies the main sources of noise as being road and rail traffic.  The 
Report concludes that with suitable noise mitigation measures, the site is suitable 
for residential development. The scheme has been designed to minimise the 
noise levels penetrating into the site particularly from the railway to the east.  In 
particular, the central courtyard is protected from outside noise by the general 
layout of the proposed buildings.  As such, it is considered that the proposal 
complies with the aims of policy UD3. 
9. Private Amenity Space   

Page 132



Planning Committee Report  

 
The Housing SPD 2008 sets out the amount of private amenity space to be 
provided in new build residential development.  In the case of flatted 
developments, a minimum of 50 square metres is required plus an additional 5 
square metres per flat over 5 units.  On this basis, the policy requirement for 
communal space for this development is 195 square metres.  In this case, the 
principal amenity space for the development comprises a central courtyard at 
podium level.  All units overlook this courtyard and have access to it.  Additionally, 
all units have private balconies giving additional private amenity space.   The 
courtyard is 30 x 18 metres in total resulting in an open area, (i.e. not including 
the areas under the walkways) of 364 square metres .  In addition, each flat has a 
private balcony which, in total provide 308 square metres of private amenity 
space.  As such, the development meets and exceeds the policy requirement for 
communal space as set out in the SPD. 
 
A childrens play space of 40 square metres is included in the central courtyard 
area which will be available to all residents.  Details of the play equipment to be 
included in the play area are required by condition. 
 
10. Parking 
 
Following the results of the views expressed at the DC Forum and via the 
consultation process, the amount of parking provided in the scheme has been 
increased.  The scheme now incorporates a total of 22 spaces, including 3 
disabled spaces, of which 5 spaces are provided on street.   8 of these spaces 
are for use by the Kingdom Hall.   
 
National planning policy seeks to reduce the dependence on the private car in 
urban areas such as Haringey. The advice in both PPS3 ‘Housing’ and PPS13 
‘Transport’ make clear recommendations to this effect. This advice is also 
reflected in the London Plan and the local policy M10: ‘Parking for Development’ 
sets out the Councils requirements for parking for this type of use.  
 
The application site is within an area of relatively low car ownership and car 
dependency.  The Transport Assessment submitted with the application show 
that only 59% of properties in the area own a car.  In terms of traffic impact, the 
Assessment concludes the development will generate 11 morning and 14 evening 
peak 2-way vehicle trips.  This is considered not to be significant in terms of the 
effect on the surrounding highway network.  The amount of additional traffic 
anticipated as a result of the proposal is not considered to have a significant 
effect on either road safety or air quality in the local area based on TfL data.  The 
site has a PTAL rating of 2 which is a poor/medium classification.  It is however 
directly adjacent to the Northumberland Park railway station and the bus 
turnaround for routes W3, 341, 476 and the N76 night bus is opposite.   
 

Page 133



Planning Committee Report  

In terms of existing parking restrictions, there are double yellow lines outside the 
site and on both sides of Shelbourne Road and Park Lane.  Single lines continue 
north and south along Shelbourne Road and west along Park Lane.  Within these 
restriction there are marked residents parking bays.  The site is also within the 
Tottenham Hotspur Match Day CPZ which restricts unauthorised parking on 
designated match days.  These restrictions prevent unlawful on-street car parking 
near the development site and will therefore avoid any additional on-street 
parking which may be detrimental to highway conditions as a result of the 
proposed development. 
 
The applicant has submitted information relating to the Kingdom Hall which 
demonstrates that most of the congregation, which averages approximately 159, 
are local and will travel to the site either on foot or by public transport.  In addition, 
the scheme includes 44 secure sheltered bicycle parking spaces which also 
complies with the Councils requirements.  Subject to the provision of a 
satisfactory Travel Plan, this level of provision is considered to represent a 
satisfactory balance between the operational demand for parking associated with 
the development and the policy requirement that parking provision is not 
excessive.  A condition is attached requiring the submission of a satisfactory 
Travel Plan prior to the occupation of the development. 
 
The scheme also requires works to be carried out to the public highway under a 
S278 Highways Act 1980 agreement.  A separate condition is attached requiring 
details of these works to be agreed prior to the commencement of the 
development.  
 
11. Waste Management  
 
The scheme has been designed with a refuse management system that allows for 
the external waste collection and the internal storage of recyclable waste 
products.  The refuse strategy for the development is provides separate bulk 
waste storage for each element of the scheme, (retail, Kingdom Hall and 
residential).   The storage spaces are located for ease of access, particularly for 
the residents, positioned directly adjacent to the stair core to avoid the need to 
leave the building to use the storage facility. 
 
The 10 metre minimum requirement for collection of bulk waste containers for 
residential refuse is met.  For the Kingdom Hall and retail unit, a private lock-away 
wheelie bin collection point is located within the 25 metre travel distance to the 
collection vehicle.   The number and position of the bulk storage containers has 
been discussed and agreed with the Waste Management Service. 
 
12. Sustainability 
 
The scheme proposes the re-use of previously developed land located adjacent 
to a main line railway station and bus turnaround, giving reasonable access to 
public transport.  Reduced car parking is therefore provided with a good provision 
of secure cycle parking. 
 

Page 134



Planning Committee Report  

The proposed development has been designed to achieve minimum level 3 Code 
for Sustainable Homes and includes the following sustainable features: 
 

• Reuse of previously developed land 

• Affordable housing 

• Level access with three Wheelchair units 

• All units to Lifetime Homes standards 

• Buildings are orientated to maximise natural light and ventilation 

• Solar preheating of water included in scheme 

• 10%on site renewable energy provision 

• Lifetime Home Standards compliance 

• Timber from approved and sustainable sources as approved by FSC 

• Low Energy light fittings  

• External insulated building envelope to high levels of U Values. 

• Creation of local permanent jobs in the retail element 
 
In terms of energy efficiency and renewable energy, the applicant has submitted 
an energy statement by Buro Happold.  This report concludes the scheme will 
achieve a site wide 9.9% reduction in energy consumption along with a 7.86% 
reduction in carbon dioxide emissions through improvement s to the building 
fabric and systems.  A 19.5% site wide reduction in total energy consumption can 
be achieved through improvements to the building fabric and systems and 
installation of the proposed renewable energy solutions.  When the savings from 
energy efficiency are used to recalculate the base line energy consumption, the 
solar thermal panels will provide 10.6% of the total site energy, therefore meeting 
the required target of 10%. 
 
13. S106 Planning Obligations 
 
The applicant has agreed to enter into a S106 agreement in line with national 
guidance and advice in SPG10a.  The agreement includes contributions towards: 
 

• Affordable housing 
The scheme is submitted on the basis of 100% affordable housing.  In 
order to ensure that at least 50% provision is achieved, the applicant has 
agreed to provide 2 x 2-bed, 5 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed for rent, and 2 x 1-
bed and 3 x 2-bed for intermediate tenure. 

 

• Monitoring charge to a maximum 5% of total value - £5000. 
 
GLA Toolkit Assessment 
The applicant has submitted a GLA Toolkit assessment of the scheme to 
demonstrate the schemes viability and its ability to support additional 
contributions.  The GLA toolkit is recognised as a material consideration in the 
determining of planning applications involving affordable housing and can be 
used to justify planning applications to ensure that S106 requirements do not 
make a scheme unviable.  The London Plan acknowledges that the 50% 
affordable housing target has to be considered on a sites ability to deliver.  This is 
assessed deducting the cost of development from the value of the scheme as 

Page 135



Planning Committee Report  

built.  The principle of the GLA toolkit is that if the residual land value of a scheme 
falls below a benchmark value, the scheme is not technically viable.  The 
approach allows for a reasonable level of commercial development profit as one 
of the several development cost components.  It should be borne in mind that this 
approach involves variables and judgements must be made when considering the 
outputs.  The toolkit includes suggested guideline figures for the various 
components of the assessment. 
 
In this case, the analysis of the viability of the scheme includes the provision of 
100% affordable housing as part of the assessment.  The Toolkit analysis 
considers the site area and location, the nature of the scheme, acquisition costs 
and build cost assumptions.  These costs are provided by consultants Stace LLP.  
In terms of the retail use, it factors in known variables from other local retail sites 
in the vicinity.  It also factors in known costs relating to the affordable housing and 
the Kingdom Hall.  The toolkit concludes that the residual value of the scheme is -
£125,000 and is therefore not viable, (i.e. the development will be built at a loss).  
It also concludes that even when reducing the developers profit, professional fees 
and marketing costs, the scheme does not generate a residual value equal to or 
above the acquisition cost.  Therefore any further planning obligations would 
make the scheme less viable.    
 
A summary of the GLA Toolkit is attached as appendix 3. 
 
 
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 
 
The application site comprises the former Park Tavern PH and car park site.  The 
PH recently closed and the site left vacant.  There is no significant planning 
history relating to this site. 
 
The application proposes the erection of 4 storey building comprising 366 sqm of 
A1 (retail) floorspace plus Kingdom Hall on the ground floor, with 2 x one bed, 13 
x two bed, 15 x three bed and 4 x four bed flats on the upper floors, plus 22 car 
spaces and 44 cycle spaces. 
 
This proposal is directly linked to the broader proposal by THFC (plc) for the 
redevelopment of the football stadium site in Tottenham High Road in that the 
stadium site includes the existing Kingdom Hall in Paxton Road.  THFC has 
acquired the Park tavern site to enable the Kingdom Hall to be relocated and 
allow the stadium scheme to go ahead.  The stadium scheme is one of the major 
regenerative proposals in the borough at the current time, providing a major new 
economic boost for the area, a high number of new jobs and business 
opportunities, an improved local environment and represents a significant 
investment in the north Tottenham area specifically and the borough as a whole.    
 
The site is located in a generally built up urban area and therefore the principle of 
a mixed use approach to the redevelopment of the site is appropriate.  In the 
context of the surrounding area, particularly considering the location of the site 
adjacent to a railway station and a bus turnaround, and the advice in the London 
Plan that specific local transport provision should be taken into account when 

Page 136



Planning Committee Report  

considering individual development schemes, the proposed density is considered 
acceptable for the site and therefore complies with the London Plan and Policy 
HSG9 ‘Density Standards’ of the UDP and the Housing SPD October 2008. 
 
The scheme provides 2 x 1-bed, 13 x 2-bed and 15 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed units, 
therefore providing a high level of the larger, most required units.  The floor areas 
of the proposed units comply with the Councils standards are considered to 
provide a satisfactory standard of accommodation.  In the scheme is considered 
to represent an acceptable approach to the development of this site, in terms of 
the uses proposed, the scale of the development and the design, appearance and 
materials of the building.   The scheme has also been assessed under the 
Building For Life standard developed by CABE in association with English 
Partnerships.  The scheme is assessed as achieving a score of 13.0 which is 
regarded as acceptable.   In order to ensure that at least the 50% included in the 
S106 meet the Councils requirements, the applicant has agreed to provide 2 x 2-
bed, 5 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed for rent, and 2 x 1-bed and 3 x 2-bed for 
intermediate tenure.   
 
Following the results of the views expressed at the DC Forum and via the 
consultation process, the amount of parking provided in the scheme has been 
increased.  The scheme now incorporates a total of 22 parking spaces, including 
3 disabled spaces, of which 5 spaces are provided on street.  The applicant has 
submitted information relating to the Kingdom Hall which demonstrates that most 
of the congregation are local and will travel to the site either on foot or by public 
transport.  Subject to the provision of a satisfactory Travel Plan, this level of 
provision is considered acceptable. 
 
The scheme has been designed with a refuse management system that allows for 
the external waste collection and the internal storage of recyclable waste 
products.  The number and position of the bulk storage containers has been 
discussed and agreed with the Waste Management Service. 
 
The applicant has agreed to enter into a S106 agreement in line with national 
guidance and advice in SPG10a.  The agreement includes contributions towards: 
 

• Affordable housing 
The scheme is submitted on the basis of 100% affordable housing.  In 
order to ensure that at least 50% provision is achieved, the applicant has 
agreed to provide 2 x 2-bed, 5 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed for rent, and 2 x 1-
bed and 3 x 2-bed for intermediate tenure. 

 

• Monitoring charge to a maximum 5% of total value - £5000. 
 
On the basis of the above considerations, the application is recommended for 
approval subject to a S106 agreement and conditions. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Page 137



Planning Committee Report  

GRANT PERMISSION subject to a S106 legal agreement and agreements under 
S256 and S278 of the Highways Act 1980 relating to exchange of land and works 
to the highway: 
 
Registered No. HGY/2008/2220 
 
Applicant’s drawing Nos. 08424/100, 101, 102, 103, 110, 111, 112, 200, 300, 
301, 400, 1000 - 1022 incl., 2000 (all Rev P1) 
 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the 
expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the permission 
shall be of no effect.   
Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of 
unimplemented planning permissions.  
 
2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and in the interests of amenity.  
 
3. Samples of all materials to be used for the external surfaces of the 
development shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority before any development is commenced.  Samples should include 
sample panels or brick types and a roofing material sample combined with a 
schedule of the exact product references.   
Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the exact 
materials to be used for the proposed development and to assess the suitability of 
the samples submitted in the interests of visual amenity.  
 
4. A scheme for the treatment of the surroundings of the proposed development 
including the planting of trees and/or shrubs shall be submitted to, approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, and implemented in accordance with the 
approved details.   
Reason: In order to provide a suitable setting for the proposed development in the 
interests of visual amenity.  
 
5. Details of a scheme depicting those areas to be treated by means of hard 
landscaping shall be submitted to, approved in writing by, and implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. Such a scheme to include a detailed 
drawing of those areas of the development to be so treated, a schedule of 
proposed materials and samples to be submitted for written approval on request 
from the Local Planning Authority.   
Reason: In order to ensure the development has satisfactory landscaped areas in 
the interests of the visual amenity of the area.  
 

Page 138



Planning Committee Report  

6. The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be carried 
out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 or after 
1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.   
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties.  
 
7. No development shall take place until site investigation detailing previous and 
existing land uses, potential land contamination, risk estimation and remediation 
work if required have been submitted to and approved  in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved.   
Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to ensure the site is 
contamination free.  
 
8. That not more than 34 separate units, whether flats or houses shall be 
constructed on the site.   
Reason: In order to avoid overdevelopment of the site.  
 
9. The proposed development shall have a central dish/aerial system for receiving 
all broadcasts for all the residential units created, details of such a scheme shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
occupation of the property and the approved scheme shall be implemented and 
permanently retained thereafter.   
Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the neighbourhood.  
 
10. That the accommodation for car parking and/or loading and unloading 
facilities be specifically submitted to, approved in writing by and implemented in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Planning Authority before the 
occupation of the building and commencement of the use; that accommodation to 
be permanently retained for the accommodation of vehicles of the occupiers, 
users of, or persons calling at the premises and shall not be used for any other 
purposes.   
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or the conditions of general safety along the neighbouring 
highway.  
 
11. That a detailed scheme for the provision of refuse and waste storage within 
the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the works. Such a scheme as approved 
shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter to the satisfaction of 
the Local Planning Authority.    
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.  
 

Page 139



Planning Committee Report  

12. In order to ensure that the shop is accessible to people with disabilities and 
people pushing double buggies, the door must have a minimum width of 900mm, 
and a maximum threshold of 25mm.   
Reason: In order to ensure that the shop unit is accessible to all those people 
who can be expected to use it in accordance with Policy RIM 2.1 'Access For All' 
of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan.  
 
13. No detriment to the amenity of the neighbourhood shall be caused by noise or 
other disturbance than is reasonable as a result of the use of the Kingdom Hall 
hereby authorised.   
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties.  
 
14. Notwithstanding the details submitted, full details of the play equipment to be 
installed in the childrens play area shown on drawing no. 08424/400/P1shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, prior to the 
occupation of the residential units.   
Reason: to ensure a satisfactory standard of play provision in the development.  
 
15. That full details of a scheme for works to the public highway to be carried out 
under S278 of the Highways Act 1980 shall be submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
development, the full cost of such works to be borne by the applicant.   
Reason: to ensure that the necessary works to the public highway as required by 
the development hereby approved are satisfactory implemented. 
 
 
INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming / numbering. The 
applicant should contact the Transportation Group at least six weeks before the 
development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a 
suitable address.  
 
 
INFORMATIVE: That all works on or associated with the public highway be 
carried out by The Transportation Group at the full expense of the developer.  
Before the Council undertakes any works or incurs any financial liability the 
developer will be required to make a deposit equal to the full estimated cost of the 
works. 
 
 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL  
 
The application is considered to meet the requirements of the relevant policies 
contained in national guidance, the London Plan 2008 and the Unitary 
Development Plan 2006, and is therefore considered to be a satisfactory 
development for the site.  

 

Page 140



 -  - 1 

 
PLANNING, POLICY & DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL DIVISION 
 

MINUTES 

 
 

Meeting : Development Control Forum  - Park Tavern N17, 220 Park Lane, N17 

– HGY/2008/2220 
Date : 15th January 2009 
Place : Resource Centre, Park Lane N17 
Present : Cllr Bevan,  4 Local Residents and Applicants Agent’s 

Minutes by : Tay Makoon 
 

 

Distribution :  

 

    1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Paul Smith opened the meeting by welcoming everyone to the meeting 
and introduced officers, members and the applicant’s representatives.  
He explained the purpose of the meeting that it was not a decision 
making meeting, the house keeping rules, he explained the agenda and 
that the meeting will be minuted and attached to the officers report for 
the Planning Committee. 
 
Proposal:  Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 4 storey 
building comprising 380sqm of A1 (Retail) floorspace plus Kingdom Hall 
on the ground floor, with 2 x one bed flats on the upper floors plus 15 car 
spaces and 37 cycle spaces. 
 
Main Issues 
Principle of Use 
Size, Scale and Density 
Design and Appearance 
Impact on adjoining properties 
Car Parking 
Landscaping 
 
Presentation by Richard Sierra  
The presentation covered the Design Brief 
Site Location, context and analysis 
Proposed ground floor layout 
Retail 
Kingdom Hall 
Residential entry & car parking  
Building section 
Courtyard – communal amenity 
Materials 
Key elevation ( & Visuals 
Positive impact of the scope 
 

 

 

Page 141



 -  - 2 

 

  4. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Questions 
Concerns raised by local residents: 
 

• Parking on & off match days 

• Lack of parking facilities provided on site for the development 

• Lack of public transport for the use of Kingdom Hall 

• Design 

• Noise from Kingdom Hall 

• Overcrowding 

• Spurs takeover 

• Demolition of Park Tavern 

• Character and appearance 
 
Q1:  Why did the owner demolish the building? 
Answer:  The owner in this case does not need permission to demolish 
his property and he owns it and this is what he has done.  The reason 
why they demolished is because the pub was vacant and to avoid 
squatters. 
 
Q2:  Why did they demolish the front of the building last – is it because it 
is listed and they were meant to keep it? 
Ans:  The building is not listed and one would assume they were 
following Health & Safety regulations. 
 
Q3:  Do you know who the owners are? 
Ans:  The owners are Park Lane House Ltd. 
 
Q4:  Cllr Bevan:  Does the development have a flat roof? what amenity 
space is provided for the flats.  The design is a monstrosity, it is not in 
keeping with the area, it is not a design you would expect for such a 
prime landmark location.  It is unacceptable.  Have the scheme been to 
the Haringey Design Panel? 
Ans:  Yes the development has a flat roof; The scheme has provided 
amenity space in the courtyard and the balconies for the flats.  The 
scheme has not been to the Design Panel as yet.  As for the design it is 
a matter of opinion and we do take your views on board. 
 
Q4:  Have you actually seen the site? 
Ans:  Yes – we have been on site and visited the local surroundings and 
in designing the scheme we need to take into consideration the local 
context as shown in our presentation.  We are very familiar with the 
location. 
 
Q5: Why are you putting this big development there with no adequate 
parking facilities, we already have problems with parking from the bus 
drivers, local people do not have space to park and have to go half a 
mile to park.  Most of the people in this area are a mixture of old people 
and families with more than one child.  They can’t park now, how do you 
expect them to be able to park? 
Ans:  The scheme meets Council Policy on parking, it is considered that 
this location is well served by public transport and that the users of the 
Kingdom Hall will use public transport to access the site. 
 
Q6:  Why have you only got 15 parking spaces for this development?  

Page 142



 -  - 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   5. 

Where do you expect the people from your flats to park?  What about 
emergency vehicles? 
 
Ans:  The Government is trying to reduce the number of cars on the 
roads, and the parking allocation for this scheme meets the Councils 
policy on parking.  It is expected that the people living here would use 
public transport.  Emergency vehicles can access the site, it is a legal 
requirement and this scheme fully meets that requirement. 
 
Q7:  How many people do you envisage using the Kingdom Hall? 
Ans:  We expect about 200/300 people to visit the Kingdom Hall. 
 
Q8:  Have you thought how they are going to arrive here? 
Ans:  We would expect them to use public transport to get to the Hall. 
 
Q9:  Are you aware that there is no Sunday train service at 
Northumberland Park. As you are aware people visiting the Kingdom 
Hall will be families, most people with children drive, where do you 
expect them to park? 
Ans: We have explained before that the Government is trying to reduce 
the number of cars on the road and there are schemes such as this all 
over London with little or no parking allocation. We understand you have 
concerns and take your comments on board. 
 
Q10:  Is the Kingdom Hall sound proof? 
Ans:   The Kingdom Hall is sound proof in order to meet building control 
requirements. 
 
Q11:    Cllr Bevan - why have you only allocated four parking spaces 
considering the number of people using the hall is expected to be 
200/300?  Who will manage the scheme to make sure the balconies 
does not have washing on etc? 
 
Ans:  The scheme has been designed with minimum parking allocation 
as this location is considered to be well served by public transport and 
the government is looking at reducing the number of cars on the road 
and developers are encouraged to submit a green travel plan to 
encourage people to travel by public transport. With regards to 
management  Newlon will have their own management plan in place to 
manage and maintain the building 
 
Paul Smith concluded the meeting by thanking everyone for attending 
and participating.  He reminded everyone to send in objections and that 
further representations can be made at Planning Committee. 
 
 
End of meeting 
 

 
 

Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
6
 

In
it
ia
l 
B
u
il
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
L
if
e
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

P
A
R
K
 T
A
V
E
R
N
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

2
0
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

  H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
| 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 &
 D
e
s
ig
n
 G
ro
u
p
  

 D
e
ta
il
e
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
s
c
o
re
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

5
.0
  

C
h
a
ra
c
te
r 

 
 

 
3
.5
  

S
tr
e
e
ts
, 
P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 L
a
y
o
u
t 

1
.0
  

D
e
s
ig
n
 &
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

 
3
.5
  

 T
O
T
A
L
 S
C
O
R
E
 
 

 
1
3
.0
 

 

C
R
IT
E
R
IA
 

C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S
 

S
C
O
R
E
 

E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 &
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 

 
5
.0
  

0
1
 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 (
o
r 
is
 i
t 

c
lo
s
e
 t
o
) 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
 

s
c
h
o
o
l,
 p
a
rk
s
, 
p
la
y
 a
re
a
s
, 
s
h
o
p
s
, 
p
u
b
s
 

o
r 
c
a
fe
s
?
 

A
 n
e
w
 p
la
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rs
h
ip
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
 s
it
e
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 2
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 

a
n
d
 1
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
it
h
in
 a
 5
-1
0
 m

in
u
te
 w
a
lk
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 s
it
e
 s
it
s
 j
u
s
t 
w
it
h
in
 a
n
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
y
 

a
re
a
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 m
a
p
 8
.1
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 U
D
P
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
is
 c
lo
s
e
 

to
 f
o
o
tb
a
ll 
p
it
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
 V
a
lle
y
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
a
rk
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
a
s
t.
  
A
 n
e
w
 p
la
y
g
ro
u
n
d
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
 s
it
e
. 

 

1
.0
 

 

0
2
 

Is
 t
h
e
re
 a
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m
ix
 t
h
a
t 

re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
?
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
m
ix
 o
f 
u
n
it
 s
iz
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 4
4
%
 1
 a
n
d
 2
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
 

a
n
d
 5
6
%
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
 u
n
it
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 m

u
c
h
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
P
D
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
lls
 f
o
r 
4
5
%
 1
-2
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
 u
n
it
s
 

a
n
d
 5
5
%
 3
-4
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
 u
n
it
s
  

1
.0
 

0
3
 

Is
 t
h
e
re
 a
 t
e
n
u
re
 m
ix
 t
h
a
t 
re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
?
 

T
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
P
D
 s
tr
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
d
re
s
s
in
g
 

th
e
 h
ig
h
 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
re
n
te
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
 w
a
rd
 h
a
s
 a
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
re
n
te
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 o
ff
e
rs
 1
/3
 o
f 
u
n
it
s
 a
s
 s
h
a
re
d
 

o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 r
e
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 i
m
b
a
la
n
c
e
. 
 

 

1
.0
 

0
4
 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 e
a
s
y
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
u
b
li
c
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
?
 

T
h
e
 s
it
e
 i
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
d
 b
y
 4
 b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
rl
a
n
d
 t
ra
in
, 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 g
o
o
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
. 
A
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 T
ra
v
e
l 
P
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

1
.0
 

 

Page 145



P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
6
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
. 
  
 

0
5
 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 

fe
a
tu
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
d
u
c
e
 i
ts
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

im
p
a
c
t?
 

T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 h
a
s
 a
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 C
S
H
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
3
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
o
la
r 
th
e
rm

a
l 

p
a
n
e
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
o
f 
p
ro
v
id
e
 1
0
%
 e
n
e
rg
y
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 s
it
e
. 
T
h
is
 

m
e
e
ts
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 I
n
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 s
e
d
u
m
 

ro
o
fs
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 w
a
te
r 
a
b
s
o
rp
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
. 
  
C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
c
y
c
la
b
le
 w
a
s
te
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
s
..
  
 

1
.0
 

 

C
H
A
R
A
C
T
E
R
 

 
3
.5
 

0
6
 

Is
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
?
 

T
h
is
 s
it
e
 s
it
s
 a
t 
th
e
 S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
c
o
rn
e
r 
o
f 
a
 l
o
c
a
lly
 m

a
jo
r 
c
ro
s
s
ro
a
d
s
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
ly
 p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
, 
v
is
ib
le
 

fr
o
m
 q
u
it
e
 s
o
m
e
 d
is
ta
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
s
 a
 

o
n
e
-o
ff
 d
e
s
ig
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
it
e
, 
in
 a
 m
o
d
e
rn
 s
ty
le
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
p
ic
k
 u
p
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
v
e
rn
a
c
u
la
r 
o
r 
b
u
ild
in
g
 t
y
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
, 
b
u
t 
u
s
e
s
 g
o
o
d
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 m

a
te
ri
a
ls
 o
f 
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 i
ts
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
.,
 T
h
e
 

v
e
rt
ic
a
l 
rh
y
th
m
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 t
e
rr
a
c
e
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
a
s
 d
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
lo
u
rs
. 
 A
 d
o
m
in
a
n
t,
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 N
o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t 

c
o
rn
e
r 
a
n
d
 m
o
re
 m
o
d
e
s
t,
 l
o
w
-k
e
y
 s
id
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
r 
a
re
 a
n
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
. 
 T
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 

fo
re
c
o
u
rt
 i
s
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 f
a
ç
a
d
e
 f
ro
n
ti
n
g
 i
t,
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 c
h
a
m
fe
re
d
 c
o
rn
e
r,
 g
la
z
in
g
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
o
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
 f
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fo
re
c
o
u
rt
. 
  

 

1
.0
 

 

0
7
 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 e
x
p
lo
it
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

b
u
il
d
in
g
s
, 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o
r 
to
p
o
g
ra
p
h
y
?
 

T
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
n
 s
it
e
 w
a
s
 d
e
m
o
lis
h
e
d
, 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 

m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 r
e
u
s
e
 t
h
is
 a
s
s
e
t.
 E
x
is
ti
n
g
 f
in
e
 m
a
tu
re
 t
re
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
, 
a
g
a
in
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 f
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
it
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
. 
 

  

0
.0
 

 

0
8
 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 f
e
e
l 
li
k
e
 a
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r?
 

T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
le
c
ti
c
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
. 

T
h
e
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
t 
g
re
y
, 
w
h
it
e
 a
n
d
 “
b
ri
c
k
 l
ik
e
” 
re
d
-b
ro
w
n
 c
o
lo
u
r 
o
f 

th
e
 c
la
d
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
re
 n
o
t 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
. 
 T
h
e
 i
rr
e
g
u
la
r 
rh
y
th
m
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
s
ti
n
g
 p
a
n
e
ls
 

a
n
d
 w
in
d
o
w
s
 f
it
 i
n
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
a
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tl
y
 v
e
rt
ic
a
l 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 r
h
y
th
m
 m
a
tc
h
e
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 t
e
rr
a
c
e
d
 h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 m
o
d
e
rn
, 
u
n
d
e
c
o
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 r
e
c
ti
lin
e
a
r 
s
ty
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
lo
c
k
s
 w
it
h
in
 s
ig
h
t 

1
.0
 

 

Page 146



P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
6
 

to
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 N
o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t,
 a
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
b
u
lk
. 
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 i
ts
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
rn
e
r 
s
it
e
 

b
u
t 
h
a
s
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

c
o
n
te
x
ts
. 

 

0
9
 

D
o
 t
h
e
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
m
a
k
e
 i
t 

e
a
s
y
 t
o
 f
in
d
 y
o
u
r 
w
a
y
 a
ro
u
n
d
?
 

T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 c
re
a
te
s
 a
 p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
la
n
d
m
a
rk
 a
t 
th
is
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 f
ro
m
 v
ie
w
s
 d
o
w
n
 P
a
rk
 L
a
n
e
 a
n
d
 S
h
e
lb
o
u
rn
e
 

R
o
a
d
, 
s
te
p
p
in
g
 u
p
 i
n
 h
e
ig
h
t 
fr
o
m
 3
 s
to
ri
e
s
 b
e
s
id
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

to
 a
 m
o
re
 p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
4
 s
to
ry
 “
p
ro
w
” 
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
rn
e
r.
  
A
t 
th
e
 

p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
’s
 l
e
v
e
l,
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
re
c
o
u
rt
 b
y
 

c
h
a
m
fe
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
rn
e
r,
 a
llo
w
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
rr
iv
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 a
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
v
ie
w
 d
o
w
n
 P
a
rk
 L
a
n
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
le
g
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 
T
h
e
 m
a
in
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 c
le
a
rl
y
 

m
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
e
a
le
d
 r
e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 s
ta
ir
 t
o
w
e
r,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 

g
la
z
e
d
. 
  

1
.0
 

  
 

1
0
 

A
re
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b
y
 a
 w
e
ll
-s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 

b
u
il
d
in
g
 l
a
y
o
u
t?
 

 

T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 l
in
e
 a
lo
n
g
 P
a
rk
 L
a
n
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 g
o
o
d
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
e
e
t.
 T
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 a
re
 p
o
o
rl
y
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
lo
n
g
 

S
h
e
lb
o
u
rn
e
 R
o
a
d
. 
T
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
 s
o
lid
 b
u
ild
in
g
 f
o
rm

 a
t 
th
e
 g
ro
u
n
d
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
th
e
 s
o
u
th
w
e
s
t 
c
o
rn
e
r 
c
re
a
te
s
 a
 v
o
id
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
tr
e
e
t,
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
s
 t
h
e
 h
e
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 u
n
d
e
rc
ro
ft
 a
re
a
 i
s
 o
v
e
r 
4
m
. 

T
h
e
 g
ra
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 c
re
a
te
s
 a
n
 u
n
p
le
a
s
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
e
a
k
 e
d
g
e
. 

0
.5
 

S
T
R
E
E
T
S
, 
P
A
R
K
IN
G
 A
N
D
 L
A
Y
O
U
T
 

 
0
.5
  

1
1
 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 b
u
il
d
in
g
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
ta
k
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
d
o
m
in
a
te
?
 

T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
fa
ils
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
v
e
r 
c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 a
lo
n
g
 

S
h
e
lb
o
u
rn
e
 R
o
a
d
. 
T
h
e
 u
n
d
e
rc
ro
ft
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
e
a
k
e
n
s
 

th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d
 a
llo
w
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 v
is
u
a
lly
 d
o
m
in
a
te
 

th
is
 a
re
a
. 

0
.0
 

 

1
2
 

Is
 t
h
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 w
e
ll
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
it
u
a
te
d
 s
o
 i
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
s
c
e
n
e
?
 

N
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 v
is
u
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

o
n
-s
tr
e
e
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 b
y
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 
 

U
n
d
e
rc
ro
ft
 p
a
rk
in
g
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 p
o
o
rl
y
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
tr
a
c
ts
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
s
c
e
n
e
. 
It
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 d
e
a
d
 f
ro
n
ta
g
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
tr
a
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
n
im
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 s
p
a
c
e
. 
It
 i
s
 

v
is
u
a
lly
 d
o
m
in
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e
. 
 

0
.0
  

 

Page 147



P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
6
 

1
3
 

A
re
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
, 
c
y
c
le
 a
n
d
 

v
e
h
ic
le
 f
ri
e
n
d
ly
?
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
lo
n
g
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 
S
h
e
lb
o
u
rn
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
re
 

a
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 f
e
a
tu
re
. 
 T
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
a
m
p
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 t
h
e
 w
id
th
 o
f 
S
h
e
lb
o
rn
e
 R
o
a
d
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t 

h
e
re
. 
 U
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 K
in
g
d
o
m
 H
a
ll 
p
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 

u
n
d
e
rc
ro
ft
 a
re
a
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 d
ir
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

K
in
g
d
o
m
 H
a
ll.
 

A
 g
o
o
d
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
c
y
c
le
 p
a
rk
in
g
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
 s
it
e
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
. 

0
.5
 

 

1
4
 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 w
it
h
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

s
tr
e
e
ts
, 
p
a
th
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t?
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
m
a
tc
h
e
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
ild
in
g
 l
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
rr
a
c
e
s
, 

c
re
a
ti
n
g
 g
o
o
d
 c
o
h
e
re
n
c
e
 a
lo
n
g
 S
h
e
lb
o
u
rn
e
 R
o
a
d
. 
 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

h
e
ig
h
t 
a
t 
4
 s
to
ri
e
s
 i
s
 g
re
a
te
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 2
 s
to
ry
 t
e
rr
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 3
 s
to
ry
 

im
m
e
d
ia
te
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
, 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 s
te
p
s
 d
o
w
n
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
is
 l
o
w
e
r 

h
e
ig
h
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
is
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
. 
 

 T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 

fo
re
c
o
u
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
re
ta
il 
a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 P
a
rk
 L
a
n
e
 f
ro
n
ta
g
e
 

m
ir
ro
rs
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
h
o
p
s
 o
p
p
o
s
it
e
. 
  

 T
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 c
o
rn
e
r 
is
 o
f 
a
 s
im
ila
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

s
to
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
is
ib
le
 d
is
ta
n
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
b
lo
c
k
s
 a
re
 h
ig
h
e
r.
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 

fl
o
o
r 
to
 f
lo
o
r 
h
e
ig
h
ts
 a
re
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 h
ig
h
 (
3
m
, 
4
.5
m
 a
t 
g
ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r)
; 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 u
s
u
a
l 
3
 o
r 
4
 s
to
ry
 b
u
ild
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
is
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
s
c
a
le
 t
o
 i
ts
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
s
. 
 

0
.5
  

 

1
5
 

A
re
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 

ro
u
te
s
 o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
o
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
e
l 

s
a
fe
?
 

T
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 c
re
a
te
s
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
tr
e
tc
h
 o
f 
b
la
n
k
 f
a
ç
a
d
e
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 

w
e
s
te
rn
 e
le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 l
it
tl
e
 o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
is
 

s
tr
e
tc
h
. 
It
 i
s
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe
 a
t 
n
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 t
o
 v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
. 
 

 W
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
ta
il 
u
n
it
 i
s
 c
lo
s
e
d
, 
e
it
h
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
 o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 

o
n
 a
ll 
n
o
n
-m

a
tc
h
 d
a
y
s
, 
th
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
s
 (
e
it
h
e
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
o
r 

fo
r 
th
e
 K
in
g
d
o
m
 H
a
ll)
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
is
 f
ro
n
ta
g
e
 w
ill
 m

e
a
n
 p
o
o
r 
o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
is
 s
tr
e
tc
h
. 
 

0
.0
 

 

D
E
S
IG
N
 A
N
D
 C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO
N
 

 
3
.0
  

Page 148



P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
6
 

1
6
 

Is
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
p
a
c
e
 w
e
ll
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 

it
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
?
 

T
h
e
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
y
a
rd
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
p
le
a
s
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 

u
s
a
b
le
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 g
re
e
n
 w
a
lls
 a
re
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

w
e
lc
o
m
e
 f
e
a
tu
re
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 a
d
d
 v
is
u
a
l 
in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

n
o
is
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
y
a
rd
. 
A
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 p
la
y
 a
re
a
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 
 D
e
c
k
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

ro
u
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w
e
ll 
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 d
e
fe
n
s
ib
le
 s
p
a
c
e
 t
o
 

fa
c
in
g
 w
in
d
o
w
s
 u
s
in
g
 a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 
lig
h
t 
w
e
lls
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 d
a
y
lig
h
ti
n
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 l
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
rh
a
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
o
f.
  

 T
h
e
 h
e
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 s
o
u
th
e
rn
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

w
ill
 c
re
a
te
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
o
v
e
rs
h
a
d
o
w
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
y
a
rd
. 
  
S
u
n
lig
h
t 

s
tu
d
ie
s
 s
h
o
w
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
h
a
d
e
d
 m
u
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 t
im
e
 (
3
8
%
 a
t 
s
p
ri
n
g
 

e
q
u
in
o
x
).
 T
h
is
 h
e
a
v
y
 s
h
a
d
o
w
in
g
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

a
m
e
n
it
y
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
a
c
e
. 
  

 A
n
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
D
e
ta
ils
 o
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 r
e
g
im
e
s
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
u
n
it
s
 (
4
6
) 
is
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

m
a
x
im
u
m
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fl
a
ts
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
n
e
 

e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 c
o
n
c
ie
rg
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 “
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

L
iv
in
g
 a
t 
S
u
p
e
rd
e
n
s
it
y
” 
(2
5
).
  

0
.5
 

 

1
7
 

D
o
 t
h
e
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s
 e
x
h
ib
it
 a
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
ra
l 

q
u
a
li
ty
?
 

T
h
e
 m
o
d
e
lle
d
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 a
re
 w
e
ll 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
h
y
th
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 i
rr
e
g
u
la
r 
rh
y
th
m
 

o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
s
ti
n
g
 p
a
n
e
ls
 a
n
d
 w
in
d
o
w
s
, 
a
n
d
 v
e
rt
ic
a
lit
y
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
p
a
c
in
g
 o
f 
te
rr
a
c
e
d
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 g
o
e
s
 s
o
m
e
 w
a
y
 i
n
 r
e
in
te
rp
re
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
v
e
rn
a
c
u
la
r.
 T
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 w
it
h
 a
 m
o
re
 n
a
tu
ra
l 

a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 

to
 u
s
e
 ‘
s
o
ft
e
r’
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
y
a
rd
 d
o
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
o
re
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
fe
e
l 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 h
a
rd
e
r 
o
u
ts
id
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
 b
a
lc
o
n
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
e
rr
a
c
e
 i
s
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 

is
 s
e
e
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
re
a
te
s
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
a
d
e
. 
T
h
e
ir
 s
iz
e
s
 a
re
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
. 
A
ll 
u
n
it
s
 a
re
 d
u
a
l 
a
s
p
e
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 f
e
a
tu
re
. 

0
.5
  

  

Page 149



P
a
g
e
 6
 o
f 
6
 

 T
h
e
 l
a
y
o
u
ts
 o
f 
fl
a
ts
 c
re
a
te
 c
ra
m
p
e
d
 l
iv
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
s
 

a
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 2
0
 b
e
lo
w
. 
T
h
e
 s
in
g
le
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
 i
n
 f
la
t 
ty
p
e
 

Q
 i
s
 p
o
o
rl
y
 s
it
u
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
d
a
y
lig
h
ti
n
g
. 
N
in
e
 u
n
it
s
 h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
k
it
c
h
e
n
s
 w
it
h
 n
o
 d
ir
e
c
t 
d
a
y
lig
h
t.
 S
o
m
e
 c
o
rn
e
r 
u
n
it
s
 h
a
v
e
 

ra
th
e
r 
lo
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
v
o
lu
te
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
rr
id
o
rs
. 
  

 M
o
s
t 
h
a
b
it
a
b
le
 r
o
o
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
u
n
 a
n
d
 d
a
y
lig
h
t.
 

T
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
o
p
e
n
 s
lo
ts
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
a
lc
o
n
y
 

a
n
d
 f
la
t 
w
in
d
o
w
s
 i
s
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 s
te
p
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 

d
e
fe
n
s
ib
le
 s
p
a
c
e
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
lo
ts
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 r
o
o
f 
o
r 

p
u
lli
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
o
f 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 d
e
c
k
s
 n
e
g
a
te
s
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
n
lig
h
ti
n
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
w
a
lk
w
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 

ro
o
m
s
 f
a
c
in
g
 t
h
e
m
. 

 

1
8
 

D
o
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
a
ll
o
w
 f
o
r 

a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 o
r 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
?
 

A
ll 
u
n
it
s
 a
re
 L
if
e
ti
m
e
 H
o
m
e
s
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
a
n
d
 3
 o
f 
th
e
 u
n
it
s
 a
re
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
‘a
s
 o
c
c
u
p
ie
d
’ 
w
h
e
e
lc
h
a
ir
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 w
it
h
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
lif
ts
 

to
 b
e
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d
. 
A
ll 
u
n
it
s
 a
re
 a
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
lly
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 

o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
in
te
rn
a
l 
p
a
rt
it
io
n
 w
a
lls
 a
re
 n
o
t 

lo
a
d
 b
e
a
ri
n
g
, 
s
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 e
a
c
h
 u
n
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

B
a
lc
o
n
ie
s
 a
re
 o
f 
m
in
im
a
l 
s
iz
e
 (
e
x
c
e
p
t 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
s
 p
u
lle
d
 

b
a
c
k
 f
o
r 
p
ri
v
a
c
y
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
),
 s
o
 f
e
w
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

1
.0
 

1
9
 

H
a
s
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 m
a
d
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
s
 

in
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
r 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 t
h
a
t 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 i
ts
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 

a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
?
 

M
o
d
u
la
r 
b
a
th
ro
o
m
s
, 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
c
la
d
d
in
g
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 a
n
d
 f
la
t 
ro
o
fs
 a
re
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
, 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 o
n
s
it
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
im
e
 a
n
d
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 b
u
ild
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

1
.0
 

2
0
 

D
o
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s
 o
r 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 o
u
tp
e
rf
o
rm

 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 m
in
im
a
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 b
u
il
d
in
g
 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
?
 

A
ll 
b
u
t 
th
re
e
 u
n
it
s
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
P
D
 m

in
im
u
m
 

s
p
a
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
o
m
e
 f
a
il 
o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
o
o
m
 s
iz
e
s
. 
 A
ll 

u
n
it
s
 m
e
e
t 
C
S
H
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 a
s
 a
 m
in
im
u
m
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
y
a
rd
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 n
o
w
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 

c
h
ild
re
n
s
 p
la
y
 a
re
a
. 

0
.5
 

 

 

Page 150



APPENDIX 
 
Former Park Tavern Public House, 220 Park Lane, N17 
 
 
Viability Assessment  
The applicant has submitted an economic viability assessment of the proposed 
development using the ‘Three Dragons’ toolkit.  This sets out the projected costs and 
values of each element of the proposal – the new community hall, retail space and the 
residential flats.   
 
The scheme is for 100% affordable flats with a known financial offer from a Registered 
Social Landlord.   The community hall is a major ‘cost’ to the development as it is 
required to be built by the developer for a religious group as part of an agreement to 
acquire that group’s existing premises, the site of which is required as part of the major 
redevelopment proposals for the new Tottenham Hotspur football stadium.  It produces 
no economic value for this specific scheme (but is clearly needed in terms of the ‘bigger 
picture’).  The retail space is to be operated on a commercial basis. 
 
The design of the residential element of the scheme requires integrated management of 
all the flats and, with just one entrance, it is unlikely to be a more viable development 
with a mix of private and affordable units. 
 
The estimated costs in the appraisal are backed by a detailed cost plan.    Off-site 
highway improvement works are not costed but, if any are required, the applicant has 
undertaken to fund those directly.   The applicant is also willing to take steps to 
encourage the use of local labour in the construction contract. 
 
The appraisal shows a negative land value for the landowner (ie. substantially less than 
the land acquisition cost) and, with no profit element included for the developer, this 
negative land value means the scheme is effectively being subsidised by the landowner 
to facilitate the other, larger, redevelopment proposals.  
 
The appraisal is considered robust.  On the basis of it, and recognising the link with 
wider regeneration proposals, it is considered that this scheme on its own cannot 
reasonably be required to make any s106 payments.   
    

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Appeal Decisions
	Appeals

	7 Delegated Decisions
	Delegated

	8 Performance Statistics
	Stats_DC
	Stats_ENF

	9 Planning Enforcement Update
	10 Planning Applications
	11 Former Hornsey Central Hospital, Park Road, N8
	Site_Plan_1

	12 The Nightingale PH, 40 Nightingale Lane, N8
	Site_Plan_2

	13 Park Tavern Public House, 220 Park Lane, N17
	Report_3_Appendix_1
	Report_3_Appendix_2
	Report_3_Appendix_3
	Site_Plan_3


